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About the National Audit Office

Mandate

The statutory mandate and responsibilities of the Controller and Auditor-General are provided
for under Article 143 of the Constitution of the Umted Republic of Tanzania of 1977 and in

Section 10 (1) of the Public Audit Act, Cap 418[R.E 2021]

M1ssnon

To | provide high-quality audit services

mrcugh the modemisation of functions that
’ enhance accmtabﬂuy and Lransparenq in

the! management of public resdurces:

- ,_Modemtstng External Audit for Stronger
. Public-Coafldence

Independence and
objectivity

We are an Impartial public
nstitution,  Indopondently
offering “high-quality audit
services to our clients inan
unbiased matinec. .

Teamwork Spirit

We wvalue and  work

wgether with intemal
external |

stakchq!don

Results-Oriented

Wo focus on
achievements of reliable,
timaly, accurate, useful,
and clear performance:
targets.

document; hence, its distribution may not be Ilmlted

!

Professional
competence
We dellver high-quality audiy
services based on

appropriste professional
knowledge, skiils, znd best
practices

Integrity

We obscrve and malntain high
ethical standards and rules of
law In the delivery of audit
services.

Creativity and
Innovation

We encourage, croate,
and  Innovite  value-
adding (deas for the
fmprovement of audit
services,
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Abbreviations
|
AIDS . Acquired Immuno-Deficiency Syndrome
BOT Bank of Tanzania |
CPA Certified Public Accountant
CAG Controller and Auditor Genqral
coviD -19 ' Corona Virus Disease of 2019
DR-PFA Deputy-Rector Planning, _J.-'Iir}ance and Administration
DCS Director of Camputef Services
DF Director of Finance @ |
DHRA Director of Human Resource and Administration
DPRC Director of Postgraduate, Research and Consultancy
ERP Enterprise Resources Plan
HESLB Higher Education Students Loans Board
HIV Human Immunodeficiency Virus
ICT Information Communication Technology
IFM Institute of Finance Management
IFMSO Institute of Finance Management Students Organization
IPSAS international Public Sector Accounting Standards
LAN Local Area Network
MBA ' Masters of Business Administration
NBC National Bank of Commerce
NBAA " National Board of Accountants and Auditors '
NACTVET Nationat Council for Tech}lical and Vocational Education and Training
NMB ' National Microfinance Bank
NSSF . National Social Security Fund
PE . Procuring Entity :
PPF Parastatal Pension Fund
SSL Secure Sockets Layer
TANePS Tanzania e-Procurement System
TCB , Tanzania Commercial Bank
TCU ' Tanzania Commission forj Universities
TFRS Tanzania Financial Reporting Standards
TZS Tanzanian Shillings
URT United Republic of Tanzania
UDSM University of Dar es Salaam
VPN Virtual Private Network
WIP Work in Progress
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KEY INFORMATION OF THE INSTITUTE

5 Shlaaban Robert Street
P. q. Box 3918
11101Dar Es Salaam

I Ema:il: rector@ifm.ac.tz
Phone: +255 222 112931-4

Prncipal Place of Business:
I

Principal Auditor: The|Controller and Auditor General
National Audit Office
Audjt House

P. O. Box 950
Dodoma.

Delegated Auditor: Quiptex Financial Services
P. O. Box 11201
Dar|Es Salaam

Secretary to the Governing Council: Rector The' Institute of Finance Management
5 Shaaban Robert Street
P. ©. Box 3918
' 11101 Dar Es Salaam

Emlail: rector@ifm.ac.tz
Phone; +255 222 112931-4

Lawyer: ! Adv. James lgakinga
The Institute of Finance Management
5 Shaaban Robert Street
P. O Box 3918
11101 Dar Es Salaam

Em:ail: rector@ifm.ac.tz
Phone: +255 222 112931-4

Banker Bank of Tanzania
2 l\{nrambo Street
Box 2939
11584 Dar Es Salaam

NMB Bank Plc
Balnk House Branch
P.p. Box 9031
Dar Es Salaam

‘JM Bank
M\{vanza Branch
P.0.BOX 1431
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CRD:B Bank Plc
PPF| Tower Branch
P. O. Bax 2302
Dar' Es Salaam

NB(;:

Sanlwra Branch
P. ©. Box 9062
Dar| Es Salaam

TCB Bank
P.Q. Box 9300
Dar, Es Salaam
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1.0 INDEPENDENT REPORT OF THE CONTROLLER AlND AUDITOR GENERAL

The Chairperson of the Governing Council, '
Institute of Finance Mahagement,
P.O. Box 3918,

11101 DAR ES SALAAM

1.1 REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ungqualified Opinion

| have audited the financial statements of the Institute|of Finance Management, which comprise
the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June |2023, and the Statement of Financial
Performance, Statement of Changes in Net Assets|and Statement of Cash Flow and the
Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts for the year then ended, as well as the
Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the accompanying Financial Statements present fairly in all material respects,
the financial position of Institute of Finance Management as at 30 June 2023, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Public
Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) Accrual basis of accounting and the manner required by
the Public Finance Act, Cap. 348.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards of Supreme Audit
[nstitutions (ISSAls). My responsibilities under those, standards are further described in the
section below entitled “Responsibilities of the Controller and Auditor General for the Audit of
the Financial Statements”. | am independent of InstittlJte of Finance Management in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the National Board of Accountants and Auditors (NBAA)
Code of Ethics, and | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these

requirements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is su:fficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most
significance in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. | have determined

that there are no key audit matters to communicate in my report.

Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/IFM/2022/23
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Other Information l
Management is respons’ible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Report by those charged with Governance and the Declaration by the Head of Finance and but
does not inclde the financial statements and my audit report thereon which | obtained prior
to the date of this auditor’s report.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information, and | do not
express any form of assurance concltusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the Financial Statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Financial Statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to

be materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed on the other information that | obtained prior to the
date of this audit report, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, 1 am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

|

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements '

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Financial
Statements in accordance with 1PSAS and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of Financial [Statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the entity’s
ability to continue las a going concern, disclosing, |as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the entity or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the entity’s financial reporting
process.

Responsibifities of the Controller and Auditor General for the Audit of the Financial
Statements ‘

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an audit
report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in r:lccord::mcel with 155Als will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they, could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis!of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISSAIs, | exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skep}:icism throughout the audit. 1 also:

I 2

Controller and Aul‘ditor General AR/PAJIFM/2022/23




- - - { -
POt Tol Tl P AR N e - -
wr iy sy 2 1, e e i . s T T T
EACEAE- T T N R T L LT e e e
ot e e e 1T . P - PO
-~ r . - .t . I
-« -« -« -

i

\dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform hudit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fréud may involve collusion, forgery,

intentional omissions, misrepresentationé, or the override of internal control;

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control;

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures madelz by management;

. Conclude on the!appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to évents or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 1 am
required to draw attention in my audit report to|the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit report. However,
future events or-conditions may cause the entity Lo cease to continue as a going concern;
and : '

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with. those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my audit.

| also provide those' charged with governance with|a statement that 1 have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to cqmmynj_yq_z;;g_.,yvith them ail
relationships and other matters that may reasonably;be thought fo begg.p"n_-—'my independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards. Lol

From the matters communicated with those charéed with gove:rnari‘ce,_ I d'ete;mine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of ithe current
period and are, therefore, the key audit matters. | describe these.matters in my audit report
unless law or regulation precludes pubtic disclosure about the mzitter.ofxy\ghén,-f iff extremely
care circumstances, | determine that a matter <Hould not be communicated’ifi my report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the

public interest of such communication.

In addition, Section 10 (2) of the Public Audit Act,|Cap 418 requires me to satisfy myself that

the accounts have been prepared in accordance with the appropriate accounting standards.

1
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" Further, Section 48(3) of the Public Procurement Act, Cap 410 requires me to state in my annual

audit report whether or not the audited entity has complied with the procedures prescribed in
the Procurement Act and its Regulations.

1.2 REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATIONS
1.2.1 Compliance with the Public Procurement laws
Subject matter: Compliance audit on procurement of works, goods, and services

| performed a compliance audit on the procurement of works, goods, and services in the
Institute of Finance Management for the financial year 2022/23 as per the Public Procurement
laws.

Conclusion

Based on the audit work performed, | state that procurement of goods, works and services of
Institute of Finance Management is generally in compliance with the requirements of the Public
Procurement laws in Tanzania.

1.2.2 Compliance with the Budget Act and other Budget Guidelines
Subject matter: Budget formulation and execution

| performed a compliance audit on budget formulation and execution in the Institute of Finance
Management for the financial year 2022/23 as per the Budget Act and other Budget Guidelines.

Conclusion

Based on the audit work performed, | state that Budget formulation and execution of Institute
of Finance Management is generally in complian/cgwith the requirements of the Budget Act and
other Budget Guidelines.

Charles E. Kichere

Controller and Auditor General,
Dodoma, United Republic of Tanzania.
March 2024

R GENERAL
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2.0 THE REPORT BY TI-IlOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE
2023 '

2.1 INTRODUCTION

Those Charged with Governance (TCWG) at the Institute |of Finance Management (IFM) is the
Governing Council. The Governing Council presents this, report together with the Financial
Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023, which provides the results of the Institute’s
operations and its state of affairs. The report has been érepared in compliance with changes
made on the Tanzania Financial Reporting Standard 1 (TERS 1)- Report by Those Charged with
Governance issued by the National Board of Accountants and Auditors (NBAA) which became

effective on 1 January 2021,

The report is addressed to internal and external stakeholders who are both primary and
secondary users of financial reports. It sets out an analysis of the Institute’s operations and
financial review, with a forward-looking orientation in order to assist stakeholders in assessing
the strategies adopted by the Institute and the potential for those strategies to succeed towards
creating value over the short, medium and long-term periods.

The Institute’s internal Istakeholders include the Govérnjng Council and employees. External
stakeholders comprise of Government of the United Republic of Tanzania (URT), the Parliament
of Tanzania, development partners, regulatory authorities, service providers, researchers,
academia, professional associations and the general public.

The objective of the report includes provision to users with an understanding of the Institute’s
culture, principal activities, key strengths and resources, 2022/23 performance, governance
matters, relationship with stakeholders, liquidity and financial performance, current and future
development plans, financial reporting and auditing, employee’s welfare matters and risk

management

The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with the International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSASs).

2.2  ESTABLISHMENT

The historical background of the Institute’ of Finance Management goes back to the then
National Bank of Commerce (NBC) Training College] established by NBC soon after the
nationalization of private banks in 1967, with the aim of training the recruited but
inexperienced bankers and conducting short-term training programmes for practicing bankers.

The institute of Finance Management was established by the Act of Parliament No. 3 of 1972.

" The Institute came into operation in July 1972. The sources of income to the Institute include

tuition fees collected from students, Government subsidies for capital development and
personnel emoluments, fees from consultancy and short courses, and other miscellaneous

income.

Controller and Auditor [General AR/PA/IFM/2022/23
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2.3° ° CORPORATE CULTURE

The Institute’s culture conlsists of vision,
2.3.1 VISION ST»‘-\TE!\:'\ENTI

To be a reputable world-class higher
development needs through the provis
management and related disciplines.

2.3.2 MISSION STATEMENT

To provide quality académic and professional training thx
research and consultancy in

through integrated training,
disciplines. '

2.3.3 CORE VALUES OF THE INSTITUTE

in line with its Vision and t
Institute adheres to eight {8) core values,

(a} Accountability; Demo

the community for the mandated functions

(b) Transparency and fairness; Being

public scrutiny as well as applying uniform rules
the culture of team spiri

(c) Teamwork; Promoting
operations;

(d) Integrity and innovativeness; Demonstrating
trustworthy behavior in all our operations as W
innovative methods of doing our work;

build trust in every interaction

fective teamwork;

Embracing diversity and gender equity

(e) Trust; Seeking to
(f) Unity; Promoting unity for ef
(g) Diversity & gender equity;

Institute in order to promote gend

potentials of the Institute; and

(h) Excellence and efficiency;
stakeholders at all times.

24  PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Institute of Financ

nstrating a high degree of accountability to our stakeho

Delivering prompt and exemplary services

e Management was established

mission and core values as stipulated herewith below.

learning institultion that is responsive to global
jon of knowledge and competencies in finance

At nurtures creativity and innovation
financial studies and related

he need to fulfil its Mission and live accarding to its philosophy, the

abbreviated a3 ATTITUDE;

lders and
of the Institute;
our work and dealings, stand ready for

and standards;
t and compassion to create synergy in

transparent in

high fidelity, honesty, faithful and
oll as embracing new technologies and

with customers and other stakeholders.

in the life of the
er balance and reap the most from the human resource

to the Institute’s

by the Act of Parliament No. 3 of 1972 as

a corporate body with the following genera

i. To provide facilities for the study of, anq

L objectives;

training in principles, procedures and
hagement and such other related subjects

techniques of Banking, Insurance, Finance Ma
as the Council may decide from time to time;
To conduct, training programs leading to
Insurance, Financial Managemen

il.

professional quatifications in Banking,

t and other related subjects;

Controller and Auditor General
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fii. To conduct examinations and grant diplomas, certificates, and other awards of the

Institute; |
To sponsor, arrange and provide facilities for conferences and seminars; and

To arrange for the publication and general dissemination of materials produced in
connection with the work and activities of the Institute.

2.5  KEY STRENGTHS'AND RESOURCES

The Institute has the following key strength}. and resources, some are tangible and others are
intangible: -

(a) Governing Council

The Council serves as the focal point and custodian of corporate governance in the Institute.
The Council has been effective in its role of providing d}rection and oversight to Management
and employees since its appointment on 24 June 2022. They exercised oversight of the
implementation of strategy and operational plans by Management against the agreed
performance measures and targets. The Council’s roles and responsibilities included policy
development, strategic planning, and financial and operational oversight. Generally, the
Council members were effective in discharging their oversight responsibilities.

(b) Operation and Regulatory Instruments

in the discharge of its functions, the Institute adhered to the IFM Act No.3 of 1972, and all the
relevant regulations including the staff regulations, financial regulations, Standing Orders for
the Public Service, Examination Regulations, TCU and NACTVET rules and regulations. These
instruments were key in the Institute’s discharge of its functions judiciously and fairly during

the financial year under review.

(c}) Human Capital Perspective

The Institute has skilléd, committed, motivated and competent employees dedicated to the
provision of quality services that meet and exceed 'customers’ expectations. In addition,
Management adheres ‘to the principles of good governance and promotes a good working
environment and labour relations. By 30 June 2023, the Institute had campuses in five Regions
in Mainland Tanzania namely; Dar-es Salaam, Mwanza, Dodoma, Simiyu and Geita and a total
of 338 employees as at 30 June 2023 (30 June 2022: §05 employees). Plan was underway to
recruit seventy-four academicians to ensure the ma date of the Institute was effectively
jmplemented. During the year under review the Institute was permitted to recruit fifty
academicians, the process of recruitment is handled by the President’s Office Public Service

Recruitment Secretariat (PSRS).

(d) Financial Perspective

support its strategic and operational

The Institute has aélequate financial resources to
al TZS 3,439.1 million and accumulated

initiatives. The financial resources comprise of capit
surplus of TZS 83,019|.5 million as at 30 June 2023.
E

|
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management of its resources

ts| financial sufficiency by improv‘ing
activities to generate revenue

atives and imptementing planrlled
e Institute are provided in Section

d funding. The sources of funds of th
d consist of the following: -

or charges, that shall be prescribed;
rant or loan from any person or

i. Tuition Fees,
ve by way of g

i, Sums as the Institute may recei

organization; ,
iii. Consultancy, research and consultancy fees; and
ct of any matter incidental to its

iv. All other payments due to the Institute in respe

functions.

(e) Technological Perpective
cant efforts in adopting mmliern technology and has become the
| and insurance sectors. The Institute has 1CT application systems

vision of academic

lude the

The institute has made signifi
think tank in banking, financia
which has automated and mode
services and administrall:ive opera

following: - ;
j. Enterprises Management System (EMS);
ii. Student Information System (S15);
iti. E-Learning;
jv. Mfumowa Uhasibu Serikalini (MUSE);
e-Office Management System;

rnized operations, ‘thuls, improving pro
tions. The Institute’s ICT systems in operation inc

v.
vi. E-Revenue Collection System (GePG); and
vii. Time Attendance (Biometric) System.

Generally, the 1CT appﬁcation systems designed and acquired by the Institute are expected to
very. The Institute shall continue with its initiative to

improve .efficiency in service deli '
automate business operations to enhance efficiency and reduce costs of business operations.

) intellectual Resources
has played a great

logy to improve its

The Institute staff knowledge is a very significant strategic resource that
se software which

rote in modernizing its operations by developing in-l‘rouse modern techno
day-to-day operations. The Institute staff have developed various in-hou

allows efficient execution of its mandate.

(g) Social and Relationship Resources
The Institute maintains strong relationships witl'l\ its stakeholders to understand their
expectations and create values that ensure satisfaction. To maintain goed relationships with
the communities in which the Institute operates, We provide support in the form of charitable
contributions to good causes. During the year, the Ir"astitute donated a total amount of 725 7.9
million to various communti butions to various organizations. The Institute

ty groups and contri i
shall continue engaging its stakeholders and contribute on improving their welfare.
I
8

]
| .
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(h) Natural Resou rce
l
|

This forms the basis for;other forms of capital which together make up the productive capacity
of the organization. thnle the Institute does not use natural resources for its productivity, its
operations are sensitive to the ecosystem to sustain life and economic activity. Recognizing the
loss of ecosystems such as the atmosphere’s ability to absorb carbon dioxide without becoming
dangerously unstable and threatening to the economy. Tlhe Institute considers the impact of its
operations on the enwronment and thus promotes the green environment agenda. The Institute
currently uses energy-semng systems; It has set its mot?r vehicles' mileage and age limits; and
has continued to automate its operations so that it becomes a near-paperless office in its efforts
to use modern, environmentally friendly systems that use water, land, and energy sparingly;

- - - I-
and minimize air pollution.

2.6 REVIEW OF THE INSTITUTE’S PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

The Institute has in place a Strategic Plan (SP) which describes the Vision, Mission, Core Values,
Strategic Objectives, Targets and Key Performance Indicators. During the year, the Institute’s
Strategic Plan focused on attaining eight major strategic objectives that translated into its
primary mandate. These strategic objectives are: -

i. Improve the quantity and quality of training, research and consultancy services;

ii. Expand and maintain physical infrastructure;

iii. Enhance the capacity and motivation of human resources;

iv. Improve business processes and governance;

v. Improve students’ academic and social experience;

vi. Enhance financial capacity and sustainability;

vii. Adhere to the national policy of communicable and non-communicable diseases; and
viii. Adhere and implement the national anti- corruptlon strategy.

The Implementation of the Strategic Plan is evaluated quarterly, based on Key Performance
Indicators (KPIs) and.its report compiled .semi-annually and annually. The assessment of
performance includes both financial and non-financjal aspects. During the financial year
2022/23, the Strateglc Plan was implemented at an average of 89.9 per cent. The respective
objective(s) and targets against performance (% of achievement) are shown in Table 1.

Controller and Auditor; General AR/PAJIFM/2022/23
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" Table 1: Strategic Plan Performance Review !
|
|
Strategic S/ ! Performa
Objectives N Targets Achievements | nce (%)
Strengthen  the | 1. | 15,667 students enrolled/ registered by | 14,491 students were registered forlvarious programmes 92,5 ,
quantity and June 2023 offered by the Institute in the 2022/2# academic year as at
quality of 30 June 2023 [
training, research ¢ [IFM Main Campus: 13,042, j
and consultancy « Dodoma Campus:144 !
services » Mwanza Campus: 1118 !
__ _(Objective A) _ __|_. } ¢ Simiyu Campus: 187 N - S
, The registration of students is 92.5% of the annual target.
2. | Students assessed in various programmes at | Assessments for undergraduate and|Masters programmes 100
all IFM campuses by June 2023 were conducted as scheduled. ' Semester 1 Final
Examination for the academic fyear 2022/23 was
successfully facilitated (Exam, verjues were prepared,
Invigilators were orlented and all cdnsumables for exams
were provided) while the Semester 2 Final Examination was
in progress and expected to be c&?mpleted in the first
: quarter of Financial 2023/24. 1
3, | Students trained in various programmes at | Teaching activities for undergraduate and Master 100
' all IFM campuses by June 2023 programmes in-all campuses (Sem | and I for the academic
year 2022-23) were conducted as scheduled.
1
4-—|-Obtained-allowances-allotted _on_time-to_| All_eligible_students_were _facilitatéd_with_payments_for | _100
students who are HESLB beneficiaries by | meals and accommodation allowances from HELSB.
June 2023 Total allocations: 9022 .
o Dar Campus: 8,452 students; Mwanza campus: 530
students. |
Tuition fee paid Dar:10,545,439,154 |
Tuition fee paid Mwanza: 616,586,500
Total: 11,162,025,554
5 | Two (2) workshops with Alumni and | The list of alumni and the contacts have been established 10
potential clients to introduce intervention | and the alumni link is created and found on the Institute
programs conducted by June 2023 website to register (A web-based facility for registration
purposes was created). !
6. | Eight (B) staff seminars on consultancy and | Five (5) staff seminars on research)and consultancy skills 62.5
research skills conducted during the ending | were conducted. !
June 2023 !
|
i
i
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7. | At least seventeen (17) consultancy | Four (4) consultancy assignments were undertaken, were 23.5
assignments undertaken by June 2023 completed and two (2) were stitl in progress as at 30 June
2023.
8. | At least 90% of the registered finalists 85.4% of registered finalists from various programmes at 94,9
from various programmes at IFM campuses IFM campuses graduated during the last graduation and
graduated by the ended June 2023 academic certificates were prepared and issued.
« Atotal of 6131 academic certificates which include 1510
from previous years were prepared.
- - - . | » All requests for transcripts were timely accomplished.
9. | At least thirty-five (35) short courses Nineteen (23) short courses including- 4_training-based | .. 65.7 __
conducted by June 2023 consultancy assignments were conducted and completed.
10.| Sixty-nine  (69) research papers are | One {1) book and twenty-eight (28) research papers were 67.6
"| published by June 2023 published, and thirty (16} research papers were in different

stages of publication. Further 39 book chapters have been
accepted for publication through the IFM Book Project. This
is expected to be published in the first quarter of the
financial year 2023-24.

11.1 Two (2) training workshops conducted to | Two (2) training workshops to improve the competence of 100
improve competence of staff on the | staff on the application of CBET were conducted across the
application of CBET conducted by June | Institute Campuses as planhed.

2023

1Z2.| At least eight (8) market-driven | One (1) programme of Bachelor of Science in Cyber and One 50

programmes from—alt-faculties-accredited.- _(1) Masters of Banking and Information System Management
by June 2023 were accredited. Two (2) Master prdgrammes-(MSc.—Gyberg — - - -
Security and MSc. Applied Data and Analytics) were
submitted for final approval by NACTVET after addressing
the comments. Two (2) programmes, j.e., Bachelor of
Software Engineering and Bachelor Degree of Computer
Network Systems have been submitted to NACTVET for
review and approval.

13.| Six thousand (6000} field placements | Four thousand nine hundred and twenty (4920) field 82
secured for various students by June 2023 placements were secured. Three thousand nine hundred
and two (3902) students were given projects.

14.| Fifteen (15) classrooms equipped with | Fifteen (15) multimedia projectors, nine (9) podiums and 100
modern Information and Communication other ICT equipment for multimedia projectors were
Technology (ICT) facilities by June 2023 installed.

15.| 700 print books procured by June 2023 A total of 939 books were procured. 134

Controller and Auditor General AR/PAJIFM/2022/23
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16.] Local newspapers purchased and made | Newspapers were made available as per plan after a new 100
available by June 2023 : vendor was engaged.
17.| Standard of books improved by June 2023 7900 books were repaired and quality jmproved. 100
18.| Modern library guides, book supports and | The procurement process for purchasing modern library 50
standing banners purchased by June 2023 | guides, book supports and standing banners was started but
could not be finalized on account of limited financial
resources.
e — . 19.] Subscription to five (5) databases of e- | The subscription was finalized and payments for e-books 100
books facilitated by June 2023 were made. Users are accessing e-books through Ebsco
“Host; Emerald and other databases. .
70.| Monitoring of teaching and learning process | Monitoring of teaching and learning process was conducted 100 — |—
conducted by June 2023 as planned.
71.| Invigilation assessment exarcise conducted | Final Semester Examinations undergraduate programs and 75
by June 2023 postgraduate final examinations moderation and
. invigilation exercises for semester one of the 2022/23
academic year were assessed. The assessment report was
. prepared and submitted to DR- ARC plus the respective |
R et Faculty Deans and Heads of Department for action. - ¥ FE
' _[22.] Staff sensitization on Quality Assurance by Sensitization seminars and regular reminders on quality-
i 1. |June2023 . assurance were conducted as planned. . T
123.] Conduct Training on Quality and Risk Management members from all campuises were trained on .
Management by June 2023. leadership skills and ethics to enhance quality assuranceili:s
- - e and risk management. Further, Risk Champions were
trained in Quality Assurance-and-Risk Management. .
74.[ Six (6) staff facilitated Training on Quality | Six (6} staff attended training on Quality and Risk 100
and Risk Management by June 2023 Management as planned
25.] Inspection of quality assurance at Simiyu, | Quality assurance inspection at Simiyu, Dodoma and 100
Dodoma and Mwanza conducted by June | Mwanza Campuses was conducted as planned.
2023.
26.| Repair and maintain vehicles, generators Motor vehicles, generator, photocopier and other facilities 100
and other facitities Quarterly by June 2023. | routine services were carried out and repairs were done as
planned.
77.| Support administrative <arvices to all | Cleaning, security and Ltilities were facilitated as planned. 100
Directorates and Faculties facilitated by
June 2023
78.] At least one (1) training workshop on | No workshop was conducted during the year under review. 0
electronic resources_usage to enhance

Controller and Auditor General

AR/PA/IFM/2022/23



- ‘C) e “:Drr -~ ':r‘f)' * L. Yy : ' . T T - -
0 N A DAL T AR S RN O
LN SN :“”-.5 .__-__:-.;’-.,3: R LTt | :
T Strategic S/ ~ [ Performa-|- -
Objectives N Targets Achievements nce (%)
Utilization conducted to academic staff by
June 2023
29.] At least four {4) research skills seminars | Four (4) research skill seminars were conducted as planned. 100
conducted by June 2023 .
30.| One (1) convocation conducted by June | The convocation was conducted as part of the IFM 50 100
2023 anniversary.
Overall Cumulative Performance on Strategic Objective (A) 85
— --:E'xfand____ — and | 31.] Construction of the phase | Project of | The Institute managed to procure a supervisory consultant 8.2
maintain physical “Mwariza Campus completed by-June 2023, | for the construction of Mwanza Campus and started
infrastructure construction activities™ of ~Mwanza Campus at _Kiseke, \. ____ |_
(Objective B) jlemela District. -
Construction will continue to the next financial year.
37.| Construction Project for Geita Campus | Construction of Phase one (1) of the Geita Campus had 70.5
completed by June 2023 attained a 97.1% level of completion. Further, construction
activities for phase two (2) continued attaining a 65.1%
level of completion. Overall, the Geita construction project
[Phase | and Phase II] is at a 70.5 per cent level of
completion. The project is expected to be completed by
December 2023, Further, contracts for performing external
P works have been signed with two Government Institutions
L (TANROAD) and Chato Water Supply and Sanitation
.L__T Authority.
- 33.| Complete constructiomof Simiyu-Campus-by- “Construction_of phase 2 _structures was completed and 100
June 2023 officially entered into a Defect Liability-Period-(DLP).—The
. DLP is expected to last for twelve (12) months (1% Jan to
315t Dec, 2023). No defect has been noted until the end of
the financial year (30 June 2023). .
34.] Facilitate land and site maintenance at | Two activities for maintaining boundaries for Msata - 100
Msata by June 2023. Kihangaiko land assets were undertaken as planned in the
financial year under review (2022/23).
35.| Faciltate land and site maintenance at | Activities of maintaining boundaries of land assets in 75
Dodoma (Njedegwa and Nala) by June 2023. | Dodoma were undertaken as planned except for Nala Plot
(712 acres) which was in the final stage of subdivision
following the Government directive. Until the end of the
year, the process of subdivision large Nala (712 acres) was
at the final stage. The Institute continues to make close
follow-ups on the subdivision process.
16
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36.| At least twelve (12) Staff Houses | Twelve (12) staff houses were repaired during the financial 100
rehabilitated by June 2023 year under review.
37.1 At least one (1) student Hostels at main | Block C hostel was rehabilitated during the financial year 100
campus rehabilitated by June 2023 under review.
38.| At least B0% (613 chalrs and tables) of the | 348 classroom chairs and tables were fixed, 18 ACs were 80
demanded classroom and office facilities at | installed, 646 Tube lights were fixed and 5 white boards
S [EM main campus rehabilitated and | were fixed. Further, the procurement of a service provider
- -|-maintained by 2023 - — - . . __ to fix 265 chairs and tables was completed. This activity
“will be @xecuted during the vacation. o
_ Overall Cumulative Performance on Strategic Objective (B) 79.2 e
Enhance the | 39.] At least 70 staff equipped with customer 35 staff members were equipped with customer care skiils 100
capacity of human care skills by June 2023 during the year under review.
resources and [40.[ Thirty (30) staff attended professional | 47 <taff members attended professional conferences and 156
staff welfare conferences and short courses to improve short courses to improve competencies.
(Objective C) competence by June 2023
41. Three (3) academic Staff _undertake | Two (2) staff were selected for undertaking CISA 100
professional certifications certification and another one was selected to undertake .
- certification in Data ‘Analytics. - : :
42.| Five (5) staff facilitated to attend local ICT | Six {6) staff facilitated to attend local ICT short courses. __|. 25 o B
professional short courses and certification . ' o
courses by June 2023 .
43.| At least six (6) Tibrary staff facilitated-to- Six(6)-tibrary_staff attended short courses. 100 T
attend relevant professional short courses
by June 2023
44.) Three (3) staff trained at bachelor level by | Two (2) staff members are enrolled for bachelor’s degrees 100
June 2023 and one continues for bachelor studies while two (2) staff
members graduated.
25.] At least six (6) library staff facilitated to | Six (6) library staff attended short courses during the 100
attend relevant professional short courses financial year.
by June 2023
46.| Three (3) Staff trained at Masters level by | Three (3) staff members enrolled, and six (6) continue with 100
June 2023. Master's studies.
47.| Four {4) Staff trained at PhD level by June | Four (4) staff members enrolled, and 30 continue with PhD 100
2023. . studies.
78.] Eleven (11) finance staff attend capacity- | Eleven (11) staff members attended professional courses on 100
building training by June 2023 Auditing, Taxation and Financial reporting.
17
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.| To enhance staff welfare (extra duty

allowances) quarterly by June 2023

Extra duties were carried out to include supporting
students’ utilization of the library until 22:00 hrs. Extra
duties were facilitated as per the prescribed DLS annual
work plan.

100

At least three (3) staff sports events and
three (3) training sessions conducted by
June 2023

Three (3) staff sports events were conducted and three (3)
weekly training sessions were conducted for IFM Sports
teams. :

100

.| At least one (1) family day event conducted
.| .by June 2023

One (1) family day event was conducted as planned.

100

.| To conduct Recruitment process

and
Induction training

‘'Recruitment process was facilitated—— —

—--100-.—|

processes
governance
(Objective D)

Improve business

and

| Access and efficiency of ICT services

increased by June 2023

The following main activities were executed to enhance
access and efficiency to ICT:

Heavy-duty photocopier and printer machines are
serviced and maintained.

Annual service and maintenance contract for four (4)
heavy-duty photocopier machines compteted.

Three Layer two (2) switches at Block E and
Procurement office installed.

Three, Layer two (2) switches at Block E and
Procurement office installed.

Two (2) digital cameras and signature pads for printing
students' IDs at Dodoma and Simiyu Campus installed.

vif)

ix)

Thirty-one (31) additional CCTV-cameras-for-the-main-
campus were installed.

ICT equipment for preventive maintenance to all IFM

campuses distributed.

ICT Systems and services (Email, e-office, EMS,

Turnitin, Intranet, E-Learning, Library Information

systems, Web Portal, Sophos, LAN, CCTV, Zoom Video

Conference and Backup systems) maintained.

Critical information systems backups completed.

100

54,

Wireless internet access extended by June
2023

)

i}

Installation of six (6) indoor wireless access points at
Block A (5th and 6th floors) offices at Main Campus
completed.

Installation of six (6) outdoor wireless access points at
Main Campus is in progress.

80
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55.| Nine (9) printers and fifteen (15) scanners | Fifteen (15) scanners and nine (9) printers were installed as 100
are installed by June 2023. per the action plan.
561 The Institute’s local area network | Restructuring of Local Area Network (LAN) at Block A (5% 100
restructured by June 2023 and 6% Floors) offices at the main Campus completed.
57.1 One hundred and fifty (150) computers and | Fifteen (15) laptops were procured, configured and 104.2
fifteen (15) laptops installed by June 2023, | distributed to users and one hundred and fifty (150)
: computers were installed. The installation of an additional
o _ seven (7) laptops was in progress.
58.| Three (3) modules of the ERP System | The following ERP-Modules were developed:- ... . _ . _|—100_. _
implemented by June 2023 ) ERP Student Welfare Management module developed.
i) E-help desk module was developed.
ity Configuration and integration of Koha and EMS is in
progress. :
59.| Ninety-five per cent (95%) of policies and | Six (6) guidelines and operating manuals due for review 100
guidelines due for review are timely [ were facilitated. These included: Business Continuity Plan
. reviewed or developed annually by June [ (BCP), Risk Management Guidelines, Quality Assurance
T 2023, Guidelines, Quality Assurance Plan and Examination
Regulations.
60| Fifty percentage (50%) of all of Institute’s | Electronic handling of documents was as follows: 100
documents handled electronically by June | 1) Management meeting documents are uploaded into the
2023 Khanbalik system for sharing electronically.
i) Students appealed online through the EMS system.
i) Students complain online-through-the-EMS-system. —
iv) Students applied field attachment online through the
EMS system. ‘
v) Students fill out clearance forms online through the EMS
system.
vi) Staff files and Internal memos are shared through the e-
Office system.
vil) Documents, news, forms, policies, regulations and
guidelines are shared online to each staff through the
Intranet system.
vii) Internal communications such as meetings and
announcements are shared through the E-mail system.
61.1 ICT Services and software licenses are | The following ICT services and -software were renewed 99.3
renewed by June 2023 during the financial year:
) E-office services license renewed
19
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ii) Adobe Ticense and SPSS license renewed
iii) Kaspersky Antivirus Software
iv) Zoom video conference license renewed
v) Sage Evolution annual maintenance renewed
vi) SSL certificates renewed
vil) Backup service renewed
vilj) Turn it in software renewed
ix) Tele form software renewed
——s - - - - B x) Internet service charges are in progress
62.| Power back-up for ICT facilities enhanced | The installation of two-(2)-centralized UPS was-in progress. |95 __| ___
by June 2023
&3. At least 50% of management members | Fifty-eight (58) management members were trained in 96.7
trained in leadership skills by June 2023 leadership skills.
64.| Meetings for governance organs facilitated The governance organs meetings for respective quarters 100
quarterly by June 2023 were facilitated as planned.
€5.| Risk register reviewed and updated by June Institutional Risk Register and related Risk Treatment 100
2023. Action Plan were reviewed and updated as planned.
66.| Audit procedures /programs far various Procedures or programs for various auditable universes 100
auditable universes developed by June | were developed as per plan.
2023. .
7. Risk-based Internal audit plan developed, | Annual Internal Audit Plan was prepared and approved by 88
approved and implemented by June 2023, the Audit Committee. The approved plan comprised
twenty-two (22) auditable universes, The remaining 12% of
audit activities relate to ICT and tiumarn resources for which-|—-
the Office of Internal Audit lacks the expertise. It is
expected to be prepared in the next financial year.
Dverall Cumulative Performance on, Strategic Objective (D) ) ) 95.7
Improve students’ | 68.| Facilitate six (6) staff to attend a short [ Six (6) staff attended short training on student management 100
academic and course on student management by June | as planned.
social experience. 2023
69.| Conduct four (4) leadership and career | Four (4) seminars on leadership and career development 100
development seminars by June 2023 were conducted as per the annual work plan.
70.| Four (4) students’ group counselling | Four {4) students’ group counselling sessions were 100
sessions facilitated by June 2023 successfully facilitated as per plan.
71.] One thousand three hundred seventeen | Eight hundred forty-three (843) students were allocated 64
{1,317) students were allocated in the | hostels.
hostels owned by the Institute.
20
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Perfarma
nce (%)

[ Two (2) community social responsibility

events conducted by June 2023

Two (2) community social responsibility
conducted as planned.

events were

100

73.

Four (4) sexual harassment seminars
conducted to students by June 2023

Four (4) sexual harassment seminars were conducted as

planned.

100

74.

Fight (8) sports and games events for
students facilitated by June 2023

Eight (8) sports and games events for students were
facilitated during the year under review.

100

~Enhance_financial
capacity and
sustainability (F)

75.

udget and annual work plan conducted by
June 2023.

Overall Cumulative Performance
Monitoring and Evaluation of the Institute

on Strategic Objective (E)

94.9

[ The performance reports and Monitoring and Evaluation
-(MEE)__reports were prepared and disseminated to

and decision-making.

appropriate governance organs for deliberations; guidance-

100

76.

The MITEF, annual budget and related work
plan for 2023/24 prepared and approved by
June 2023

Preparation of the Institute’s MTEF, annual budget and
work plan for the financial year 2023/24 was completed and
submitted to relevant authorities for approval. Until the
end of the financial year, the MTEF, Budget and Annual
Work Plan had been approved by all relevant Authorities.
The implementation. of the MTEF Annual Budget and Work
Plan for FY 2023/24:-will'start-in-July 2023.

100

T Midterm Review of the Institute Strategic

Plan (2021/22-2025/26) conducted by June
2023.

The Institute Strategic- Plan-(2021/22- - 2025/26) was
reviewed -as planned to- reflect: changed-operational and
economic realities and lessons learnt from two years of
implementation. Until the end of the financial year, the

reviewed Strategic Plan was ready for the internal approval

80

process before final approval by relevant Government
Authorities.

78.

and Financial Statement for the year ended
June 2022 submitted to Controller and
Auditor General on or before 30 Sept 2022
and audit completed and approved by CAG
by June 2023

Report for those charged with Governance_

Report for those charged with Governance and Financial
Statement for the year ended June 2022 were submitted
and approved by the Controller and Auditor General (CAG)
as per plan.

100

79.

At least 95% of revenue collected annually
by June 2023

Revenue amounting to TZS 26,411.5 million was collected
out of TZS 27,575.1 million planned from own sources as at
30 June 2023 which is 95.8% of annual plan target.

100

B80.

Government subvention for salaries, OC and

development facilitated by June 2023.

Government paid personal emoluments for July 2022 to
June 2023 for staff on the payroll as budgeted.

100.6
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The Government released funds for development for the 74.3
financial year 2022/23 for construction activities at Geita
and Mwanza.
81.| Quarterly budgetary report produced by 20 | Al quarterly budgetary performance reports were prepared 100
of the following month. and submitted to the respective Ministry on time.
§2.| Unmodified audit report obtained by June | The Tnstitute obtained an unqualified audit opinion for the 100
- financial reports of the financial year ended 30 June 2022,
e RO W OSITe‘tElliEé”ntﬁ:ﬁinﬁiﬁﬁifﬁtﬁiﬂﬂﬁiféiét'iié‘i(ﬁ) T ALT FoEX T o g ae G .0 SRR
Comp Four (4) staff “sportsevents- conducted by | Four | (4) staff sports events were conducted during the 100
National Policy of June 2023 financial yeéar ended 30 June 2023. ___ J
Communicable 84.| Two (2) voluntary counselting and testing | 115 staff attended a testing session conducted by osHA— —| —100-—-|———-
and Non- sessions conducted by June 2023
communicable 85.| Four (4) awareness programs on AIV/AIDS | Four (4) sessions were conducted during the financial year 100
Diseases {G) and non-communicable diseases conducted | where one hundred and twenty (1 20) staff attended.
for staff by June 2023
86.| Four (4) HIV/AIDS and Non-Communicable | Four (4) awareness sessions on HIV/AIDS were conducted as 100
diseases awareness programs conducted by | per plan. :
June 2023
IStrategiciopjectivel G)ES il T R Nt i Fn at B9 3EBESS
Two (2) awareness seminars on anti Two (2) awareness seminars on anti-corruption 100
corruption and code of ethics seminars conduct were conducted and 145 staff attended.
facilitated to staff by June 2023
T Four (4) awareness seminars —on—ant-- Four_ (4)_awareness seminars on anti-corruption were 100
strategy corruption facilitated by June 2023 conducted as per plan.
{Objective H)
89.] IFM integrity committee trained by June | No training was conducted as the President’s Office, Public 0
2023 Service Management rescheduled the training.
90.| IFM  integrity committee conducting | One (1) Integrity Committee meeting was conducted during 50
meeting semi-annually by June 2023 the during the year.
91.] All procurements conducted competitively All procurements were conducted competitively. 100
by June 2023

] -:.T—_'_-'-_" — P -
overalliRerformancel GimStrategiciobe
Overall Performance on All Objectives

Source: Monitoring and Evaluation Report for financial year 2022123
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2,7 STATEMENT OFISERVICE PERFORMAtiI‘CE IN?ORII\ATION

The Institute generatés competent graduates by transforming inputs from the approved
curricula by NACTVET by using appropriate teaching methodologies, competent academicians,
pedagogies, and conducive infrastructures. The availabfe competent graduates are supplied in
the labour market to support national economic growth and create job opportunities. The
Institute improves its infrastructure base by acquiring nlew infrastructures and technologies, as

well as through maintebance and refurbishment of existing infrastructures at Dar es Salaam and
other upcountry campuses.

The Institute’s human|capital is contributed by employees, service providers, suppliers, and
contractors with their|competencies, capabilities, and| experience. The Institute provides an
equal employment opportunity and therefore the process of recruitment is transparent, thereby
improving the employee base. Furthermore, the Institute continues to enhance human capital
by conducting timely :training needs assessments and [developing new skills and training for
employees to ensure efficiency and effectiveness to attain its strategic objectives. The Institute
also continues to engage with key stakeholders and majntain goed relationships,

The Institute’s social and relationship capital is based on interactions with customers, suppliers,
communities, and the public in general. The Institute contributes in many ways towards
development, includir:lg enabling economic growth through appropriate graduates supplied
yearly to the economy, job creation, and skills develo?ment as well as improving the lives of
many citizens through the Institute’s corporate social programmes and socio-economic
development activities. Strong stakeholder relationships are critical to the institute's ability to
create value and there:fore one of the main areas of foc‘j.ls is restoring the trust of the Institute’s
stakeholders. The Institute's intellectual capital incll.lhdes technology, a key enabler of the
business, which compr'ises, information, and operational technology; organizational knowledge,
systems, policies, and procedures; as well as research and innovation to industrialize future
technologies and improve current operations.

The Institute also plays a significant developmental role in supporting the National Development
Plan by supporting job creation, economic and skills development, transformation, and other

- national initiatives. This is in addition to the Institute's mandate: to offer certificates, diplomas,

bachelor’s degrees and postgraduate programmes.

The key performanczl'a' objective of the Institute is|the delivery of academic services to
stakeholders most effectively and efficiently. The Institute has several customers to whom
service is provided ranging from regulatory authorities to normal stakeholders such as students,
suppliers and donors.|To assess whether the Institute has achieved its performance objective,
the Institute reviews its planned operational performance by comparing actual performance
against the budget during the year. The operational performance of the Institute during the
year under review is summarized in Table 2 as followsE

23
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Table 2: Operational pPerformance - T - - N
rSIN Activities Planned by June Reasons for Variation
2023 Percentage Change
. Actual by June 2023 + against Plan (%)

1. Students enrolied/ registered for academic 15,667 14,491 7.5 Stff Competition among

year 2022/23. Higher Learning Institutions

offered the same courses as

IFM.

1 All eligible students were facilitated with 9,022 9,022 NIL N/A
— | payments —for ~meals—_.and _ accommodation
allowances from HELSB, B . [
3. Staff seminars on consultancy and research 8 5 ——37.5— - —-— |Tight schedule of academic
skills are conducted. staff. T
4, Consultancy assignments are undertaken. 17 4 23.5 1. Tight  schedule of
academic staff due to
inadequate staffing.

ii. Inadequate skills
required to solicit
consultancy
assignments.

iii. Consultancy and
training guidelines are
not favourable to
attracting faculty
members to conduct
and apply for
consultancy.

5. Registered finalists from various programmes 90% 85.4% 4.6 Faiure of some of the
at IFM campuses graduated. students to meet the
standards of the Institute.
6. Short courses conducted. 35 23 65.7 . Tignt schedule of
academic staff.

i. Consultancy and
training guidelines are
not favourable to
attracting faculty
members. to conduct

L short courses.
25
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7. Research papers published by academicians in 69 28 59.4 Tight schedule of academic
reputable journals. staff due to the existence
of other activities.
8. Narket-driven programmes from all faculties 8 2 25 Tight schedule of academic
accredited by NACTVET. staff who are responsible
for curricula development
B due to inadequate staffing.
9. Field placements are--secured for various_ 6,000 4,920 18 nadequate linkage and
students. ) e - - _ collaboration with industry
and employers. —-
10. | Classrooms equipped with modern Information 15 15 NIL N/A
and Communication Technology (ICT) facilities.
T1. | Print books procured to facilitate various 700 939 -34 Prices of printed books
programmes offered at the Institute. were reasonable which led
the Institute to procure
more books within the same
budget. L -
12. | Construction of Phase 1 Project of Mwanza Phase 1 | Preliminary  Activities 8.2 Prolonged “procurement
Campus. completed. Partially Completed. ‘process of a_consultant, |-
which  delaged. ~the|-- -
construction process. -* .
13. [ Construction Project for—Geita—CGampus- Geita___ _Campus | Construction of Phase 70.5 Delay in the procurement
completed. Completed one (1) of Geita Campus process.
had attained a 97.1%
level of completion.
Further, construction
activities for phase two
{2) continued attaining
a 65.1% level of
completion. Overall,
the Geita construction
project [Phase | and
Phase [I] is at a 70.5 per
cent level of
completion. The
project is expected to
be completed by
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Actual by June 2023 against Plan (%)
December 2023,
Further, contracts for
performing  external
works have been signed
with two Government
Institutions (TANROAD)
and Chato Water Supply
and Sanitation
I I ot e cTTTT TAuthority.™™ " R -
14. | Complete construction of Simiyu Campus. Simiyu  Campus | Construction of phase 2 NIL N/A
Completed structures was
completed and
officially entered into a
Defect Liability Period
{DLP). The BDLP s
) expected to last for
' twelve (12) months (1
B January to 31
December, 2023). No
defect has so far been
noted until the end of
the financial year (30
June Z073).
15. | Facilitate land and site maintenance at Msata, | Maintenance at | Facilitated as Planned. NIL N/A
Nala and Njedengwa. Msata, Nala and
Njedengwa
facilitated.
16. | Staff Houses rehabilitated. 12 12 NIL N/A
17. | Student Hostels at main campus were 1 1 NIL N/A
rehabilitated.
18. | Chairs and tables of the demanded classroom BO% 80% NIL N/A
and office facilities at IFM main campus were
rehabilitated and maintained.
19. | Staff equipped with customer care skills, BO% 80% NIL N/A
Professional conferences and short courses to
improve competence and efficiency, .
20. | Staff trained at Masters level. 3 3 NIL N/A
27
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S/N Activities Planned by June Reasons for Variation®
2023 Percentage Change
Actual by June 2023 against Plan (%)
71. | Staff trained at PhD level. 4 4 NIL N/A
72. | Staif sports events, retreats and family events 3 3 NIL N/A
33, | Conduct Recruitment process and Induction 1 1 NIL N/A
training.
74, | Wireless internet access extended, Wireless internet ji. Installation of six 6) 80 Financial constraints.
access extended | indoor wireless access
at Main Campus. points at Block A (5th
-1 — - = - - I A and 6th floors) offices
“17at” Main Campus- - — S S
completed.
i{. Installation of six (6)
outdoor wireless
access points at Main
Campus is in progress.
75. | Institute local area network restructured. The local area | Restructuring of Local NIL N/A
’ network was | Area Network (LAN) as
restructured. planned.
26, | Mmodules of ERP System implemented. 3 NIL - NIK =i s
77. | Governance is enhanced by ensuring policies 95% 95% NIL® NIA
and guidelines due for review are timely -
reviewed or developed.
28, | The irfﬁtﬁté"s—documents_are—handled--_The_instituteis Compteted as Planned NIL N/A
electronically documents are
handled
electronically
39. | Internal Audit Activities performed as planned [Internal  Audit Completed - @as NIL N/A
Functions Planned
X enhanced
30. | Students are allocated to the hostels owned by 1317 843 36 Difficult caused by the old
the Institute. Hostel building structures.
31, | Community social responsibility events 2 2 NIL N/A
conducted
32, |Sports and games events for students 8 8 NIL N/A
facilitated
33, | Monitoring and Evaluation of the Institute | Monitoring  and Conducted as planned 100 N/A
budget and annual work plan conducted Evaluation of the | and reports submitted
Institute’s
28
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activities timely | to the Governing
conducted. Council.
34. | The MTEF, annual budget and related work plan | The MTEF, | Completed and NiL N/A
prepared and approved annual  budget approved as planned
and related work
_ plan for prepared
——— o and approved
35. | Enhance Compliance with the public Audit Act Report for those Prepared — _ ~and NIL N/A
by ensuring that the Reports for those charged | charged with | submitted as planned. - T NS I
with Governance and Financial Statements are Governance and B
prepared and submitted to the CAG Financial
' Statements
prepared and
submitted to the
CAG
36. | Ensure Revenue from all sources is collected 95% . - 95% NIL N/A
37. | Ensure the Institute’s Financial records are | Unmodified audit | Obtained as planned NIL N/A
properly maintained in the books of accounts | report obtained Co -
) . by
- 38. | Ensure compliance with the National HIV/ AIDS | Training, Completed as Planned NIL N/A
Policy an‘dgnon-communicable_dis_eases Awareness
programmes programmes and
testing sessions.
39. | Ensure compliance with the Anti-Corruption Fully compliance Comply as planned NIL N/A
Policy and Code of ethics with anti- :
corruption policy
and code of
ethics on
academic
services,
procurement and
other related
activities.
Source: Institute’s Budget/ Work Plan for the financial year 2022723
29
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'12.8 INSTITUTE OPERATIlNG MODEL
- | The Institute is wholly m!Nned by the Government of T?nzania. in undertaking its core
- | functions, the IFM is guided by the parliament Act No. 3 of 1972 as R.E. 2004
}
The IFM s currently an au}onomous institution with full accreditation of the National Council
for Technical and Vocational Education and Training (NACTVEI'), providing training, research
and consultancy services’li in banking, insurance, financial management and other retated
. disciplines. Table 3 expla'ins the Institute’s Operating model.
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Table 3: Institute Operating Model
CODE | OBJECTIVE STRATEGY INPUTS PROCESSES OUTPUTS OUTCOMES
A | Strengthen A.1. Develop new i.  Financial 7 CBET Delivery |i. Accredited i.  Stakeholders’
the quantity innovative and Resources Model; innovative and Satisfaction;
and quality of market-driven fi. Human Capital | ii.  Programme market-driven fl.  Competent
training, programmes differentiation programmes; graduates;
research and techniques and | fi. Provision of [il.  Increase
consultancy modules; curricula of a good Employee Morale
services iil.  Modern standard v. Institute's
T —— _—_— . : Marketing iii. Increase the Reputation
- ————-- —— |- —— -.strategies. . _|. . _number of experts [v.  Increase Revenue
(Online) to in the market; ——from——exchange-
capture the | iv. Increase transactions  of
intended programmes the Institute.
market; offered by the
iv.  Involvement of Institute;
Internal and | v. Increase the total
external Revenue of the
stakeholders. Institute; and
R - . S vi: Increase the
ST S L I e Visibility of the
Institute,
A.Z. Transform the |- 1.  Financial j. ~ Establish i. Accredited i.  Provide quality
—axisting Resources reliable, modern innovative and training
programmes ii.  Human Capifal and —constantly magket-driven programmes;
te updated _ programmes; ii.  Providing
jnnovative and . . ii. Provision of
market-driven information curricula of a excellent
programmes systems; good standard; services  to
fi. Provision of good {ii. Increase the meet and
quality  books total Revenue of exceed |
and the |nstitute; CUStomers'
A and :
publications; iv. Increase the expectations.
jii.  Establish <t
o lees visibility of the
simplified Institute.
learning systems
and structures;
and
iv.  Provision of
modern training
32
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"Table 3: Institute Operating Model
CODE | OBJECTIVE STRATEGY INPUTS PROCESSES OUTPUTS OUTCOMES
facilities and
infrastructures.

A.3. Adopt i.  Financial i.  Transform i.  Enhance i. Increase the
innovative Resources training student number of
teaching and | §i. Human Capital culture; learning students who
learning iii,  Modern fi.  Encourage staff process; finally acquire
approaches Infrastructures to enhance | ii.  Improve educational

- } —and—- ——} - o _. their_ student success;
methodologies capabilities and"[ " —retention—and-|—ii.- —Improved
talents; engagement; problem-
fii. Introduce new | iii.  Fostering solving and
teaching critical decision-
strategies and thinking skills making ability.
methods; and creativity
jv. Build flexible
learning
environments

A.4. Enhance i,  Financial i. Having i,  Number of | Producing qualified
academic Resources competent students human power that
performance il,  Human Capital teaching staff; graduating with | accelerates economic

fil.  Availability of | ii. Developing high grade | development and .
‘Teaching essential point average | solves the real
Infrastructures learning skills; {(GPA); problems of a

iil.  Enhancing fi.  Number of | community;
teacher-student students
communication; graduating;
iv.  Updated iii.  Increasing
educational students with
materials intellectual
available; level, highly
v.  Availability and motivated and
use of who are skilled;
technology for | iv. Students who
teaching and have higher
learning self-esteem
and self-
confidence
33
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CODE | OBJECTIVE STRATEGY INPUTS PROCESSES OUTPUTS OUTCOMES
A.5. Improve i.  Financial i. Availability of i Secure field | 1. Enhancing the
partnerships Resources Memorandum  of placements for Industrial  Linkage
and linkages | il Human Capital Understanding the Institute's portfolio.
with industry | iii. Industrial (Mou) with students; ii. Ensure  proactive
and Linkage Industries; fi. Increase and timely planning
stakeholders Guidelines . Conduct collaboration with professionals.
o conference, with industrial;
h e — e research and | . Increase
— —|— innovation— —--— -} Revenue  for
programmes the Institute——|——~
ii.Establish of
External  Linkage
unit
iv. Aligning the
Institute’s semester
schedule with the
professional’s time .

A.6. Increase  the i.  Financial i. Comply with | i. Number of research | i.- Enhance
volume and Resources Research Guidelines |- publications academic staff with
quality of | #.  Human Capital to ephance the {i. Number of | research and
research, fii.  Availability of quality . of consultancies consultancy skills
publications Research and publications secured and | i Increase  the
and Consultancy i tquip—academic __performed visibility of the
consultancy Guidelines staff with research iit. Quality Research —Institute-worldwide. |

and consuttancy Publications ii. Increase  the

skills budget for research
funds  mobilization
skills seminars.

A.7. Increase i.  Financial 1. Establish a proper i.  Number of | 1. Enhance academic
externally Resources plan to conduct a external funds staff with research.
funded #.  Human Capital seminar on research secured. {i. Increase the
research {ii.  Training/ fund mobilization. #i. Increase the visibitity  of the

Seminar to | il. Motivate . level of Institute worldwide.
secure academicians 1o collaboration  [iii. Continue to solicit
externally apply for externally with external external funds for
funded funded research stakeholders. research.
research iv. Proper plan to
jv.  Availabilityof a prepare research
proper plan fundabte proposal
34
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~Table 3: Institute Operating Model
CODE | OBJECTIVE STRATEGY INPUTS PROCESSES OUTPUTS OUTCOMES
A.8. improve  the {.  Financial 1. Availability of [1. Report on the Routine maintenance
learning Resources maintenance and Condition of the | toimprove the learning
environment if.  Human Capital rehabilitation Plan. learning environment
i. Availability of Annual environment
Procurement Plan " rehabilitated and
i, Quality of the maintained.
\earning environment ii. Availability of a
i [ assessed by OSHA and conducive learning
other-internal.organs_ environment.
such as the Quality
Assurance Unit.

B Expand  and |B.1. Acquire and j.  Financial 1. Avalability of | Number of physical | Improve project
maintain develop new Resources Project Plan facilities acquired and | management controls
physical physical #i.  Availabitity of | 1i. Adherence to developed.
infrastructure facilities Strategic Plan project

iii.  Availability of management
Technical controls
Human Capital )

- B.2. Rehabilitation i.  Financial . Availability of Number of teaching and Routine maintenance
and Resources Rehabilitation other facilities | to improve the learning
Maintenance ji. Human Capital Plan rehabilitated and | environment
of—Teaching-|il. Availability of | il Adherence to maintained.
and other Annual rehabilitation
facilities Procurement management

Plan controls; and
Procurement
Procedures.

C Enhance  the |C.1. Improve <taif | 1.  Financial i.  Identify S/l | Human Capital of the j. Enhance the
capacity  of capacity Resources Gaps Institute improved to quality of service
human #i.  Training Needs | ii. Develop Training achieve strategic offered at the
resources and Assessment Programs objectives. Institute.
staff welfare §ii.  Training Policy {ii.  Monitor Progress {i, Increase revenue

jv.  Evaluate Resuits by attracting more
research,
consultancy  and
other activities.
C.2. Enhance staff | . Financial i,  Assess the | i.  Efficlent 1. Job Satisfaction
welfare and Resources current state of Performance {i. Enhance
retention Productivity
35
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Table 3: Institute Operating Model

CODE | OBJECTIVE STRATEGY INPUTS PROCESSES OUTPUTS OUTCOMES
ii.  Availability of staff  welfare [{l.  Lowstaff tumover [ili. Reduced
Incentive and retention. rate, | Absenteeism
Scheme fl. Develop a plan fil. High level of |iv. Reduced Turnover
that targets employee Costs
identified areas satisfaction. v. Increase
for iv.  Increase employee’s
improvement. employee creativity and
R iii.  Training and commitment innovation
T T 7y T T 7T |7 ——Support-personal- : - _ |vi,—-Reduced_Turnover_|__ .
growth and Costs
development. fii. Increase Institute
iv.  Availability of Reputation
recognition fli. Build Corporate
programs  that Culture.
reward
employees for
their

contributions to o ; 5

the Institute’s e e -

SUCCess. . -
v. Work .

Environment:

Create—a—safe;
healthy, and
inclusive  work

envircnment
where
employees feel
valued and
respected.

D | lmprove J.1. Design and| i. Financial i. Designing and | i. Understand the | Enhance business
business develop Resources developing Business  Goals | processes and systems
processes and effective ii.  Human Capital effective  business and Objectives to ensure the
governance business processes and [ii. Analyze Existing | attainability of

processes and systems by clearly Processes: A | stratesgic objectives.
systems understanding the thorough analysis
Institute’s of current
objectives processes is
ii. Design Process Flow critical to look for

36
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Table 3: Institute Operating Model
CODE | OBJECTIVE STRATEGY INPUTS PROCESSES OUTPUTS OUTCOMES
iil. Develop a system to inefficiencies,
capture the bottlenecks,
Institute’s core redundancies,
activities such as and areas that
ERP, require
iv. Implement and improvement.
Monitor; ifi. Integrate
v. Continuous Technology
T |7 — - - ————=——|~—Improvement——to-|iv— -- Develop—Metrics- —
enhance effective for Measurement
business processes. |v.  Monitor and
Review,

J.Z. Compliance f.  Financial i. Understanding 1. Legal Obligations Enhancing a high level
with Resources Applicable Rules | fi. Risk Mitigation of compliance may
regulatory ii.  Human Capital and Regulations: fil. Stakeholder’s Trust | minimize the

L requirements | ifi.  Training/ ii. Conduct Risk | iv. Increase the | occurrence of material
Seminars  on Assessment Institute’s misstatements  and
compliance iii. Develop Policies and Reputation related legal impacts.
o matters Procedures v. Create competitive
iv. Training and advantage.
Seminars
v. Implementation of
Compliance
Programs.
vi. Monitoring and
Auditing.
vii. Proper maintenance
of Bocumentation

J.3. Strengthen i.  Financial i. Seek Education and | i. Building an effective | Enhance leadership
management Resources Training Institute skills to atlow members
and leadership | .  Training . Gain Practicat |ii. Encouraging to make appropriate
skills Programme Experience teamwoark and | decisions for  the

fii.  Succession Plan |ifi, Attacked to a collaboration betterment of the
Mentor or Coach iii. Providing Institute and the nation
iv. Stay Updated with mentorship and | at large.
Best Practices coaching
v. Encourage feedback [iv. Adapting to change
from  colleagues,
superiors, and
37
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Table 3: Institute Operating Model )
CODE | OBJECTIVE STRATEGY INPUTS PROCESSES OUTPUTS OUTCOMES
subordinates.
Generally,
Constructive
criticism is
invaluable for
continuous

improvement in

.management skills.
-vi—Practice- Resiliences- | —

Leadership involves
facing challenges
head-on.
Developing
resilience can help
manage stress and
overcomme obstacles

effectively.

J.4. Enhance i.  Financial i. Assessment of |i. Alows for the | Enhance security
security Resources Current  Security identification  of | systems to ensure the | .
systems fi.  Human Capital Posture: vulnerabilities and | Institute's information, -

{ii.,  Government ii. Risk Analysis: weaknesses  that | physical items and
Directives, jil. Development of a need immediate | members of staff are
Policies, Security Ptan: ___ action_to_address | safe from
Framewarks iv. Implementation of them. intruders/hackers.
and Guidelines. Security Measures:  |ii. Update and patch

v. Training and all software and
Awareness: hardware
vi. Monitoring and compornents
Detection: regularly.
vil. Incident Response fii. Implementing
Planning: multi-factor
bhiii. Regular  Updates authentication
and Patches: (MFA) to enhance
ix. Audit and security systems.
Compliance: iv. Ensuring that all
%. Continuous sensitive
Improvement: information is
encrypted can help
prevent
38
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Table 3: Institute Operating Model .
CODE | OBJECTIVE STRATEGY INPUTS PROCESSES OUTPUTS OUTCOMES
unauthorized
access even if
other security
measures fail.
v. Regularly backing
up data ensures
that in the event of
a breach or data
loss - incident,
critical information
can be recovered.
vi. Network
monitoring and
intrusion detection
systems that can
detect unusual
patterns that may
indicate a security
. breach.
J.5. Increase i.  Financial i, Assessment of | i. Enhanced Ensure reliability and
reliability and Resources Current Efficiency: accessibility of ICT
) - - — — |- - -accessibility__ [_ii. _ HumanCapital | Infrastructure ii.  Improved infrastructure to
of ICT | iii.  Availability of [ #i.” Risk  ~— "~~~ — —Communication:-| support the-operation
infrastructure ICT guidelines Management fii. Streamlined of the Institute to
to support the te cover for | §ii,. Redundancy and Institute’s attain strategic
operation of proper usage of Failover Systems Operations: objectives.
the Institute facilities and [ tv. Regular Updates | iv.  Enhanced
infrastructures. and Maintenance Collaboration
v.  Disaster with  industry
Recovery Plan and other
vi. Scalable stakeholders:
Architecture v.  Scalability:
vii.  Monitoring Tools
viii.  Training and
Support
. Ensure Quality
Service
Providers
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Table 3: Institute Operating Model | .
CODE | OBJECTIVE STRATEGY INPUTS PROCESSES OUTPUTS OUTCOMES
x. _ Compliance with
Standards
xi.  Investment 1in
Modern
Technologies
. xii.  User
Accessibility
Considerations:

J.6. Increase the 1. Financlal 1. Develop a Strong i. Implementing a | Proper Marketing
visibility and Resources Online Presence robust digital | strategies can increase.
marketing of | ii. Human Capital through  Website marketing strategy | the visibility of the
the Institute fit.  Avaflability of Optimization and to increase the | Institute.

Marketing Social Media visibility of an
Guidelines. Engagement institute
. Content Marketing ii. Developing high-
such as Blogging and quality and relevant
Video Content content is a
{ii. Search Engine powerful way to ..
Marketing (SEM) dncrease  visibility -
- ] through Goosgle and attract the
S P - L AdWords and attention of
T —-- Remarketing potential students
Campaigns .—and___ __other
iv. Public Relations and stakeholders. T - -
Media Outreach by [ii. Hosting events,
using Press Releases workshops,
and Media Coverage webinars, and
v. Alumni Engagement seminars related to
through Alumni the institute’s areas
Networks, and of expertise can help
Alumni Events in showcasing its
vi. Collaborate  with thought leadership
Industry Partners and expertise.
vii. Attend Conferences [iv. Effective public
and Events relations efforts can
i, Utilize  Influencer contribute to ralsing
Marketing awareness about the
ix. Measure and institute’s
Analyze Results achievements,
40
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Table 3: Institute Operating Model . - )
CCDE | OBJECTIVE STRATEGY INPUTS PROCESSES QUTPUTS OUTCOMES
initiatives, and
contributions to the
community.

J.7. Manage i.  Financial {. Risk Identification i. Comprehensive Managing institutional
institutional Resources il. Risk Assessment {dentification  and | risks contributes to an
risks ii.  Availability of Jil. Risk Mitigation assessment of | Institute’s overall

- — |- Risk champlons [iv. Risk Monitoring and potential risks. stability,
4if.  Guidelines for Reporting ii. Reduce the | sustainability, and
Developing Risk |v. Crisis Management probability of risk | ability to navigate
and Fraud 1. Compliance and occurrence or | uncertainties
Management Regulatory minimize their | effectively.
Considerations potential impact.
vil, Risk Culture and Jii. Involves ongoing
Governance monitoring and
viii. Training  and reporting
Education mechanisms to track
the status of
identified risks and
evaluate the
effectiveness of
-—— R mitigation
i -t - — - __ | strategies.
iv. Ensure compliance|- - - _
with relevant laws,
regulations, and
industry standards.
v. Development of
crisls preparedness
and response plans.
vi. Enhanced
Organizational
) Resilience ,

J.8. Develop i.  Financial i. Define the scope and | {. Quality audit | Developing quality
quality audit Resources objectives of the management audit management
management fi.  Human Capital quality audit programs and | programs and
programmes fi. Establish an audit procedures for | procedures for the
and team. ensuring that an | Institute enhanced
procedures Institute's compliance, improved

operations meet the | operational efficiency,
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Table 3: Institute Operating Model . _
CODE | OBJECTIVE STRATEGY INPUTS PROCESSES OUTPUTS OUTCOMES
Jil. Develop a required standards | risk mitigation, quality
comprehensive Risk- and regulatfons, improvement,
based audit plan. {f. Implementing a Risk- | stakeholder
iv. Conduct the audit. Based Approach in | confidence, data-
v. Analyze and report audit assignments. | driven decision
on the audit findings. [iii. Training and | making, continuous
_— _ vi. Implement Competency monitoring and
corrective  actions Development  for | evaluation, as well as
and follow-up. internal auditors. standardization of
iv. Utllizing Technology | processes. i
for Audit
Management to
improve efficlency
and effectiveness.
v. Quality audit
management
programs  include
mechanisms for .
continuous R
improvement  and
_ _ ] ‘ monitoring. _ R
E lmprove —  |E:1--Improve — —|--.. —FEinancial 1. Assessment of | {.  Enhanced Improving  academic
students’ academic and Resources —Current— ~Support-{-——Counselling -- --| and social_support for
academic and social support | il.  Human Capital Systems In place Services. students can create an
social for students jii.  Students Identifying Areas of |fi. Peer Mentoring | environment that
experience Programme Improvement. Programs. nurtures student
ifi. Professional iii.  Academic success and well-being.
Development  for Tutoring Services,
Educators. iv. Community
jii. Collaboration with Engagement
Community Initiatives.
Partners. v.  Accessible Mental
iy,  Utilizing Health Resources.
Technology. vi. Collaborative
v. Promoting a Learning
Positive Academic Environments.
. Climate. vil. Holistic Wellness
vi. Continuous Programs
monitoring of the
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Table 3: institute O erating Model s
CODE | OBJECTIVE STRATEGY INPUTS PROCESSES OUTPUTS OUTCOMES
mplemented viii. Access to .
interventions is Academic
cruclal to @s5sess Resources
their impact on
student academic
performance - and
B well-being.

F Enhance f.1 Enhance i. Increase 1. Strengthening . Fiscal Enhanced revenue
financial revenue enrolment - Collection Policies. Sustainability. collection is vital for
capacity and collection {i. Training {i, Conducting Regular | il. Reduced  Budget sustaining the
sustainability facilities Customer Deficits. Institute’s operations, |.

fii. Human Capital Communication. ii{. Encourage compliance, policy
$if. Monitoring Key Investment in | reforms, and capacity
performance major projects building.
Indicators (KPis). iv. Attainability of
jv. Training and strategic
Empowering. objectives.
Collection Teams.
v. Continuous
Improvement
h - through Feedback
- S Analysist ,

IF.2. Increase 1. Increase ~— |7 f.—Market__ “Research | i Market Expansion Increasing revenue
revenue from research  and and Analysls. | —and—- — — . | from external sources
external consultancies {i. Diversification of piversification. can~ “enhance- - -the.
sources fi. Human Capital service offerings by |ii. Strategic Institute’s ability to

fil.  Availability of the Institute. partnerships and foster sustainable
External fii. Strategic Alliances such as growth and
sources partnerships  and Coliaborations profitability.
programmes/ Alliances. with Other
plan. iv. Customer Retention Businesses.
Strategies iif.  Pricing Strategies
v. Investing in and Revenue
Innovation and Optimization.
Research and
Development (RE&D)
initiatives can lead
to the creation of
jnnovative services
43
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Table 3: Institute Operating Model . , o )
CODE | OBJECTIVE STRATEGY INPUTS PROCESSES OUTPUTS OUTCOMES

that appeal to
external markets. |
F.3Improve i. Human Capita i. Assess Current | 3. Enhanced Financial Improving  financial
Financial fi.  Availability of Pracesses Reporting. management processes
Management Financial {i. Implement Robust |ii. Better Cash Flow | ylelds the overall
Processes Regulations Financial Systems. Management. success and
_— fli.  Financial {ii. Enhance Budgeting fiil. Increased Cost | sustainability of the
Resources and Forecasting. Control. Institute.
iv. Strengthen Internal [iv. Strensthened
Controls, Compllance  and
v. Develop Key Risk Management, )
Petformance v. Enhanced Strategic
Indicators (KPls). Planning.
vi. Invest in Employee | vi. Improved
Training. Stakeholder
yii. Embrace Confidence.
Continuous vii. Efficient
Improvement. Resource
Allocation.
vifi. Facilitated
- - ~ Performance
e _ _ Evaluation.

G Compliance G.1. Establish and i. Financial | §-— Assessment— —— of | 1._Establishing and | Play an essential role in
with the enhance Resources Needs EnhancingServices |-empowering L
national services that | ii.  Availability of [ii. Cotlaboration with for members of staff | individuals to prioritize
policy of support frameworks for Stakeholders Health, Safety, and | members of staff's
communicable personal communicable |Jii. Development of Wellness. well-being while
and non- health, safety and non- Comprehensive ii. Education and | creating an
communicable and wellness communicable Programs Training !nittatives. | environment conducive
diseases ' diseases. v, Education and to overall wellness.

#i, Human Capital Awareness
fv. Training and activities
voluntary test |[v. Continuous
programs. Evaluation and
A Improvement .

H Comply and [H.1. Facilitate j.  Financial {. 1dentifying Key | Facilitating Students’ | Play a vital strategy for
implement students’ Resources Stakeholders. Anti-Corruption jnstiling values of
the National Anti- ii.  Human Capital |i{. Forming a Core Seminars and | integrity,
anti- corruption Team. transparency, and

44
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_Table 3: Institute O erating Model
CODE | OBJECTIVE STRATEGY INPUTS PROCESSES QUTPUTS OUTCOMES
corruption seminars and | fii. Training/ fi. Developing a | Sustaining Anti- | accountability amons
strategy Ant- seminar Curriculum for the | Corruption Clubs. the students at the
corruption schedule/ plan. anti-corruption Institute.
club sustained seminar.
.v. Promoting Student These initiatives not
o Engagement. only raise awareness
T T — - v. Establishing the about the detrimental
Anti-Corruption effects of corruption
-Club. but also empower
Vi,  Sustaining - students to _actively
Momentum. participate T
combating corruption
practices within the
Institute and
, communities at large.

H.2.5trengthen 1. Financial Resources i Assessment  of | 1. Strengthening Staff The Institute can
Staff ii. Human capital Current Awareness on Anti- significantly enhance
awareness on [if. Training/ seminar Understanding. Corruption staff awareness on

- Anti- schedule/ plan. il. Development of Strategies and | anti-corruption
Corruption v. Availability of Training Programs. Ethics. strategies and ethics.
. - Strategies and whistle-blowing ii. Leadership §i. Incorporating Ethics
“TEthics™ " -policy._ __ __ Cormmitment. into  Performance | Also, {t is important to.
v. Availability of Fraud | iv. —-Communication. _ __Evatuation. recognize that building
control framework. Strategies. iii. Regular maonitoring- a--culture..of_integrity_
V. Integration into of  anti-corruption | requires ongoing
Policies and initiatives is | commitment and
Procedures. essential to assess reinforcement at all
vi. Monitoring and effectiveness  and levels of the Institute.
Evaluation. identify areas for
vil. Encouraging improvement.
Ethical Behaviour,
viil. Collaboration
with External
Partners. .

H.3.Enhance . Financial i. Clear and | 1. Ensuring  fairness, Institute can increase
transparency Resources Accessible accountability, and | transparency, reduce
in . Human Capital Procurement cost savings for the | the risk of fraud and
procurement .  Availability of Policles and Institute. corruption, and

Annual Procedures. improve the efficlency
45
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_Table 3: Institute Operating Model
CODE | OBJECTIVE STRATEGY INPUTS PROCESSES OUTPUTS ~ OUTCOMES
Procurement |H. Open Competition. |1i. High quality of goods | of procurement
Plan i, Use of Technology or services procured | activities.
such as NeST. or rendered.
jv. Independent
Oversight and
Review.
— v. Capacity Building
T T and Training to
procurement .
officers, approving -
authority, auditors,
user department
and tender board.
vi. Collaboration with
Civil Society and
other authorities to
enhance
transparency ) .
H.4.5trengthen i.  Financial i. Creating and [ 1. Strengthening The Institute <can
measures Resources Enforcing Policies. - Measures  Against | create  environments |
R against sexual | .  HumanCapital | 1. Provide education Sexual Harassment. | where individuals are
- -—]- —— ——- - harassment _|_ifi. __ Avaflability of and Training. il. Establish and | respected, valued, and
sexual — —|iif: Fostering-— —a-}- _enforce robust legal | free from the threat of
harassment Supportive frameworks and | sexual harassment.
guidelines Environment. policies.
iy,  Training/ iv. Implementing ili. Raising awareness
seminar Reporting and on what constitutes
schedule/ Support Systems. sexual harassment,
programme. promoting
respectful
behaviour, and
providing guidance
on how to respond to
incidents, the
Institute can
empower individuals
to recognize and
address
. 46
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Table 3: Institute Operating Model )
CODE [ OBJECTIVE STRATEGY INPUTS PROCESSES OUTPUTS OUTCOMES
inappropriate
conduct.
iy. Promoting a Culture
of Respect.
v. Support for Victims.
47
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2.9 THE INSTITUTE'S GOVERNING COUNCIL

' 2.9.1 Members of the Governing Council

' The Governing Council comprises of eleven members inclu:ding the Chairperson with a mix of

2 " skills, experience and diversity as shown in Table 4. The Ciiairperson of the Governing Council

is appointed by the President of the United Repubtic of ?i'anzania for a term of three years
renewable in accordance with Section 2(a) of IFM Act No. 3 of 1972. Other members of the
Governing Council are appointed by the Minister responsible for Finance and Planning.

The Governing Council takes overall responsibility for the Institute, including identifying key
risk areas, considering and monitoring academic and administrative decisions, and financial.
matters, and reviewing the performance of anﬁual_plaihs and budgets. The Council is also
responsible for ensuring that a comprehensive system of internal control policies and

procedures is operative and for compliance with sound corporate governance principies.

The Council is required to meet at least four times a ye;ar. The Council delegates the day-to-
day management of the Institute to the Rector assisted by Deputy Rectors and senior
management. Members of Senior Management..are’ invited to attend Board meetings and
facilitate effective controt of ail operational activities, ‘acting as a medium of communication
and coordination between various operational areas.

During the year under review, no conflict of interest: existed among the Governing Council

Members, Senior Management and the Institute. A!ill Key Management Personnel made

declarations by adhering to the National Board of Accountants and Auditors (NBAA) directives

to make sure that every transaction done by IFM with related parties is adequately disclosed

and thus provides users of financial statements with adequate information for decision-making.

The details on Related Party Transactions are disclosed in NOTE 35 of these financial
|

statements.

43
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Table 4: Composition of Members of the Governing Council!
S/INO Name Position Nationality Gender Age Date of Qualifications Experience
_ (Yrs.) Appointment )
1. | Prof. Emmanuel | Chairman Tanzanian Male 63 24.06.2022 () PhD (Computer (i} Rector College of
A. Mjema Simulation) Business Education
{if) M.Sc. (Engineering (CBE) for 7 years.
_ Management) (ii) Professor for 17 years.
(i%i) B.Sc. (Mechanical nict
) ) ) Engineering)
5. | CPA Mwanaidi A. Vice Tanzanian Female 67 19.07.2022 (i) CPA (i) Accountant General
Mtanda Chairman (if) Master of Business Tanzania for 8 years.
Administration () Deputy " Director
(ifl) B, Com (Accounting) Management
_ Accounting for 4 years
3. | Prof. Facharia | Member Tanzanian Male 60 19.07.2022 ) PhD (Machine Design) (i) Rector National
M. Mganilwa (if) Msc {(Machine Design) institute of Transport
{ifi) B.Sc(Mech. Engineering (NIT) for 12 years
(if) Professor for 8 years in
s, Mechanical Engineering
4, . Prof. Wiliam A. | Member Tanzanfan Male 55 19.07.2022 iy PhD in Development | () Chief Executive Office/
- - .l Pallangyo Policy and Management Rector of Tanzania
s - - (if) Masters of Governance Institute of
o ) - and Development Accountancy
_ Advanced Diploma in | () Deputy Principal
Public — Administration- _Planning, Finance and
{ADPA) Administration for -7
years
Associate  Professor in
‘ : Management
5. | Ms. Agness A, | Member Tanzanian Female 58 19.07.2022 (f) Mastersin Nanagement | () Ag. Executive Director
Kessy (if) LLB ! in charge, Dodoma
Office
(i1) Chief Legal Officer,
National  Board of
The tenure of Governing Council started on 24 June 20212.
49
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e “1-S/NO Name Position | Nationality | Gender | Age Date of Qualifications Experience
(Yrs.) | Appointment
Accountants and
X __Auditors (NBAA)
. | Dr. Gladness L. | Member | Tanzanfan | Female | 47 19.07.2022 | (1) PhD in Logistics (i) Senifor Lecturer
Salema () Master’s Degree in Business School, UDSM
Business Administration for 4 years
{MBA) (1) Chairperson, National
(fif) BSc Food Science and Entrepreneurship
_ = ‘Technology Development
Committee- NEEC for 3
years ) o
(iit) Chairperson of the
research technical
committee, Institute of
Tax Administration for
3 years
(iv) Member of University
Computing Centre
tender board for 3
. . . years
7. Dr. Charles A. [ Member [ Tanzanian Male 55 19.07.2022 (i) PhD (Finance) (i) Commissioner of
Mwamwaja ' (li) Master in Business | Financial . .. Sector
- } Administration  (MBA) Development, Ministry
- _ (Finance & Banking) of Finance
| (iti) Péstgraduate ~-Diploma |-(1) Board-Member for SUA |,
in Finance Management Council and
{PGDFM) Chairperson of SUA
{iv) Advanced Diploma in Audit Committee for 3
Accountancy (ADA) years
(ili) Board Member for
Mzumbe University
Council and
Chairpersen of Finance
and Development
Committee for 6 years
8. Dr. George N. | Member | Tanzanian Male 46 19.07.2022 () PhDin Law () Lecturer in law 5t.
Mwaisondole (i) LLM in Human Rights Augustine University of
(ii{) LLB Tanzania
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LT “ [- S/NO Name Position | Nationality Gender | Age Date of Qualifications . Experience
(Yrs.) Appointment - - -
(i) Dean, School of Law
(iii) An advocate of the High
Court of Tanzania. An
Attomey at Law and &
Partner at Galati Law
. Chambers
_ 9, Prof. Johaveness Member | 1anzanian Male 55 19.07.2022 ) PhD1n Economics (1) Chairperson of
T - A. Urassa (i) Master of in Associate Professor in
Economics . Fconomics for a year
(i1i) Bachelor of Arts in | (if) Senior Lecturer in
Economics Economics for 10 years
(iti) Head of Department of
Economics for 6 years
{iv) Economist & Senior
Economist at the Bank
of Tanzania for 9 years
\"10. Mr. Henry J. Member | 1anzanian Male 58 19.07.2022 () MBAin Marketing (i) Director of Retail and
\ Bwogl (il) Postgraduate Diploma ‘Business Banking at the
(PGD) in Financial Tanzania Commerclal
Management . Bank (TCB)
(iif) Advanced Diploma in (i) Chief Manager -
-- Marketing Management Personal Loans
- _ : o (it Divisional Manager -
Bk I — 1= postal Savings and
Tt s = — _ _WADU ,
11. | Dr. Fortunatus NMember | Tanzanian Male 54 19,07.2022 (i} Dutch Doctoral Program | (1) Director of Planning,”
M. Makore -Doctorandus (Drs) in Investments and
Financial Economics Projects, PSSSF for 4
{if) M5c (Economics) years
Bachelor  of Business | {il} Treasury Manager cum
Administration (Finance & planning and
Accounting) Investments  Manager
for 12 years
Source: Governing Council Appointment Letters
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2.9.2 Committees of the Governing Council |

The Institute is committed to the principles of 'effectiile corporate governance. The Council
also recognizes the importance of integrity, transparency and accountability. To ensure a high
standard of corporate governance, the Institute f_1as thrﬁee Committees of the Board namely: -

|

i. The Audit Committee (AC) which is responsible flor oversight of the financial reporting
process, the audit pracess, the Institute’s system of internal controls and compliance
with laws, standards and regulations; !

ii. The Finance and Development Planning Committee (FDPC) which is responsible for all
matters relating to the Institute’s finances, policy and planning; and

iii. The Staff and Student Affairs Committee (SSAC) which is responsible for all staff and
student matters. The Committee handles all appointments and promotion of staff of
the Institute. It is also responsible for all disciplinary matters of the staff members and
students. :

Members of the Committees of the Governing Council \Eilere as shown in Table 5.

Table 5: Members of Committees of the Governing Council

S/NO Name Audit | Finance and Staff and
Committee Development Student Affairs
(AC) E Planning Committee

, Committee (SSAC)
[ {FDPC)

1. Prof. Emmanuel A. Mjema | N/A I N/A N/A

2. Prof. Zacharia M. Mganilwa Chairman

3. Prof, William A. Pallangyo Chairman

4. Ms. Mwanaidi A. Mtanda Chairperson.

5. Dr. Charles A. Mwamwaja | Member

6. Dr. George N. Mwaisondola | Member

7. Ms. Agness A, Kessy ' Member

3. Dr. Gladness L. Salema Member

9. Prof. Johaveness A, Urassa i Member

10. Mr, Henry J. Bwogi Member !

11, Dr. Fortunatus M. Makore - Member

Source: Governing Council File

2.9.3 Meetings of the Governing Council and Committees
; :

To maintain and operationalize good governénce practices, during the year under review, the
Institute convened statutory meetings of the Council and its Committees according to the set
almanac. Some of the meetings were rescheduled and where necessary, special meetings were
conducted to deliberate on specific issues which emerged. The Council meetings deliberated,
approved and gave directives on various issues submitited by the Committees.

The Governing Council and its Committees met every three months with additional meetings
convened when it was necessary. During the year ended 30 June 2023 the Governing Council
52
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x held six meetings, of which four were ordinary and two were extra-ordinary. In addition, there
were various Meetings of the Governing Council Committ(l'ees as shown in Table 6.
I .
] ]
Table 6: Meetings of the (fommittees I
S/No Name of Committee ; Ordinlary Extraordinary Total
1 - Meetings Meeting Meetings
P 1. Audit Committee (AC) 4| 2 6
2. Finance and Development Planning :
Committee (FDPC) 4| 1 5
3. Staff and Student Affairs Committee |
(SSAC) 4 0 4
Source: Governing Council File -]
i
= Except for the Chairman of the Governing Council, oth:er members of the Governing Council
were able to devote their time required for the committlee’s meetings.
Table 7 indicates the number of meetings held and at:tended by members of the Governing
Council and its committees from 1 July 2022 to 30 June :2023.
~ Table 7: Numbers of Meetings held and attended byl members of the Governing Council
S/No Name Governing A}'udit Finance and Staff and
Council Con?mittee Development Student
, Planning Affairs
| Committee Committee
Number of Meetings Held 6 | 6 5 4
1. Prof. Emmanuet A. Mjema 6 iN/A N/A N/A
- 2. Prof. Zacharia M. Mganilwa 4 IN/A 5 N/A
3. Prof. William A. Patlangyo 5 'N/A N/A 4
4. Ms. Mwanaidi A. Mtanda 4 | 4 N/A N/A
5. Dr. Charles A. Mwamwaja 4 13 N/A N/A
6. Dr. George N. Mwaisondola 5 INJA 4 -N/A
7. Ms. Agness A. Kessy [ INJA N/A 3
8. Dr. Gladness L. Salema 6 I N/A N/A 3
@ 9. Prof. Johaveness A. Urassa 5 IN/A 4 N/A
10. Mr. Henry J. Bwogi 5 'o4 N/A N/A
11. Dr. Fortunatus M. Makore 4 | NfA 3 N/A
Source: Attendance Register |
2.9.4 Responsibilities of the Governing Council and Its Committees
f‘\l ,
~ (a) Governing Council Responsibilities and Meetings
During the year the Governing Council performed its responsibilities in accordance with the
Institute’s Act No.3 of 1972, [
A summary of matters dealt with during the Governing Council’s six meetings is summarized in
O Table 8. |
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Table 8: Key [ssues Deliberated on by the Governing Council in 2022/23

5/No

DATE =

ORDINARY

EXTRAORDINARY|
[

KEY ISSUE DELIBERATED ON

1.

25 August 2022 :

1

Introduction of the Council.
Election of Vice Chair and
Nomination of members to the
Council Committees.

Orientation of the Council.

28 September
2022

230

I
I
i
i
|
|
|

Withdrew promotion of Dr. Freddy
J. Gamba until a second reviewer is
obtained.

Annual performance report from
the Directorates of Human
Resource and Administration and
the Directorate of Students
Services.

Physical Expansion Report for
development of campuses at Geita,
and Simiyu.

Annual Budgetary Petformance
Report.

Annual Performance Report for the
Directorate of Finance, Directorate
of Policy and Planning and the
Procurement Management Unit.
Annual Monitoring and Evaluation
Performance Report for the period
ended 30 June 2022, :
Draft Audit Report for the year
ended 30 June 2022,

Annual Academic. Reports for the
period ended 30 June 2022.

23 November 2022

231

Quarterly performance reports
from the Directorates of Human
Resource and Administration and
the Directorate of Students
Services.

Physical Expansion Report for
development of campuses at
Geita, and Simiyu.
Quarterly Budgetary Performance
Report.
Quarterly Performance Report for
the Directorate of Finance,
Directorate of Poticy and Planning
and the Procurement Management
Unit. .
Quarterly Monitoring and
Evaluation Performance Report
for the period ended 30 June
2022.
Quarterly Academic Reports for
the period ended 30 September
2022.
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DATE

ORDINARY

EXTRACRDINARY:

KEY ISSUE DELIBERATED ON

25 January 2023

yi |

Report of the Controller and
Auditor General on the Audit of
Financial Statements of the
Institute of Finance Management
for the financial year ended 30
June 2022

Management Letter on the
Financial Statements of the
Institute of Finance Management
(IFM) for the year ended 30 June
2022,

Revised Budget for Financial Year
2022/23.

Annual Work Plan and Forward
Budget for 2023/24 - 2025/26.
Institute’s Incentive Scheme.

I
N

-

Lt
Ry

e

5. 14 March 2023

232

s Quarterly Performance Report for

Quarterly Performance Reports for
the Directorate of Human Resource
and Administration and Directorate
of Students Services.

Requested for promotions of four
staff members; Dr. TausiA.
Mkasiwa from Senior Lecturer to
Associate Professar; Dr. Freddy J.
Gamba from Lecturer to Senior
Lecturer and Dr. Steven C.
Shekiondo and Dr. Hussein A. Bakiri
from Assistant Lecturers to
Lecturers.
Physical Expansion Report for
development of campuses at Geita,
Simiyu and Mwanza.

the Directorate of Finance,
Directorate of Policy and Planning
and the Procurement Management
Unit.
Quarterly Monitoring and
Evaluation Performance .Report
for the period ended 31 December
2022.
Audit Report for the period ended
31 December 2022.
Risk Register.
Interim Financial Statements for
the period ended 31 December
2022,
Risk Management Implementation
Report for the period ended 31
December 2022.
Quarterly Academic Reports for
the period ended 31 December

2022,
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5/No DATE ORDINARY | EXTRAORDINARY' KEY ISSUE DELIBERATED ON
|

3

6. |14June2023 233 e Quarterly Performance Reports for

the Directorate of Human Resource

and Administration and Directorate

‘ of Students Services.

| | » Physical Expansion Report for

i development of campuses at Geita,

Simiyu and Mwanza.

e Higher Education Economic

Transformation (HEET) Project.

 Quarterly Performance Report for
the Directorate of Finance,
Directorate of Policy and Planning
and the Procurement Management
Unit.

e Quartetly Monitoring and

Evaluation Performance Report

! for the period ended 31 March

| 2023,

| » Annual Procurement Plan for

! 2023/24 financial year.

i e Audit Report for the period ended

|

I

31 March 2023.
« Interim Financial Statements for
the period ended 31 March 2023.
e Risk Management implementation
! Report for the period ended 31
| March 2023.
| « Quarterly Academic Reports for the
period ended 31 March 2023.

(L

cial year 2022/23.
I

{b) Finance Development and Planning Committtfee Meetings

Source: Minutes of the Governing Council meetings for the finan

The Finance Development and Planning Committee monitors the financial perfof'mancé of the
Institute. It considers financial policies, budget prepagation and other related issues and makes
recommendations to the Council on these matters taking into consideration the importance of

financial sustainability. |

The Finance and Development Planning Committe:e met five times during the year and

performed its duties as summarized in Table 9.

|
|
1
1
1
I
|
!
[
I
|
I
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i Table 9: Key lssues Deliberéted on by the Finance and Development Planning Committee in 2022/23

S/No.

DATE

"ORDINARY

EXTRA
ORDINARY

li KEY ISSUES DELIBERATED ON

1.

14 September
2022

45

Physical Expansion Report for development
of campuses at Geita, and Simiyu.

. Annpal Budgetary Performance Report.

. Annpal performance Report for the
Directorate of Finance, Directorate of
Policy and Planning and the Procurement
Management Unit.

Anpual  Monitoring and Evaluation
Performance Report for the period ended 30
June 2022,

16 November
2022

46

Physical Expansion Report for development
cnfI campuses at Geita, and Simiyu.
anrterly Budgetary Performance Report.
Quarterly Performance Report for the
Directorate of Finance, Directorate of
Policy and Planning and the Procurement
nagement Unit.
QLllarterly Monitoring and  Evaluation
performance Report for the period ended 30
September 2022.

20
2023

January

Bevised Budget for Financial Year 2022/23.

Annual Work Plan and Forward Budget for

?023/24 - 2025/26. '
Institute's Incentive Scheme.

22 February,
2023

47

Plhysical Expansion Report for development
of campuses at Geita, Simiyu and Mwanza.
Quarterly Performance Report for the
Directorate of Finance, Directorate of
Policy and planning and the Procurement
Management Unit. '

Quarterly Monitoring and Evaluation
Performance Report for the period ended 31

December 2022.

31 May 2023

48

"Physical Expansion Report for development

|of campuses at Geita, Simiyu and Mwanza.

Higher Education Economic Transformation
(HEET) Project.

« | Quarterly Performance Report for the
Directorate of Finance, Directorate of
Policy and Planning and the Procurement

| Management Unit.

-! Quarterly Monitoring and Evaluation

performance Report for the period ended
| 31 March 2023.
« Annual Procurement

plan for 2023/ 24

| financial year.

2022/23.

Source: Minutes of the Finance and Development Planning Commitiee mee
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(c) Audit Committee ;Meetings

The responsibilities of the

responsibility with respect to int
external audit reports, financia
parliamentary Accounts Committee
chairman and two members, who are a

a year.

During the year under review, the Audit

elaborated in Table 10.

Table 10: Key Issues Deliberated on by the Audit Com

Audit Committee are to
ernal audit functions,
| statements, and implementation of the auditors’ and
(PAC) recommendations. The Committee is composed of a

Iétssist the Council in its oversight
internal control systems, internal and

lso the Council Melmbers and normally meets four times

Committee met

six times and performed its duties as

mittee in 2022/23

S/No. DATE

ORDINARY

EXTRA
ORDINARY

KEY 1SSUE DELIBERATED ON

1. 1 September 2022

52

lnltemal Audit Report for the.Quarter ended
June 2022. :

Internal Audit Report for the year ended 30
June 2022, '

27 September 2022

Draft Financial Statements for the Year
Ended 30 June 2022. '
laudit Plan for the Year
2022

Ended 30 June

27 October 2022

53

Internal Audit Report for the Quarter ended
30 September 2022.

Risk Register.

interim Financial Statements for the period

ended 30 September 2022,

13 January 2023

Repo

Gene

rt of the Controller and Auditor
ral on the Audit of Financial

Statements of

30 June 2022

Management for the Financial Year Ended

Management Letter on the Financial

the Institute of Finance

I

Statemen

ts of the Institute of Finance

Management (IFM) for the year ended 30
June 2022.

1 February 2022

54

Internal Audit Report for the Quarter ended

31 December 2022.

-| Internal Audit Assurance Strategy and Plan
; for Financial Year 2023/24,

¢ Risks Register.

« Risk Management Implementation Report
| for the period ended 31 December 2022.

30 May 2023

55

Audit Report for the period ended 31
March 2023.

Interim Financial statements for the
period ended 31 March 2023.

» Risk Management implementation Report
for the period ended 31 March 2023.

Source: Min

utes of the Audit Committee Meetings for the Find ncial Year 2022123
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(d) Staff and Students Affairs Committee Meetings

The responsibilities of t
) oversight responsibility with respect to Human
and student affairs. The Committee is compose

Council Members.

\
|

[

b

he Staff and Students Affairs Committee are to assist the Council in its
Resource Management, Administration matters
d of a chairman and two members, who are also

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Staff and Students Affairs Committee met four times

and performed activities as summarized in Table 11:

Table 11: Key Issues Deliberated on by the Staff & Studentrl, Affairs Committee in 2022/23

S/No,

DATE

ORDINARY

EXTRA
ORDINARY

KEY ISSUES DELIBERATED ON

1.

14 September
2022

26

Withdrew promotion of Dr,-Freddy J. Gamba
until [a second reviewer is obtained.

Annqal performance report from the
Directorates of Human Resource and
Administration and the Directorate of Students
Services.

14 November
2022

27

Quarterly Performance Reports of Directorate
of Human Resources and Administration and
Directorate of Students Services for the
Quarter ended 30 September 2022,

Confirmed promotion of 52 staff members from
their respective positions after a successful
probation period.

23 February
2023

28

Quarterly Performance Reports for the Quarter
ended 31 December 2022 for the Directorate
of ﬁuman Resources and Administration and
Dir?ctorate of Students Services.
Reclommended to the Governing Council for
approval of four academic staff members; two
frolm Assistant Lecturer to Lecturer and one
from Lecturer to Senior Lecturer and one from
Senior Lecturer to Associate Professor.

30 May 2023

Qu;arterly Performance Reports for the Quarter
ended 34t March 2023 for the Directorate of
Human Resources and Administration and
Dhl'ectorate of Students Services.

Resolved that Dr. Shufaa Mohamed Albeity
supmit an additional publication, which can
qL;alify her for promotion from the post of
Leécturer to Senior Lecturer upan evaluatton.

Source: Minutes of the Staff and Students Affai

s Committee Meetings for the Financial Year 2022/23.
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2.9.5 CESSATION OF MEMBERSHIP

Membership to the Governing Council ceases after completion of a term of three years or
following death or resignation as stipulated in Section 4 (First Schedule) of TFM Act No.3 of
1972. : '

2.9.6 FIDUCIARY RESPONSIBILITY

All Non-executive Directors/Members are considered 'by the Governing Council to be
independent both in character, judgment and free of rglationships or circumstances, which
could affect their judgment. |

2.10 CAPITAL STRUCT URE AND TREASURY POLICIES |

As at 30 June 2023, the capital of the institute aggregatet;i to TZS 3,439.1 million (30 June 2022
TZS 3,459.1 million.) In addition, the institute has accumulated a Surplus of TZ5 83,141.6
million (30 June 2022: TZ5 79,724.3 million} as shown ir{ Table 12. The source of funding has
been through Government, development partners, and |internally generated funds. Table: 12
Summarizes the Capital Structure of the Institute. i
|

The Institute of Finance Management (IFM) maintain a Treasury Policy such as Financial
Regulations, and Accounting Manual which entails procedures to be adhered to during opening
of bank accounts, closing and maintenance, cash | handling procedures, selecting and
introducing signatories in approving wire cash/funds transfers and cheque payments, short-
term investments of surplus cash, approving short-term financing of deficit, forex exchange
exposure and related risk management. |'

!
The objective of the policy is to ensure that the Institute’s cash, investments and other cash-
related assets aré adequately managed, controlled and safeguarded. Adherence to the policy
and control procedures also ensures that an

Institute’s foreign exchange and other exposures
are effectively managed.

puring the period under review, the Institute’s treasu

no potential effect occurred.

Table 12: Capital Structure

ry policy was adhered and thus there was

Controller and Auditor General

F

Capital and Reserves 30 JUNE 2023 30 JUNE 2022
(TZS '000°) (TZS *000")
Capital Fund 3,439,082 3,439,082
Accumulated SurplusI(Deﬁcit) 83,141,604 79,724,346
Total Equity | 86,580,686 83,163,428
Source: statement of Financial Posi tion os at 30 June 2023. l
i
! |
I i
! |
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During the financial year ended 30 June 2023, the Institute managed its liquidity level to ensure
there are sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without damage to the Institute’s
reputation. The Institute’s current ratio for the financial year ended 30 June 2023, which
~ measures the ability of the current assets to meet its shq'rt-term obligations {current liabilities)
; was 2.9:1 (2022: 4.1:1). I
|
Moreover, the Acid (quick) test ratio which also measures the ability of current assets without
inventories, to meet its short-term obligations {(current liabilities) was 2.7:1(2022: 4.0:1).
~ 2.12 RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS '
The Institute believes that the stakeholders are whatl' make its existence. Several measures
have been taken to institute responsible behavior to employees of the institute and other
stakeholders. These measures include, but are not limited to, holding interactive stakeholders’
meetings or engagements, staff meetings, seminars, research, consultancy and workshops;

— provide academic services through the use of modern technology and improving customer

services at our campuses in the country. |
In this regard, the Institute has identified eight (08) categories of stakeholders as summarized
in Table 13; the Government; employees; regulatory bodies; students; those charged with
governance; suppliers; business and development pai'tl:1ers; and general public (society). Before
making its decisions, the Council considers the interésts of all stakeholders and ensures that
& engagement with stakeholders is deliberate and plapned and that communication is always
transparent and effective. - .
1
Table 13: Details of Stakeholders’ Relationship !
TSTNO i e eorabenolders i tam T A S C A N Tl RS SRR M
1.0 | The Government The Government’s concerns | «  Remittance of 15% gross
-~ \ The Government established | to the Institute include the revenue contribution |-
the Institute with a set of | following: t within every quarter to the
objectives and functions to | ¢ Receive 15% of gross Government Consolidated
provide facilities for the revenue  contribution Fund with the view of
study and training in quarterly for remittance future growth;
principles, procedures and to the G:overnment e Provide quality training '
. techniques  of  Banking, Consolidated Fund; programmes, research
3 Insurance, Finance |, High-quality | training outputs and consultancy
Management and such other programmes for various services.
related subjects as the professional disciplines; |« Provide competent
C_ouncil .may decide from |  |hnovative ) probiem- graduates who are
time to time. solving senricles. employable or can employ
e Publication of actionable themselves.
N research outputs. » Provide the best
I governance, transparency
and accountability systems.
a
! 61
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GTheinterests/.coneernsit

T s valueiwe croate sty

s Innovativeness | inle Adhere to government
expansion and  self- policies, guidelines and
financing. | procedures.

s Transparency and
Accountability.

+ Increase in enrolment of
students.

source; The  Treasury

Registrar  (Powers and

Functions) Act, Cap 370 and

the IFM Act No.3 of 1972,

2.0 Employees Employees want a Trendly, [« Transforming into  an
Employees are key to make | safe and conducive working inclusive society through
the Institute a great place to environment, defined' career employment equity and
work. They should find | progression, better . salary gender equality;
working for IFM an inspiring and benefits, motivationand | «  We focus on developing our
place for elevating personal | recognition, and employees through
experience and | opportunities to contribute targeted training programs
consequently accept co- | tosociety. . ; and skills upgrading to
responsibility  for the | Source: IFM Staff meetings further their careers and
development of  each and the Workers |Council improve academic services;
employee to the full | meetings. i « Rewarding employees for

meetings, Directives from

Regulators. !

potential. Together with the value they add;
efficient and value-creating «» Motivating and energizing
solutions,  services and our workforce; and
operations offer value to our o Timely payments of
customers. Career progress . employees’ entitlements.
is based on the individual
initiative  towards  the :
fulfillment of their
responsibilities
complemented by the ;
Institute. ) :

3.0 Regulatory Bodies | s Provision of curricula of |« Presence of accredited
(NACTVET and TCU) a good standard; programmes;
Regulatory Bodies have | e Availability of shared [+ Competent graduates;
important roles in academic resources; . « Qualified trainers and
development specifically in | e Accredited | teachers;
the provision of regulated programmes; and e Availability ~of  shared
services. « Compliance ' with resources; and

procedures and s Adherence to regulatory
guidelines. ' guidelines and directives.
Source: Stgkeholder's
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' 4.0 Students e Reliable information on |« Establish reliable, modern
Meeting students’ needs the availability of )rlarious and constantly updated
with innovative solutions training programmes; information systems;
and superior experience is e Updated market-driven [ Provide quality training
critical to maintaining high- and innovative curricula; programmes;
quality relationships with |«  Enrolment opportunities; e Provision of good quality
o our students. » Simplified systems, books and publications;
processes and structures; [e Establish simplified learning
and systems and structures;

o Timely delivery of [ Provision of modern training
excellent service to facilities and
students and Ilensure infrastructures; and

~ confidentiality | of |« Providing excellent services
students’ .and blusiness to meet and exceed
data and infon’natiion. customers’ expectations.

Source: IFMSO .meetings,

Trace study report. |

5.0 Suppliers * Transparent anl‘d fair |» Effective use of online

\ Suppliers are stakeholders procurement process of procurement system
o : who provide goods and goods, works|  and {TANePS),
services to the Institute and services; . » [nclusion of fair terms and
. they are closely monitored e Receiving feedback on proper vetting of
to ensure they deliver delivered goods and procurement contracts; and
required or ordered goods rendered service%; and |e Settle genuine suppliers’
and services in time. e Timely settlem:ent of invoices timely.
™ suppliers’ invoice;s. :
- Source: Suppliers visited IFM

campuses and' - received

official letters, Invoices and

emails. \

6.0 Business & Development | « Cooperation on l‘areas of | = Participating in meetings
~ Partners common interest in and events related to the
The business partners are serying the publilc; areas of common interest;

private sector and public | « Sharingbusiness dataand | « Providing necessary data
sector entities that have information; and and information requested
direct or indirect working | = Honouring |business by business partners;
relationships  with  the relationships. = Strengthening long-lasting
Institute when performing | « Collaborative business relations with a
D . its statutory functions. opportunities for various focus on customers’
! These include TRA, e-GA, tralning  programmes, satisfaction.
PSSSF, NAOT, NBAA, PPRA, research and consultancy
Banks, Insurance companies, activities. |
MoF, MoEST, and External | Source: Stakgholder's
Collaboration i.e., HEET, | forums, | official
Groningen etc. communication by letters
“ : and emails, Memorandum of
[
|
| ! 63
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; external collaboratmns and
. Contracts.
7.0 | Those  Charged  with | The Institute complies with | = Operating within the scope of
Goverpance (Council, | the relevant legislation, | the legislation, directives and
Parliamentary Committees) | guidelines and direetives to | guidelines; and
e The Institute complies witha | ensure smooth coqduct of | « Complying with protocols
e wide spectrum of | academic and orher related | issued by those charged with
legislation,  conventions, | Services governance.
protocols, resolutions, Source: those charged with
directives and guidelines governance _cpnsultative
N . . meetings, official, letters
which are issued from time and emails.
to time by the Government
7 entities including MoF, OTR, '
ACGEN and Tanzania '
Parliamentary 'Committees '
{Budget Committee and
Parliamentary Accounts
Committee). ' .-
Ny 8.0 | General Public (Society) « Supporting ' social | « Supporting social
h The Institute acknowledges development ﬁlrograms community programs using
its responsibility to respond organized by, the donations and other sources
to community social needs. communities for socio- of funds;
The  Corporate  Social economic development | » Providing awareness on IFM
Responsibility (CSR) where IFM has campuses; functions and
~ interventions included a |« Awareness .on IFM environmental protection;
. commitment to active functions and applicable and
participation in environment legislation; and | » Undertake Environmental
protection and promotion of | Compliance with and Social Impact
socio-economic environmental socfal Assessments periodically.
development of our society and govemance matters.
through  extension  of | Source: Stakeholder’s
'S financial support ~  to | meetings, Corporate Social
o implementation of | Responsibility (CSR)
community activities. schedule of activities.
I
2.13 CASHFLOW .
The Institute prepares its budgets in accordance with tHe Medium-Term Expenditure Framework
0 (MTEF) ‘which also includes preparation of cash ﬂows for managing inflows and outflows
quarterly. The cash flow projection includes estlmates of inflows and outflows from exchange
and non-exchange transactions generated from operatlng, investing and financing activities.
The cash flow from operations increased from TZS 33,302.0 million in 2021/22 to TZS 46,541.6
million during 2022/23. The increase was attribute'd to revenue collection from students
e sponsored by HESLB for their second instalment of tuitlion fees which was fully collected.

! : 64
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(@) Cash Flows from 'Operating Activities
|

The net cash flows from bperating activities of TZS 14,275.9 million (2022: TZS 4,779.3 million)
was derived as the difference between cash receipts amounting to TZS 46,541.6 million (2022:
TZS 33,302.0 million) from Fees, Government subventlon and other Income; and payments
amounting to TZS 32,265.7 million (2022: TZS 28 522I 6 million) for wages, salaries and
employee benefits; maintenance expenses and use of goods and services expenses.
|
(b) Cash Flows from Investing Activities !

The net cash flows from investing activities of TZS 6,38€|>.1 million (2022: TZS 4,963.4 million)
was derived from cash outflows in respect of advance lpayment for acquisition of Property,
Plant and Equipment amounted to TZS 688.0 ‘miltion (2022: TZ5 2,516.2 million); and acquisition
of Property, Plant and Equipment amounted to TZS 5, 698 1 million (2022 TZS 2,447.2 million).

(c) Cash flows from Financing Activities a . |

|
There were no net cash flows from financing activities during the year ended 30 June 2023 as
it was the case in the preceding year. |

2,14 MANAGEMENT

In accordance with Section 10 {1) of the IFM Act, 1972, the Institute of Finance Management is
led by the Rector assisted by two deputies, one responsible for Academic, Research and
Consultancy and the other for Planning, Finance and Administration. The Institute has nine
directorates, four faculties and four units however, from 01* April 2023 the Institute
implemented a new structure which changed the number of directorates from nine to twelve,
faculties from four to three and units from four to six. |The directorates before new structure
include Human Resources and Administration, Planning end Policy, Computer Services, Library,
Finance, Registrar, Internal Audit, Undergraduate, Postgraduate Research and Consultancy.
The faculties are Accounting, Banking and Finance,: Computing, Information Systems and
Mathematics, Insurance and Social Protection, and Economlcs and Management Science. The
units include Procurement Management, Legal, Public Relatlons, and Quality Assurance and Risk
Management. Directorates under the new structure include Library Services, Academic Support
Services, Research Consultancy and Publication, |Human Resources Management and
Administration, Planning and Development, Finance and Accounts, Students Support Services,
Information and Communication and Campuses. Facultles include Business and Economics,
Insurance and Banking, Computing and Mathematlcs. While Units include Legal Services,
Internal Audit, Procurement Management, Communicatlon and Marketmg, Quality Assurance
and External Linkages. |

2.15 COUNCIL REMUNERATIONS

The Council expenses which also include statutory payments to key management personnel

during the year are as disclosed under Note 35 to the Financial Statements.
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2.16 ACADEMIC ACTIVITIES

During the reporting period, the Institute conducted thirFy-two out of thirty-five programmes
at the level of Certificate, Ordinary Diploma, Bachelor and master’s degrees in the areas of
Banking, Finance, Insurance, Social Protection, Accounting, Tax Management, Economics,
Business Administration, Actuarial Science, Human Resm:Jrce Management, Computer Science
and Information Technology. These programmes were conducted at the Campuses in Dar es
Salaam, Mwanza, Dodoma and Simiyu. :
The Institute also conducted various programmes at the level of Postgraduate diploma in areas
of Tax Management, Human Resource Management, Accountancy, Financial Management,
Business Administration, Insurance and Actuarial Science. The Institute also conducted a Master
of Science degree in Information Technology and Mainagement in collaboration with the

Avinashilingam University of India. !

2.17 OTHER CORE ACTIVITIES

The Institute continued to conduct research, consultan:cy and short courses during the year
under review in compliance with section 4(e) of the IFMiAct No.3 of 1972.

2.18 INSTITUTIONAL CAPACITY BUILDING

(a) Physical Facilities and Infrastructures

The Institute continued to provide and maintain conducive working facilities and infrastructure
to enable employees to execute their roles and functions efficiently. Physical facilities include
the provision of office chairs and tables, computers, printing facilities, and maintenance of
buildings, vehicles and equipment. '

During the year under review, the Institute continued with construction activities for Geita and
Mwanza, rehabilitation and repairs and maintenance as follows: ) )

|

I

Repairs and maintenance of hostel facilities at the Main Campus which were carried out

using the internally generated funds. .l

i. Completed

ii. Work in Progress covers the construction of:

e At the Institute’s Kiseke plot in llemela Distrif':t Mwanza, until the end of the financial
year under review, the construction activities of the referred Campus had attained an

8.2% level of completion.

« Geita project, as at 30 June 2023, the average physical completion of structures under
phase one was at 97.1%; whereas, construction activities of phase two had attained a
65.1% level of completion. Overall, the Geita construction project (Phase | and Phase
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) 1) was at a 70.5% level of completion as at the end of the financial year of this report.
Phase one involves the construction of four stqu'tures, namely, administ_ration block,
classroom block; multipurpose hall and cafeteria, Phase two involves the construction
of four buildings, i.e., students’ hostels, a library and a computer lab building, two (2)
bedrooms and three (3) bedrooms-staff houses. i

- The institute continued to improve the ICT infra.?tructure. ICT is used in the admission
of students, academic assessment processing aritd student registration. It is also used
in financial management and human capital marllagement.

(b) Staff development |

D The Institute continuously develop training programs to ensure the employees are adequately

trained at all levels. Employees are allowed to attend short and long-term training programmes
both locally and outside the country to upgrade their skills and enhance career development.
During the year under review, 42 members of staff were;undergoing training as compared to 39
in the year 2021/22 as analyzed in Table 14, '

o Table 14: Number of Staff on Training for the year 2022/23

Training Level Administrative Staff Academic staff
' 2022/23 [ 2021/22 2022/23 2021/22
, PhD - - 31 29
Master’s Degree 06 ; 04" 03 03
Degree 02 I 03 - -
~ Total 08 ! 07 34 32
T Source: Training Report
2.19 KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(a) Teaching Assessments . |
< About 64% of the teaching is undertaken by the un;specified staff of the Institute and the
remaining (36%) is carried out by the specified staff. The target of the Institute is to have 90%
of the teaching done by the unspecified teaching staff as analyzed in Table 15.
|
Table 15: Analysis of Teaching Staff
S/No Faculties qupelcified Specified Total

— Academic Staff AcademicStaff |~ =

S Number || Per (%) | Number | (%)

1. Faculty of Business and 94 | 64.4 52 35.6 146
Economics (FBE) i

2. Facuity of Computing and 46 | 73.0 17 27 63
Mathematics (FCM) !

3. Faculty of Insurance and 34 [ 7941 09 20.9 43

s Social Protection (FISP)
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S/No Faculties Unspecified Specified Total
. . Academic Staff Academic Staff
i Number | Per (%) Number (%)
4. Faculty of FEconomics and |. 20 47.6 72 52.4 42
Management Science (FEMS) |
5. Mwanza Campus 16 44.4 20 55.6 36
6. Dodoma Campus 4 40.0 06 60.0 10
7. Simiyu Campus 6 42.9 08 57.1 14
TOTAL 220 62.1 134 37.9 354
2021122

Source: Reports of the Academic Development Committee for financial year
i

(b) Academic Performance of Final Year Students I

During the academic year of 2022/23, a total of 4,851 stufclents sat for their final examinations

for the second semester as shown in Table 16, and 3,075 _(equivalent to 63.4%) students passed
their examinations, compared to 2021/22 whereby 2,258 {equivalent to 38.8%) passed their
examinations. This indicates an increase in academic peirformance for the year under review

by 24.6%.
Table 16: Academic Performance of Final Year Students . T
2022/23 ! 2021/22
No. of students No. of students No, of students | No. of students
Main Courses enrolled passed | enrolled passed
Certificate 1098 550 1,227 605
Ordinary Diploma 946 775 | 919 703
Bachelor Degree 3,451 3,074 ! 3,439 ] 2,909
Postgraduate Diploma 43 3B | 42 39
Master's program 248 188 | 364 253
Total 5,786 ~ 4,602 | 6,006 4,509
|

Source: Enterprise Management System

(c) Registration Performance

23, a total of 14,491 student;'» (2021/22: 14,987) were registered to

During the year 2022/
-which represents a decrease of 3.3% from

undertake various courses offered at the Institute,
previous year. Qut of this 8,0

97 are male and 6;394 a

re female as analyzed in Table 17.

Table 17: Registration Analysis a
S/No | Campuses 2022/23 2021/22
Male | Female Male Female
1. | Dar es Salaam 7,332 5,710 7,699 5,925
2. | Mwanza 594 524 510 - © 476
3. | Dodoma 77 67 65 53
4 Simiyu 94 ' 93 76 93
Tatal 8,097 6,394 8,350 6,547
Source: Reports of the Academic Development Committee for flfnanciai year 2022/23.
i '
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(d) Research and Publications Activities

The Institute invites researchers and other scholars from foreign and local institutions to
conduct research and publish the results in various fields of Accounting, Finance, Banking,
Insurance, Information Technology and other related fields.

During the year under review, 10 (2021 122:41) jogrnal articles were published by the Institute’s
academic members and thirty-four research papers are in ﬁrogress and under review. Also, two
books were in progress and not yet completed for publication.

Furthermore, during the year under review, thirty book chapters were received, eleven being
complete and nineteen being under review. The compléte book chapters were sent off to
reviewers and were all sent to the authors for review. Twepty-two chapters have been received
after the review from the authors.

(e) Short courses Activities T

During the year under review, the Institute managed to conduct twenty-three (2022:33) short
courses on various fields funded by Individuals and entities carried out across the country and
earned a total of TZS 330.7 million (2022: TZS 200.0 million) and included as part of
miscellaneous income in the statement of financial performance during the financial year ended
30 June 2023.

(f) Consultancy Activities

During the year under review, the Institute managed to bffer professional services to registered
entities in the country and earned a total of TZS 70.@ million (2022: TZS 466.6 million). The
decrease in consultancy activities was mainly caused |by the decline in needs and change in
modality to conduct consultancy works by public entities; and the high level of competition
from other private sectors. However, the Institute continue to apply various consultancy
tenders to improve income from consultancy activities%. Co :

(2) Procurement Performance

This section analyses the performance of the lnstitutfe in the procurement of goods, services,
and works for the period ended 30 June 2023; The Institute has developed all Procurement
Procedures in line with the Public Procurement Act (?.021) and its Regulations as amended, to;
i. Promote best practices, transparency and pl;ofessionalism in all acquisition processes
within the Corporation; |
ii. Ensure that suppliers of goods and services are subjected to a competitive tendering
process in order to achieve quality, price competitiveness and reliability;
iii. Ensure that all expenditures are incurred in accordance with the approved plan and
budget and the Annual Procurement Plan (AF:'P); and
iv. Ensure compliance with applicable regulations and legislation.
I

!
| |
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Table 18; Procurement Performance for the financial year ended 30 June 2023
: TRERORMANCE ON]
S ERRGETS. EXPENDITURE STATUS
PER'THE Actual Progress in Actual
{,A,‘,N_,B,l!\l\“, Relation to Key Annual Budget Cumulative (cy_i?;)"‘(:%s Change (%) Spent
: ‘ | Performance Indicators | (A) (TZS '000%) Expenditure ',000,) (D=C/A)
1 (KPI) (B) (ZS ‘000")
TOffice stationeries and
consumables procured for Imptemented as’
all campuses during the 1,011,200 1,011,200 1 0 planned.
year.
ID Printing materials were
procured during the year | 230,000 227,991 2,009 0.9 '“l‘;’tiﬁ:‘(f“ted as
as planned. P )
Books for the Institute Delayed 1In the
Library procured during . 150,000 0 150,000 100 procurement
Strengthen the theyear : process.
quantity  and Fuel and related products . .
quality of | Various Goods'| fér the [nstitute’s vehicles™ ; ' Implemented - as
_training,— —]-procured by 30 | were procured during the 255,000 235,000 0 0 planned.
research  and | June 2023 year as per plan; ) L.
consultancy The Institute
. Procurement of scanners -
services; and printers during the | 45,000 39,120 5,380 13.1 g‘t’,‘r‘r‘l‘r‘l‘:edp;%t‘fci;g
year as per plan. ‘ machine it has.
Computers, Laptops,
projectors and podiums, Implemented as
ICT Equipment, Cisco, planned. The
wireless access points and 813,500 711,638 101,862 12.5 varfance was due to
data cabinets were improper estimation
procured during the yea of needs.
as per plan. .
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EXPENDITURE STATUS
Actual Progress in Actual varlance
Relation to Key Annual Budget Cumulative (C=A-B) (TZS Change (%) Spent
performance Indicators | (A) (TZS ‘000') Expenditure :000") (D=C/A)
(KPI) (B) (TZS '000%) t
Implemented as
Furniture and fittings planned. The
were procured during the 500,000 442,868 57,132 11.4 varjance was due to
year as per plan. - improper estimation
of needs.
Kitchen appliances were
procured during the year 3,000 2,950 50 1.7 Implemented as
planned.
as per plan.
Calendars, diaries, Annual Implemented as
reports, Newsletters and planned. The
IFM  Joumals  were 100,600 70,901 29,699 29.5 variance was due to
procured during the year {mproper estimation
as per plan. of needs.
Procurement of  staff Implemented as
uniforms-and-Graduation- planned. The
Gowns were procured 125,000 108,‘489—"—16;511— 13.2 variance was due to
during the year as per improper estimation-|~
plan. of needs.
Partially
Building materials for all Implemented due to
Campuses were procured 918,700 573,073 345,627 37.6 prolonged
during the year. procurement
processes.
Expand and
ma?ntain Various Goods | s conditioners for the :’artlially d d
hysical procured by 30 | |novivite’s main campus mplemented due to
fnfrastm cure: | June 2023 were procured during the £8,000 42,430 45,570 51.9 prolonged
' year procurement
processes.
vehicles for the Institute. Not Implemented due
procured during the year 400,000 0 400,000 100 to prolonged
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EXPENDITURE STATUS
i| Actual Progress in Actual Variance
{| Relation to Key Annual Budget Cumulative (C=A-B) (TZS Change (%) Spent
4| Performance Indicators (A) (TZS ‘000°) Expenditure ".000,) ' (D=C/A)
3| (KPD (B) (TZS 000")
procurement
processes.
Only 10 Tyres for two
vehicles were
Tyres  batteries and g;?‘:nrg“ 45"'“35 rttehri
mechanical tools 96,400 85,453 10,947 11.4 “nd the rest were
procured during the year procured during the
end of the previous
. ‘ . financial year.
First ald kit for the}.  °
Institute campuses -6,600--. T 6,450 " TS0 23 -lnl1plemdented-- B
procured during thie Vear A . planned.
- ' Implemented" as
Cleaning services were | planned. The
procured for the year as 330,000 202,101 127,899 38.8 variance-was-due-to-
planned. improper estimation
of needs.
Strengthen the Implemented as
- quantity and Various Provision of security planned. The
quality of cervices services procured for the 360,000 243,046 116,954 32.5 variance was due to
training, rocured by 30 year as planned. {mproper estimation
research and 5une 2023 of needs.
consultancy implemented as
services; Catering setvices were planned. The
provided during the year 453,000 357,762 95,238 21.0 variance was due to
as planned improper estimation
| of needs.
Procurement of, Partially
advertisement ' and 85,000 30,310 54,690 64.3 implemented as per
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EXPENDITURE STATUS
:| Actual Progress in Actual Varjance
.| Relation to Key Annual Budget Cumulative (C=AB) (TZS Change (%) Spent
Performance Indicators (A) (TZS '000') Expenditure '000") (D=C/A)
i| (KPI) (B) (TZS “000")
publication services plan because few
procured for the year as adverts and
planned. publications  were
held during the 1%
and 2™ quarters
Partfally
Service of motor vehicles | implemented
procured for the year as 225,600 102,182 123,418 54.4 vehicles were rarely
planned. serviced because
they were still new,
Partially
. . implemented office
Service of office
equipment for the year | 411,500 156,677 254,823 61.9 equipment was rarely
rocured as planned - - serviced because
P P ' most of them were
new. :
Implemented as
Conference facilities 5:::.‘:: ct was due ::“:
were procured for the 638,672 548,189 90,483 14.2 fimited number of
year as planned. activitles organized
_ _ by the Institute.
Air Travel Services are
provided during the year 317,500 317,295 205 0.1 "{‘ap:ﬁge"te". as
| as planned. P :
Fumigation services were 1ol ted
provided during the year 30,000 29,215 785 2.6 ’{‘P e”:f“ e as
as planned, planned.
Internet  services are Implemented as per
provided during the year 296,000 220,150 75,850 25.6 plan and the
as planned. ' contract is in
75
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EXPENDITURE STATUS
Actual Progress in Actual Variance
Relation to Key Annual Budget Cumulative (C=A-B) (TZS Change (%) Spent
Performance Indicators (A) (TZS '000') Expenditure ‘000") (D=C/A)
{KPI) (B) (TZS '000")
. L ;r:gress to iinr]i‘ove
internet service.
Improve Various :
Printing examination
';;';’c“ei::s o ;er;f:f: 4py 30 | SETPLS and_certifcates | 230,020 227,991 2,029 0.1 L’{‘apl}sg“de“ted as
governance; June 2023 for the year as per plan ]
Under
Expand and Various Consultancy services for Implementation:
maintain consultancy supervision of ' Contract in progress
hysical services construction works at| 250,000 47,500 202,500 -81.0 and the consultant is
?nf¥ast ructure: procured by 30 | Mwanza Campus procured | - i at the slte supervising
* | June 2023 as per plan. the construction
- -works.
-—[Improve———|-€onduct-four d-

. One  Tender  Board - )
E:;‘t:?;; ind m‘edtf; gi"g;d meeting was being held 33,200 30,050 3,150 9.5 :ﬂ‘g’;ﬁgﬁ"‘ed as
governance; 30 June 2023 every quarter.

TB, PMU and

user
Enhance the department TB, PMU and the user Implemented as
capacity of attend at least department attended planned, however,
human one PPANG.7 | training on PPA No. 7 of | 42,000 24,060 17,940 27 due 10 St schedule
resources and the 2011 and the amendment fgiﬁargio a:jtteoés
staff welfare; | g0 | 2016 by 30 June 2023 training. n

2016 by 30

June 2._’023
Overall Performance 8,445,492 6,114,091 2,331,401 27.6
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2.20 CURRENT, FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE RESOURCES

The Institute will continue to improve its provision of services through competent and
motivated employees by complying with all rules and |:'egulations while focusing on value-added
customer services. In addition, the Institute will continue with its expansion strategies through
the development of Campuses in Geita and Mwanza to increase student enrolment. In the next
financial year, the Institute plans to initiate construc:tion of the Mwanza Campus in the Kiseke
Area. This facility will have the capacity to accommodate 2,520 students at once, these
infrastructures will be able to run programmes of about 10,000 students in a typical semester.

The Institute plans to shift Mwanza Campus operations from the current rented facilities at

Rock City Mall by the commencement of the 2024/2‘15 academic year. The Institute expects to
enroll 2,000 students in the academic year 2022/23 and 2,100 students in the year 2023/24.

The construction of Simiyu and Geita Campuses are expected to be completed during the
financial year 2023/24. The Simiyu Campus has elnrolled 198 students and the number is
expected to increase to 300 students in the academic year 2023/24.

The Institute will continue to improve -and modernize its business operations. and services to
the satisfaction of its stakeholders. '

2.21 RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Institute of Finance Management is a public institution that is not for profit motive but
rather for implementing it is core responsibilities as defined in the IFM Act, 1972. The
management plans to utilize the surplus of TZS 3,417.2 million (2022: TZS 6,014.3 million) for
financing future activities of the Institute in line wi th the Approved Strategic Plan of 2021/22-

2025/26.
2.22 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND POSITI(;JN

(a) Statement of Financial Performance

The performance of the Institute is measured based on the achievements it makes in
implementing its core functions as stipulated under Section 4 of the IFM Act No. 3 of 1972.
However, the Institute needs to generate adequate resources in order to support its operations.

i) Revenue

During the financial year ended 30 June 2023 total revenue amounted to TZS 39,138.7 million
(2022: TZS 35,852.2 million) resulting into an incrfease of TZS 3,286.5 million representing an
increase of 9.2 %. The increased revenue was mainly attributed to income from exchange
transactions (tuition fees), Government subvention and HEET Project Funds.

i) Expenses

The Institute expe;nses and transfers for the financial year ended 30 ,Jﬁne 2023 aggregated to
TZS 35,721.5 miltion (2022: TZS 29,837.9 million). The increase in expenses of TZS 5,883.6
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million, representing 19.7%, was mainly associated w1th maintenance activities of our buildings,
increase in salaries and employee benefits, at our campuses and HEET project activities.
Overall, the Institute recorded a surplus of TZS 3,417, 2 million (2022: TZS 6,014.3 million).

The major components of the expenses during the year gnded 30.June 2023 were wages, salaries
and employee benefits amounting to TZS 16,583.6million (2022: TZS 15,251.4 million) where
the increase of TZS 1,332.2 million was on account of salanes for new employed staff and heavy
teaching workloads for academic staff. Further expenlses related to use of goods and services
aggregated to TZS 11,909.9 million (2022: TZS 9, 605 1 million) mainly on account of the
increase of academic service activities and HEElT project expenditure. Furthermore,

depreciation and amortization amounted to TZS 3,176.5 million (2022: TZS 1,972.8 million).

The noted increase of TZS 1,203.7 million was attnbuted to newly acquired property and
equipment. Further, the increases in malntenance expenses to TZS 1,493.3 million (2022: TZS
1,116.6 million) was on account of maintenance of buildings and major rehabilitation of
plumbing system in Hostel Block D. Social Benefits expenses have increased to TZS 915.3 million
(2022: TZS 820.8 million) on account of provision for four members of staff expected to retire
in the financial year 2023/24.

Capital Expenditure

The Institute continued to improve its infrastructures to ensure smooth conduct of academic
services which led to an increase in Capital Expencliiture to TZS 5,573.6 million- (2022: TZS
2,444.7 miltion). Out of this amount TZS 3,143.2 mill,ion and TZS 2,430.2 million were related
to Work In Progress and acquisition of non-current assets respectively. Financial Position

The Institute’s total assets increased by TZS.6,252.6 million to TZ5 93,043.3 million (2022:. TZS
86,790.7 million) on account of additional acquisition of property and equipment, capital work
in progress and cash and cash equivalents: leevnse, total capital, reserves and liabilities
increased by TZS 6,252.6 million to TZS 93, ,043.3 mllllon (2022: TZS. 86,790.7 million). The
noted increase was mainly attributed to an additional surplus for the year 2022/23 amounting
to TZS 3,417.2 million.

i) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Institute cash and cash equivalent as at 30 June|2023 was TZS 16,531.9 million (2022: TZS
8,642.1 million) increased by TZS 7,889.8 million,| equivalent to 91.3%. This increase was
attributed to the full collection of tuition fees from sltudents sponsored by HESLB for the second
semester of the academic year 2022/23 and balance of HEET project funds received by the
Institute from the Ministry of Finance dn 6 March 2023 to undertake academic transformation.

if) Trade and other Recewables from Exchange Transactions

The analysis of the recorded performance on recognized revenue as at 30 June 2023 indicates
that the Institute had cumulative revenue receivables from exchange transactions of TZ5
1,039.5 million (2022: TZS 5,743.7 million). This substantial decrease was attributed to the
settlement of HESLB dues made within 2022/23. Receivables with the age up to one year, in
respect of the fmancnal year ended 30 June 2023 was TZS 722.3 million (2022: TZS 4,108.6
miltion) and the long outstanding receivables beyoqd one year was TZS 1,111.4 million (2022:
TZS 1,506.4 mllllon) Refer to note 7 of the Financial Statements. Prepayments decreased by
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TZS 902.8 million and were mainly contributed

by the detivery of four (4) motor vehicles which

~ were paid in the financial year 2021 /22; and other advance payments for operating expenses.

Staff Loans receivables amounted to TZS 38.9 milliqn (2022: TZS 61.5 million), and these

indicate a large portion of amount collected from_ staff who were issued with advances during

the financial year.

~ jii) Property, Plant and Equipment

The Property, Plant and Equipment during the year er:1ded 30 June 2023 stood at TZ5 78,651.6
million (2022: TZS 76,221.4 miltion). The increase of TZS 2,430.2 million was attributed to the
acquisition of four motor vehicles, furniture and fittings, ICT equipment, office machines,
graduation gowns and library books. The figures are based on cost -

£

In addition, Work in Progress aggregated to TZS 8,304.9 million as at 30 June 2023 (30 June

2022 TZS 5,161.5). The increase of TZS 3,143‘-.4 was’ mainly attributed.to work in progress is
related to construction activities for Geita and Kiseke Mwanza Campus. The Institute could not

capitalize on this as the work is still in progress.

Capital Work in Progress.

2 iv) Intangible Assets

Acc&rdingly, they are shown separately under

The net book value of jntangible assets as at 30.June 2023 was TZS 124.8.million (2022 TZ5
150.1 million). The decrease was due to amortization.charges made during the financial year.

v) " payables and Accrued Expenses

Total payables and accrued expenses as at 30 June 2023 were TZS 5,171.3 milli'on: (20:22: TZS

3,278.6 million). The major part of the payables and accrued expenses were Debtors with credit
balances (Deposit General) which increased by TZ51,370.2 million, on account.of. HESLB funds
where a large portion of students were granted full sponsorship, which resulted in a claim of
tuition fees refund in the next financial year 2023/24. Also, Caution money payable increased

.,

by TZS 199.8 million due to a large number of first-year students registered in the academic

year 2022/23. Furthermore, other creditors of goods and services increased by TZS 228.5
million due to expansion of academic services offe red at the Institute. ' - :

(b) Budget Performance

e The Institute prepares its budget on an annual basis for which an assessment is done to compare

the actual performance against the budget. For the period under review, the Institute’s actual
performance is summarized in the following Table 19:

..

O
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able 19; Budget Performance
Budget for
Actual for 2022/23 Variance Variance
Description 2022/23 Reasons/Remark
(TZ5'000°) (TZ5'000%) (TZ5’000") (%)
Revenue
The difference was attributed to a fevw cons
Revenue from Exchange obtained and fees from students who have p
Transactions 29,721,030 28,826,910 | 894,120 3.0 studfes in the second semester and have not I
respective tuition fees, o
The budget for salaries was fixed following r
Subvention from other : s the ceiling from the Government. Furthermo
Government Entities 12,702,186 9,254,439 .3'447’747 7.1 were delays in promoting staff and fill
vacancies which were budgeted during the ye:
Revenue Grant 3,500,000 2,618,179 881,821 25.2 Delay on procurement process. _
. The decrease is due to decrease in short cour:
Other Revenue 2,932,382 1,814,953 1,117,429 28.1 supervision fee, ID processing fees and Ti
_ . ) . application fees.
Total Revenue 48,855,598 42,514,481 6,341,117 13.0
Expenses . S
- - . : The under expenditure is mainly related to ¢
:’agefsi; Salarfes and Employee | . 2cc 276 —— 16,583,622- 1,182,754 6:7———{ promoting-staff-and-filling -new-vacanciesb
enetits during the year.
The difference is due to some planned a
Use of Goods and Service 13,284,427 11,909,893 - 1,374,534 10.3 activities which were not conducted and a
control of expenditures,
. . ' The difference is due to the under-budgeted an
Social Benefits 430,000 + 631,569 141,569 28.9 retirement benefits
Other Transfers ~ 300,000 3Q0,000. - - . N/A ‘
R - ‘The difference is due to some carry-over funds
Other Expenses 3,392,157 | ‘1,288,927_ v v 2,103,230 62.0 financial year 2021/22 which were included
: . budget for the year 2022/23
Depreciation Expenses - 3,151,240 -3,151,240 N/A
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LT The difference is due to adequate contro
Maintenance Expenses 1,960,350 1,493,304 447,046 23.8 expenditures related to general maintenance of
buildings
This is capital budget which is disclosed in other re,
2‘3‘."5“;”:5 of Property and) 4 499788 |- 11,199,788 100 (Cash flow statement, PPE Schedule Note 10A
quipmen Work in Progress Note 9)
Acquisition of Intangible Assets | 462,500 - 462,500 100 The intangible assets are disclosed in Note 10B
: Fair value adjustment - -2,142 2,142 - N/A
Impairment loss of assets - 53,859 (53,859) - N/A
Total Expenses 48,855,598 | 135,410,272 13,445,326 27.5
81
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2.23 OWNERSHIP

The Institute of Finance Management is
of Tanzania as stipulated in the IFM Act

2.24 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS|:

Related party is the one who has the ability, aiithicrity and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities or exerciseisignifi_ifﬁﬁt irifluence in making financial and operating
decisions. A related party transaction is & t_ransj:elajr of resources, services or obligations between
related’ parties, regardless of whether, @ price-is| charged or not. Under the Institute’s
circumstances, the Governing Council Mgmbgrs';!zgnd _S'Ienior Management Employees are related
parties. The related party transactions refer only to, Governing Council members’ annual fees
and senior management emoluments as _ijiscloséd-un@ler Note 35 of the Financial Statements.

2.25 EMPLOYEES WELFARE

The Institute provides employees welfare in accordance with the Government’s directives, Staff

Regulations, and Scheme of Service and incenti\f(e paEkage approved by the Governing Council.
i
(a) Management - employees’ relationship |

A healthy relationship continues to exist betweén management and employees. There were no
unresolved complaints received by the management from the employees during the financial
year 2022/23. '

Employees were represented at various levels of decision-making, particularly through their
leaders’ participation in the Workers’ Council as we:ll as in the meetings of the Committees of
the Governing Council.

The Institute is an equal-opportunity employer! It gives equal access to employment
opportunities and it ensures that the best available person is appointed to any given position,
free from discrimination of any kind and without regard for factors like gender, marital status,

tribe, religion or disability.
(b) Training I §~i v

Human resources play a significant roléE in :de\}'e}dp'ing and reinforcing positive performance

within an organization. Likewise, at the l:ijstit:uté hu"man resources is one of the key components

that facilitate fulfillment of the Instituté’s core éfun:ctions.

When organizations develop their empldyees, t,heg}_ are strengthening their assets and making

these employees even more valuable. 'l?i'p'-inlpr_'ve!.: efficiency and effectiveness of employees'

work performance, the Institute in zozi;l{;z_s _'if_iriFnc;{al year spent TZS 792.6 million (2022: TZS
SR T i
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700.0 million) in training both academic staff and, non-academic staff. Training of staff
members is guided by the Training Policy of the Institute. Training efforts were focused on
short-term and long-term training geared towards enhancing academic and professional
competence,

(c) Promotions

The Institute budgeted and received the approval of 87 staff promotions from the Permanent
Secretary (Establishment) for the financial year 2022/23. These promotions were implemented
during the year under review.

(d) Health, Safety and Working Environment

Effective health, safety and risk managementis a pnonty for the Institute. The Institute’s safety
management system delivers a safe working enwronment by continuously and effectively
assessing the working environment. . !

Management believes that its employees should find working for the Institute an inspiring and
personally elevating experience, and consequently accepts co-responsibility for the
development of each employee to his/her full potential. Career progress.is based on the
individual initiative towards the fulfilment of thew responsibilities complemented by the
Institute. This encompasses individual commitment towards innovative thinking and
professional expertise resulting to reward. '

(e) Opportunities and Fairness

Management is convinced that equal opportunities for all employees, irrespective of ethnicity,
race, gender, disability or religion, should be pursued Management accepts that only through
total commitment, loyalty and dedication of its employees will be able to achieve its
performance targets. !

() Financial Assistance to Staff

This is available to all employees depending on the merit of each case assessed by management
as well as liquidity position of the Institute. However,: employees are also encouraged to obtain
loans or advances from Commercial banks to meet their various needs in as far as finance is
concerned. The Institute continues to grant finanlcial assistance in accordance with the
Financial Regulations (2016). During the year under review, the Institute made internal financial
assistance to staff in the form of staff loans amountmg to TZS 38.9 million {2022: TZS 61.5
million).

(g) Employees’ benefit plan

The Institute operates an unfunded and budgeted; benefit scheme for its employees. The
provision is made in the financial statement for the elstimated cost of the future benefits under
the scheme, but employees’ contributions are not made to the scheme. The Institute has a
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defined contributions p'lan to cater for pension obligations for her employees by paying on a
monthly basis agreed contributions to the Pension Funds.

Employees working on a contract bjcnsis are ‘paid gratuity which is equal to 25% of the total
emoluments during the contract peried. In order to ensure that employee welfare is
safeguarded, the Institute complies fully with Wor_km;en's Compensation Act which requires
compensation with employees injured in course of theill' employment.

(h) Medical facilities ‘
The Institute meets the cost of medical consuttation and treatment for all employees and their
immediate family dependents through contributions made to the National Health Insurance

Fund (NHIF). !
(i) Voluntary Agreement and Workers Council |

The Institute has a voluntary agreement with Researchers Academician and Allied Workers
Union (RAAWU) which assists in enhancing good ind?stﬁal relations, employee welfare and
retaining of highly skilled staff. |

2.26 DISABLED PERSONS AND GENDER BALANCE

The recruitment policy of the Institute does not discriminate against persons with physical
disabilities. There are persons with disabilities among the members of staff as well as among
students. Further, in case an employee becomes disabled in the course of employment the
Institute ensures that his employment continues. Furthermore, the Institute provides training,

career development and promotion to disabled empl?yees like other employees.

The Institute attempts to abide to the national gender balance policy and it has been very keen
in considering gender balance in appointments at vaqious levels based on ability, qualifications
and integrity. Currently, nine female .members! of staff are heading directorates or
departments. The gender parity of staff members at! the Institute was as shown in Table 20.

Table 20: Gender Balance i

Gender 2023 A 2022

Number . Percentage Number Percentage
Males 223 . 66 205 67
Females 115 kL 100 33
Total 338 100 305 100

Source: Human Capital Management Information System i

2.27 SOLVENCY AND GOING CONCERN EVALl.iATION
I

The Institute Council confirms that, in
International Public Sector Acco
Council ensures that Institute ©

unting Stan

i

the course of preparin
dards (IPSAS) ha
f Finance Management ha

e been comp

g these financial statements,
lied with. The Institute
s adequate funds to meet its main
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objectives which compnse training, research and consultancy activities. During the year under
review, the Institute’ $ cash and cash equivalent was TZS 16,531.9 million. The Government of
the United Republic of Tanzania will continue to provide grants to the Institute to meet
operational expenses, especially personnel emoluments and development activities. In view of
this assessinent, the Governing Council is of the opiniqh that the Institute has a sound financial
position and will continue to operate for the unforesetiaable future.

2.28 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
(a) Code of Corporate Practice and Conduct

Institute is committed to the principles of effective Corporate Governance. The Governing
Council complies with principles of good Corporate Governance. In observing good governance,
it has established and maintained Committees 1n<|:lud|ng the Audit Committee, Finance
Development and Planning Committee, Staff and Students Affairs Committee.

(b) Flexibility towards Change !

The current organizational structure is flexible and accommodates changes from internal as
well as external environments. Moreover,, the Instltute periodically reviews its rules and
regulations with a view of ensuring the best performance of its operations. The Institute
adheres to the global standards and practices of good corporate governance. The Councilors
continue to strengthen good governance system by reviewing various performance reports and
approving policies and guidelines to enhance good governance.

(c) Business ethics and organizational integrity :

The Institute’s Code of Conduct is based on the highest standards of integrity, conduct and
ethics in its dealings with all parties including employees, customers, suppliers, competitors,
investors and the public in general. The management and staff are expected to fulfil their
ethical obligations in such a way that the business is'run strictly according to laid out policies
and procedures. )

© (d) Performance evaluation and reward

The Institute ensures compliance with the government’s directives on salaries and other
benefits payable to staff, while at the same time considering the intrinsic value of the individual
contributions. Details of the remuneration paid to key management staff are disclosed in Note
34 to the financial statements. !

2.29 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Institute encourages employees to participate in partnerships and supportive relationships
to make a tangible impact on local and national communities. We believe in creating a better
world for our employees, their families and our neighbors. During the year under review, the
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Institute engaged in various corporate social responsibility activities. These included financial
support of; .

i, TZS 6.1 million Donated to students who had accidents during SHIMIVUTA completion;
§i. TZS 0.3 million Donated to Tanzania Association of the Blind;

fii. TZS 1.1 million “Mchango wa Mbio za Mwenge Msiata";

iv. TZS 0.4 miltion Paid to Misungwi hospital for student treatment who got an accident;

2.30 HIV/AIDS AWARENESS PROGRAMME

The Institute recognizes the seriousness of the HIV/AIDS epidemic and its negative impacts on
the capacity to realize the National Agenda on making Tanzania free from the epidemic. The
Institute has adopted the National HIV/AIDS Policy and prepared its HIV/AIDS strategies, which
aim at raising HIV/ AIDS awareness to her employee:s and students. During the year under
review, it conducted two awareness seminars to the ‘employees and the students. Also, The
Institute encourages its employees to undergo regular yoluntary HIV tests and for those in need
of medical assistance such assistance is provided free of charge by the Institute.

2.31 PRINCIPAL RISKS, UNCERTAINTIES AND OPPORTUNITIES
2.31.1 Internal Control and Risk Management .
a) Council’s Responsibility

The Council is ultimately responsible for risk ménage:ment, determining the system of internal
controls operated by the Institute and for monitoring and effectiveness of the control
environment. It is the task of the management to eﬁsure that adequate internal financial and
operational control are developed, reviewed a'lnd maintained on an ongoing basis to provide
reasonable assurance with regard to: - ;

The effectiveness and efficiency of operzf;ltions;

The safepuarding of the Institute assets;

Compliance with applicable laws and reé‘ulatfions;

« The reliability of accounting records; .

« Business sustainability under normal as vi;ell as adverse conditions; and
« Responsible behaviour towards all staker'}olders.

The efficiency of the internal control systerh is dependent on the strict observance of
prescribed measures. Always, there is a risk of non-compliance with such measures by staff
whilst no system can provide absolute assurance against misstatement or loss, the Institute
control system is designed to manage rather tha:n eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives.
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b) Key elements of the system of internal control
1

The management receives reports setting out key performance and risk indicators and considers
possible control issues brought to their attention by early warning mechanisms. Key elements
- I
of the system of internal control are as follows: -

i. Budgets !

Detailed annual budgets are prepared by Management and discussed by the Workers Council
and later submitted to the Finance, Planning apd Devellopment Committee of the Council for
review and subsequently approved by the Council. The budget briefings take place yearly and
are attended by the Deans of Faculties, Headsi of Academic and Administrative Departments
and stakeholders including; the trade union and academic and administrative staff associations
to discuss key strategic issues within the [nstitute. These meetings are chaired by Rector who
is the Accounting Officer of the Institute. . !

{i. Competence

Staff skiils are maintained both by a formal recruitment process and a performance appraisal
system, which identifies training needs. Also, necessary training, both in-house and externally,
helps to consolidate existing staff skills and competencies.

jii. Risk Assessment 'l
1 |
- |
The Council understands the specific sources; of risk and analysis of their impact on its
operations at the Institute. In the financial year 2021722 the Governing Council used risk
assessment frameworks to enable the analysis- of co:st-effective mitigation strategies. Among
the types of risks that the Council is aware of _';md their mitigation strategies are provided in

Table 21. Lo

Table 21: The Institute Risks, Impacts and Mitigati?n

S/N

Risks

impacts

Risks Mitigation

1.0

Information and Communication
Management

The Institute'ls core activities are
automated and the business data

and information are properly
managed in IGT systems.

The fact that ICT systems are
changed periodically in line with
technology advancement, the
threat of Cyber-attacks is
becoming more sophisticated and
greater numbersl of third parties
seek to access our business data
and remove it from the safety of
our systems and firewalls.

1 We have, and continue to
invest significantly in our
data, analytics and Cyber-
security capabilities to better

- meet  evolving customers’
needs and expectations, and
to reduce the potential for
data breaches.

ii. We actively engage with eGA
to ensure that there is
appropriate governance in
place and that changes {n eGA

guidelines appropriately
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balance the value of giving
If the Institute fails to ensure that customers control of their
jts information is kept' safe and data, with our duty to protect
-y used by intended stakeholders stakeholders’  privacy and
t and specific users only, may security.
significantly i'_mpact relationships fii. We continuously invest in ICT
with these stakeholders and the systems security and enhance
general public. : I access management controls
: ' to secure the confidentiality,
! . integrity and availability of
' jnstitute data.

iv. Our ICT staff and selected ICT
application systems users from
other Directorates, Units and
Sections undergo mandatory
training modules to ensure
they understand the
jmportance of data security
and their obligations in
relation to the data they
access.

7.0 | Financial NManagement

|

Controller and Auditor General
|

t

|
The Institute’s aFtivities are

- potentially exposed toa variety of

financial management  risks
including fin?ncial| risk, market
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk
as briefly explained below:

(a) FinancialiRisk

The financial Fisk is the possibility
that the lnsti‘.ute’é cash flow will
prove inadequa e to meet the
Institute’s, ob\igations.

(b) Market Risk.

Market risk is the risk of changes
in market prices, such as foreign
exchange rates and interest rates,
affecting the Institute's income oF
the value off it financiat
jnstruments. The objective of
market risk management is to
manage and coptrol market risk
exposures  within acceptable
parameters whille optimizing the
return on the risk.

{c) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one

party to a fpancial instrument

i. We prepare our annual plan
and budget in line with the
Government guidelines on the
preparation of a Medium-Term
Expenditure Framework (MTEF)
to address financial  risk
management.

ii. We opened and operated bank
accounts in poth Tanzania
Shillings -and United States
Doliar (USD) tomitigatamarket
risks.

ii we do mot regard any
significant - concentration. of
credit risk; hence, W€ mitigate
the credit risk by maintaining
cash and cash equivalents with
the preferred financial
institutions; and recovering
staff debts, jmprest or salary
advance in terms of the
applicable financial regulations
(2016) directly from the
employee’s salary and/or

pension.
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S/N Risks Impacts Risks Mitigation

will fail to discharge an obligation |iv.We manage liquidity risk to
and cause the other party to incur ensure the Institute is able to
a financial loss. The Institute is meet estimated expenditure
exposed to credit-related losses in requirements based on

) the event of non-performance by approved budget and through

counter parties o | financial the use of cash flow forecasts.
instruments. : This is achieved through
(d) Liquidity Risk practical liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the r:isk of the management which jncludes
Institute not being abl}e to meet | maintaining sufficient cash and
its obligations as they fall due. cash equivalents. .

5 The Institute’s apﬁmach to | v.Furthermore,  the Institute
managing liquidity risk is to strive to ensure that receivables
ensure that sufficient/liquidity is are settled as prescribed in the
avallable to 'meet its liabilities | financial regulations (2016),
when due, without incurring and payables are settled timely.
unacceptable losses . or risking

—~ damage - to- the Institute's

- reputation. : . -

3.0 | Quality Service Delivery ‘Meeting customer needs and | i. We are in - process of
expectations  with fnnovative implementing - a  Quality
solutions - -.and | superior Management -System (QMS)
experiences  is  critical  to based on iSO 9001 which
maintaining high-quality focuses on customer

) relationships 'with our students, satisfaction with continuous
suppliers and iother stakeholders. jmprovement to our service
T | delivery.

The fact that customers' and other if. We actively monitor quality of
stakeholders”: expectations service delivery to customers
continue to évolve,!the Institute and stakeholders’
~ strives in engaging to emerging preferences, technologies,
o technologies | to improve and methods of service
effectiveness, and efficiency in delivery and continuously
service delivery. improve customer experiences
- with our services by adhering
Any failure tojrecognize and adapt to the Institute’s Customer
to changing competitive forces in Service Delivery  Charter

a the academic sector promptly (2022). :
could redui:e our revenue -|iii. We invest in our employees
potential and service delivery and build capacity in key areas
improvements over, a long term. of technology capability,
! governance, customer care
which are critical to our value
proposition to customers and
~ other stakeholders, including
training on Cyber-security,
digital channels, artificial
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Risks Mitigation

iv.

\£

intelligence, academic
standards, data and analytics.
We are investing in emerging
technologies through
Enterprise Resource Planning
(ERP) to ensure that the way
we operate and the solutions
we provide to our customers
and other stakeholders are
leading in the academic
sector.

We invest in employees’
prqducti\n'ty to optimize our
cost base and continue to
remain competitive for our
stakeholders.

4.0 | Reputation

{
Our reputation 1s| of critical

related” to how we |conduct our
services; make business decisions;
and communicate with the
Government and other public
institutions, customers,
regulatory  bodiess and  the
communities withinI our working
environment.

A negative shift in any of our

| stakeholder’s; perceptions may.

materially undermine our ability
to advocate for positive outcomes
that-align to’ our vision, mission
and core values; and our ability to
drive long-term performance.

This may also affect the cost and
availability of financial resources
necessary for the iImplementation
of the Institute’s annual plans and
budgets. o

|

jmportance to us ar}d is directly

il

i,

We actively focus on
improving the transparency of
our service decisions and
engage with our esteemed
customers, employees and the
general - public -gspecially
those around the campuses in
which we operate to
understand their concerns and
balance their needs.

We- have embedded. our
Institute’s  culture  which
communicates  what _ we
expect of our employees in
applying our vision, mission
and core values as a guide for
the Institute’s core activities
and decision-making:

We continue to.drive deeper

engagement with:  the
Government, customers and
other -  stakeholders in

education sector to ensure we
deliver better and consistently
fair outcomes. and remediate
jssues when we -are made
aware of them.
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5.0 |.Employee Capability . Our employees are critical to the fi. We are investing in our value
i success of our strategic objectives proposition as an employer,
and ensuring that we are able to through new ways of working,
continuously find better ways to competitive benefits and a
operate and meet customers' and focus on culture and diversity.
other stakeholders’ heeds and | We develop a sound Scheme of
expectations. Service and team up with the
: | Public Service Recruitment
A shortage of key skills, a fallure | Secretariat on the recruitment
to help our people continuously | of competent staff.
update their capab'ilities, the | ii.We focus on developing and
emergence of new ﬁechnologies _ retaining  our employees,
and/or a fall in our attractiveness including management staff,
relative to 'othér . leading through . targeted training
employers, could impact our programs and skills upgrading.
ability to deliver on.our strategic |iii.We are creating flexible and
objectives, _strategies, targets, innovative . work-spaces  to
vision and mission. | enable . stronger -collaboration
L ' and foster. .an - innovative
culture. -~ - - .
' iv.We are ‘building partnerships
N with - leading higher -learning
institutions to.further develop
top talent and are investing in
community ..awareness . of
potential future skills
\ shortages. . .
' v.We are .assessing how new
' - technologies - -will impact the
i future.. workforce.: for- our
Institute: We.are building these
changes " into our long-term
| people development  and
capability road map.
6.0 | Compliance with rules, | Compliance. witi? legislation | i, we allocate 2 material
legislation and regulations governing regulatioln of education proportion of our budget to
sector and implementation as legislation compliance; risk
well as regulatory bodies are prevention initiatives and
critical to how we continue to run - éngage with policymakers and
our business and interact with our - communities to advocate for
customers and other |  appropriate legislatior
stakeholders. : reform: -
ii. We maintain constructive and
The academic sector and tax| - proactive relationships Wwith
legislation are subject to changes. the- Government;
If we are unable to foresee, - parliamentary - committees
advocate for, plan for, and adapt (Budget and-Public Accounts);

i
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to legislation change, this could
negatively impact the Institute’s
compliance with academic sector
regulations, and tax, legislation
together with our ability to serve
customers and ! other
stakeholders. !

and the Parliament in general
where ‘we get an opportunity
to share our comments on
legislation changes.

We engage consultants to
support the Institute in
compliance with tax
legislation and all other
relevant sector legislation.

3

Social and Environmental

We actively consider the social
and environmental ir}xpact of our
activities and are c?_mmitted to
operating sustainably and making
a positive contribution beyond our
established objeclztive and
statutory functions as stipulated

in the establishing Act.

We  consider social  and
environmental :issues 10 be
significant long-term drivers of
both financial and non-financial
value; ' We appreciate the
potential impact they have on our
relationships ~ with different
customers and other stakeholders
allocated in IFM carlnpuses.

The Institute designs
appropriate conservation
programs that take a long:
term view to ensure that we
conduct our activities
sustainably and efficiently,
and appropriatély use our
influence to enhance social
and environmental outcomes:
We are complying with the
National - - Environment
Management Council (NEMC),
Occupational ~ Safety and
Health Authority{OSHA) rules,
regulations and procedures...’
We coliaborate with putilic
and private institutions on the
protection of environmental
pollution.

Business Continuity

The resilience andI continuity: of
our operations are critical to
providing our cx:Jstomers with
quality and reliable services and
experiences that! they expect

from the Institute.

Events driven b)'r our external
environment, including Cyber-
attacks, political instability,
unfavourable business conditions,
pandemics, and adverse weather
conditions such as heavy _r_ainfalls
ji.e., El Nino can significantly
disrupt the systems and processes
that enable the Institute to serve

and protect our customers and

other stakeholdqrs.

We monitor- the-health of -all
ICT systems, - documented
internal Operating Procedures
(1ops)” ° -and = - - perform
contingency  planning for
disruptions to critical systems
and processes.

We are implementing several
process and - system
simplification initiatives
through investments in agile
capability, automation and
ICT systems resilience.

We are investing in our
technology, = processes and
employee -capabilities to
mitigate the impact of Cyber-
security- risks on our business
processes.
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. The Institute policies and
standards on supplier
governance, selection and
management and outsourcing
or offshoring are applied to
mitigate the risk and impact of
third-party disruptions.

a) Opportunities

The Institute’s risk assessment process identified op:;portunities that would enhance the
strategic plan execution as summarized below:

i, Technological advancement and avenues for digi:tization of processes and operations are
opportunities for improving the Institute’s performance. This is possible through the use
of internally ICT-developed infrastructure systems. The Institute has potential to

enhance quality service delivery and increase revenue generation

by taking advantage

of new technology in making transformative changes in its operations and processes.

ii. Existence of international and regional collafboration and agreements to promote
research, consultancy and increased regional agreements and policies on both academic
and capital developments. '

b) Assumptions on Risks,

The Institute is mindful of the fo

Uncertainties and Oppprtunities

uncertainties and opportunities:

i. Macro- economic factors or conditions like Inflation,
Domestic Product, per capita income,

|
llowing assumptions during assessments of the risks,

Interest rates, Gross
and terms of

economic growth rate,

international trade exchange rate will continue to perform well and remain fairly

stable;

ii. Political environment will remain stab:le and political support to the education
sector prevail during the implementation of the Institute’s functions;

iii.

iv.

Stable and predictable regulatory| environment like Policies,
Regulations will exist d
Competent, skilled and

Laws and
uring the implementation of IFM functions;
motivated staff will be available during the Strategic Plan

implementation period; )
v. Good or stable retationships with key stakeholders will be maintained during the
jmplementation of the Strategic Plan;

Strategic Plan;
vii.
Strategic Plan.

¥

Availability of sufficient financial and physi
tools, and Standard Operating Procecliures

and

cal resources like buildings, working
(SOPs) for the implementation of the

The revised organization structure will be intact for the implementation of
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2.32 PREJUDICIAL ISSUES
During the year ended 30 June 2023, there were no prejudicial issues to report as required by
the Tanzania Financial Reporting Standards No. 1 Governance Report,

2.33 EVENTS AFrER REPORTING PERIOD . |
There were no material events, adJustmg -0r .non- adJustmg, which occurred between the
reporting date and the date when financial statements were authorized for issue.

2,34 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of key accounting policies in accordance with the International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS) is in Note 2 to the Fmancral Statements and were consistently
applied during the year under review. !

2.35 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE |
The Governance Report is prepared in line with the Tanzania Financial Reporting Standard No.
1 (TFRS No. 1) as issued by the National Board of Accountants and Auditors (NBAA). The
Institute’s financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the International Public
Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) as issued by the1 International- Pubhc Sector Accounting
Standards Board (IPSASB). L.

PUBLICATION OF THE REPORT BY THOSE. CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE AND

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS A

The report by Those Charged with Govemance and' Audited Financial Statements for the
financial year 2021/22 was published in the Institute’s Website as required by National Board
of Accountants and Auditors Technical Pronouncement: No. 1 of 2018.

2.36 AUDIT MANDATE

The Controller and Auditor General is the statutory auditor of the ‘Institite of Finance
Management by virtue of Article 143 of the Constitution of the United Republic of Tanzania as
amplified under Section 10 (1) of the Public Audit Act/No 11 of 2008. However, in accordance
with Section 33 of the same Act, M/s Quintex Financial Services was appointed by the Controller
and Auditor General to carry out the audit of the Instﬂiute for the year ended 30 June 2023,

2,37 APPROVAL
This Report was approved and authorized for issue by the Governing Counc1l and signed on lts

Chairman of the Governing Council Date:

28 \03 \\202,%—
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3.0 STATEMENT OF COUNCILORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Institute of Finance Management Act,.RE 200
that financial statements are prepared for each

1
2 requires the Governing Council to ensure

financial year, which presents fairly, in all

material respects, the state of affairs as at the end of the financial year and of its operating

results for the year that ended. The Governing Council is also

Institute keeps proper accounting records,
the financial position of the Institute. The Governin

required to ensure that the

which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time,
g Council Members are also responsible for

safeguarding the assets of the Institute,

The Governing Council Members are responsible for ensuring the preparation of financial

statements that present fairly,

in all material respects, in

accordance with the International

Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The lGoverning Council Members accept
responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate

accounting policies supported by reasonable estimates,

in conformity with the International

Public Sector Accounting Standards. The Governing Council Members are of the opinion that the

financial statements present fairly,
position of the Institute and its fina

in all material respects the state of affairs of the financial
ncial performance and its cash flows in accordance with the

Internationat Public Sector-Accounting Standards. |

The Governing Council Members further accept responsibility for the maintenance of accouﬁtirig

records that may be relied

adequate system of internat controls. Nothing has come
Council Members to indicate that the Institute will not remain a
twelve months from the date of this statement,

existing laws and regulations applicable in running
d. They include the public Finance Act of 2001 and its amendments, the

the reporting perio

. - . . .
upon in the preparation of financial statements, as well as an

to the attention of the Governing
going concern for at least
The| Governing Council confirms that all-the
the Institute have been.complied with during

public Procurement Act-of 2011 and its Régulations, hnd other laws, circulars-and regulations

applicable to the Institute.

Signed by:g......
Prof. Emmanzel A. Mj

Datel...

\

Chairm tl%;.' (gti:ZD%E-!Soundl
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’ 4,0 DECLARATION OF THE HEAD OF FINANCE OF THE INSTITUTE OF FINANCE MANAGEMENT
The National Board of Accountants and Auditors (NBAA) Iaccording to the power conferred under
the Auditors and Accountants (Registration) Act. No. 33 of 1972, as amended by Act No. 2 of
1995, requires financial statements to be accompanied with a declaration issued by the Head
) of Finance responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the entity concerned.
It is the duty of the Professional Accountant to assist the Governing Council to discharge the
responsibility of preparing financial statements of an entity which shows a true and fair view
of the entity’s position and performance in accordance ‘INith applicable International Accounting
Standards and statutory financfal reporting requirements. Full legal responsibility for the
P preparation of financial statements rests with the Governing Council under the Statement of
’ Councilors Responsibility. : i
I, CPA Alfaksa K. Boniface, being the Acting Director of Finance and Accounts of the Institute
of Finance Management hereby acknowledge ‘'my responsibility of ensuring_that financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2023 have been prepared in compliance with applicable
accounting standards and statutory requirements. | thus confirm that the financial statements
O give a true and a fair view of the position of the Instjtute of Finance Management as on that
date and that they have been prepared based on the properly maintained financial records.
\
o . .
Signed by:..cupdendl _—a |
CPA Alfaksa K. Boniface !
Position: Acting Director of Finance and Accounts |
NBAA Membership No: ACPA 2578 '
Date: f a3 /z2zY.
~
S
.
I

.
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STATEMENT OF THE RECT OR

The Institute is pleased to present its Annual Report for. the financial year 2022/23. The report
presents the operational performance and the draft financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2023,

The Annual Report focuses on the principal activities of the Institute, namely teaching, research
and consultancy, as well as on the lmplementatlon of the Strateglc Plan 2021/22 - 2025726

The financial year ended 30 June 2023 was the second year of implementation of the Strategic
Plan for 2021/22 - 2025/26. The strategic plan prov1des a five-year road-map for the
institutional growth, design and delivery of quahty education and training programmes,
innovative research and community outreach. During| the financjal year under review, the
Institute directed its resources towards the achlevement of the following eight strategic
objectives:

i. Strengthen the quantity and quality of training, research and consultancy services;
ii. Expand and maintain physical infrastructure; -
iii. Enhance the capacity of human resources and staff welfare;
iv. Improve business processes and 'governance;
v. Improve students’ academic and social expenence;
vi. Enhance financial capacity and sustainability; |
.vii. Compliance with the national policy of communicable and non- commUmcable
diseases; and ‘ :
viii. Comply and implement the National anti-corruption strategy. -~ . ..

| .
The IFM Strategic Plan for 2021/22 - 2025/26 is guided by a vision “To be a reputable world-
class higher learning institution that is responsive to global development needs through
provisicn of knowledge and competencies in finance mlanagement and related.disciplines”.

In pursuing this vision, the Institute is committed to.fulfil its mission of “’providing quality
academic and professional training that nurtures creatmty and innovation through integrated
training, research and consultancy in financial studies and related disciplines’’. In achieving its
vision and fulfilling its mission, IFM will adhere to elght (8) core values, which are abbreviated
as ATTITUDE: (i) Accountability, (ii) Transparency and fairness, (iii) Team work, (iv) Integrity
and innovativeness, {(v) Trust, (vi) Unity, (vii) DwerSIty & gender equity, {viii) Excellence and
efficiency. |

During the year under review, the following activitiels were implemented as per the annual
work plan. As at 30 June 2023, a total of 14,491 students were enrolled, out of these 13,042
students were enrolled at the Main Campus (Dar es Salaam), 1,118 students at Mwanza campus
(Mwanza), 187 students at Simiyu campus (Simiyu)'and 144 students at Dodoma campus
(Dodoma). The first phase of the development of the Geita Campus, which involved
construction of Classrooms, Administration Block, -Cafeteria and Multipurpose Hall was
completed by 97.1% by 30 June 2023, Phase two of the project which involves the construction
' i
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of Computer Laboratory, Library, Hostels, and Staff Houses was completed by 65.1% by 30 June
2023, In addition, the contract for execution of external works of Geita Campus; which include
landscaping, water management system,. playgrounds and enhancement of internal road
networks was signed during the period under review. The construction of the Geita campus is
planned to be completed by December 2023, Students will be enrolled at the Geita Campus in
October 2023. Meanwhile, the Institute has started the construction of buildings at Kiseke
Mwanza. Until the end of the financial year under rewew, the construction of the referred
Campus has attained an 8.2% level of completroh The constructlon is expected to be completed
by July 2024, |

During the financial year ended 30 June 2023 a new programme, Bachelor of Cyber Security
was developed and approved by the regulator. Also, ele\:ren new curricula were developed, five
for master’s and six for bachelor’s degree programmes. Qut of these three curricula comprising
two for Master’s degree level and one for Bachelor’s degree level were submitted to the
regulator for approval. _ !

During the period under review, sixty-eight (against plan:ned 69) research papers were published
by faculty members; comprising of twenty-nine (29) journal articles and thirty-nine (39) book
chapters. The Institute improved its business processes and governance . through. the
enhancement of ICT services and development of vanous policy guideline documents. Capacity
building and awareness programmes were conducted to the staff members and students to
enhance the implementation of the National Anti-corruption Strategy and the National Policy
of communicable and non-communicable diseases. |

The Institute is among the beneficiaries of the World! Bank’s Higher Education for Economic
Transformation (HEET) Project, through the Ministry of Education, Science and Technology
(MoEST). The total project budget for the Institute is USD 10.65557 million, which is about TZS
24,946.1 million. A total of TZS 23,428.3 million (94%) i IS expected to be used for improving the
teaching and learning envircnment (substantial physrcal infrastructure development in Simiyu
and Mwanza Campus) by 2026, whereas, TZS 1’517'8| million (6%) will be used for building
capacity on innovative researches and strengthening linkages with the industry.
|

In the financial year ended 30 June 2023, the Institute l':eceived the first instalment of the HEET
fund amounting to TZS 1,556.6 million. This amount was intended for undertaking activities
covering the first six months of the Institute’s HEET work plan. Until the end of the financial
year 2022/23, the Institute managed to utilize 45% of the received funds.

The general financial performance of the Institute during the financial year ended 30 June 2023
was very good. The total revenue earned during the year was TZS 39,138.7 million (2021/22:

TZS 35,852.2 million), thus there was an increase of annual recognized revenue by TZS 3,286.5
million equivalent to 9.2%. The sources of revenue during the year under review were tuition
fees at TZS 23,504.9 million (2021/22: TZS 22,244.8 million), Recurrent and development Grant
from the Government TZS 12,577.9 million (2021 122:! TZS 10,086.5 million), registration and
field/project supervision fees at TZS 1,103.0 million (2011/22: TZS 1,495.7 million),
Consultancy fees at TZS 70.5 million (2021/22: TZS 466.6 million), other miscellaneous income
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at TZS 1,880.3 million (2021/22: TZS 1,660.5 million) and gain / (loss) on foreign currency
translation at TZS 2.1 million (2021/22: 101.9 million).

The total expenses and transfers for the year was TZS 35,721.5 million (2021/22: TZS 29,837.9
million). The major components of expenses were wages, salaries and employee benefits TZS
16,583.6 million (2021/22: TZS 15,251.4 million), maintenance expenses TZS 1,493.3 million
(2021/22: TZS 1,116.6 million), Use of Goods and Services expenses TZS 11,909.9 million
(2021/22: TZS 9,605.1 million). Other major items of expenses are social benefits, depreciation
and amortization expenses and other administrative expenses amounting to TZS 5,432.1 million
(2021/22: TZS 3,389.9 million). During the financial year 2022/23, TZS 300.0 million was
transferred to the Government Consolidated fund (2021/22: TZS 300.0 million).

The Management expresses its appreciation .to- the Government, Governing Council,
stakeholders, and members of staff for their-contribution to the reported achievements during
the financial year ended 30 June 2023.

----------------------------------------

Prof. Josephat D. Lotto
Rector
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5.0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS !

|
THE INSTITUTE OF FINANCE MTANAGEMENT

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS'AT 30 JUNE 2023

2022/23 2021/22
Current Assets NOTE|S (TZS *000%) (TZS *000°)
Inventories 6 | 994,397 540,739
Trade and other Receivables under exchange | 5 743,731
transaction 7 1,039,494 2/,
Cash and Cash Equivalents ) 5| 16,531,921 8,642,133
; 18,565,812 14,926,603
Non-Current Assets !
Property and Equipment 10A 65,600,024 66,117,782
Intangible asset (Software) 10B 124,832 150,102
Work in progress 9/ 8,304,906 5,161,483
Financial Assets 8! 447,692 434,710
|
74,477,454 71,864,077
Total Assets . 93,043,266 86,790,680
RESERYE AND LIABILITIES !
Capital and Reserves i
Capital Fund | 11 3,439,082 3,439,082
Accumulated Surplus 83,141,575 79,724,346
86,580,657 83,163,428
Current Liabilities : !
Provision for employment benefits ' 12I 283,802 194,130
Payables and accruals under exchange transactions. 13 5,171,313 3,278,614
Deferred income under exchange transactions i 1|‘4 138,449 136,859
Deferred income under non-exchange transactions ° 15 869,045 17,649
! 6,462,609 3,627,252
Total Resepye and Liabilities : ! 93,043,266 86,790,680
- " " o 07 |, o —
Prof. Emmanxﬁ A. Mjema | Prof. Josephat D. Lotto
CHAIRMAN-GOVERNING COUNCIL . RECTOR
Date: % \ X 2 IZ’LIL
Vi
I
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THE:INSTITUTE OF EINANCE MANAGEMENT
' . . |
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023
NOTES 2022723 - 2021722
(TZS'000") (T25°000")
REVENUE
Revenue from exchange transaction - |
Tuition Fees 16 23,504,986 22,244,781
Revenue from non-exchange transaction :
- Recurrent grant and Development 17 12,577,861 10,086,476
Fair value adjustment and exchange gain 18 : (2,142) (101,942)
Other Income 19 3,030,178 3,622,896
Gain from disposal of Non-Current Assets 29 | 27,832 -
TOTAL REVENUE ! 39,138,715 35,852,211
Less: Expenses
Maintenance Expenses 20 ' 1,493,304 1,116,629
Wages, salaries, and employee benefits 21 16,583,622 15,251,423
Use of Goods and Services 22 ! 11,909,893 9,605,082
Other Expenses 23 1,288,927 596,220
Social Benefits 24 ! 915,371 820,841
Depreciation and Amortization expenses 25 3,176,510 1,972,840
Loss/Gain on Disposal 26 - 174,874
Impairment Loss 27 53,859 -
Total Expenses ! 35,421,486 29,537,910
Transfers
Other Transfer 28 300,000 300,000
Total
Transfer ____ 300,000 ___ 300,000
TOTAL EXPENSES AND TRANSFERS 35,721,486, __ 29,837,910
SURPLUS 417,229 6,014,301
|
Pr&fﬁlmam?ﬁﬁjema . prof. Josephat D, Lotto
CHAIRMAN-GOVESINING COUNCIL: \ \ RECTOR
' Date: %‘D? : ‘Q’O?-\“'
|
|
[
|
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THE INSTITUTE OF FINANCE MI‘ANAGEMENT
) I
THE INSTITUTE OF FINANCE MANAGEMENT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023
Share | Accumulated Revaluation Total
S ) Capital ' Surplus reserve
| Restated
(TZ5'000") (TZ5'000') (TZ5'000") (TZ5'000)
i
Balance on 30 June 2021 3,439,082 72,202,838 - 75,641,920
~ Prior year adjustment - 1,507,207 - 1,507,207
" surplus / Deficit for the year - | 6,014,301 . 6,014,301
Balance on 30 June 2022 3,439,082 ' 79,724,346 - 83,163,428
At 1 July 2022 3,439,082 | 79,724,346 - 83,163,428
- | - - -
Surplus / Deficit for the year - 3,417,229 - 3,417,229
.’-‘-) P 1
oA I
!
At 30 June 2023 3,439,082 83,141,575 - 86,580,657
i
At 30 June 2022 3,439,082 79,724,346 - 83,163,428
'/
1
— .
(] -
£, - i
Prc?./Emmanue)ﬁNMjema | Prof. Josephat D. Lotto
CHAIRMAN-GOVY ING COUNCIL \ ' RECTOR
' 1
pater 2| 02 X
2 |
|
!
o
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> THE INSTITUTE OF FINANCEMANAGEMENT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2023
30-Jun-23 30-Jun-22
NOTES TZS'000 TZ5'000°
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES . RESTATED
~ RECEIPTS !
o Subvention from other Government entities 9,254,439 8,454,963.00
Revenue Grants _ : 2,618,179 0.00
Revenue from Exchange Transactions ’ 30() ' 28,826,910 19,886,583.00
Other Revenue 30(ii) | 1,814,953 3,328,896.00
Revenue received from prior years : 30(i) | 3,664,970 .
9 Fees, Fines, Penalties and Forfeits : ‘ 362,117 -
Total Receipts ) ' ' 46,541,568 31,670,442
PAYMENTS '
Wages, Salaries and Employee Benefits 30(iii) | 16,583,622 14,347,058
Use of Goods and Service 30(v) | 11,909,893 7,570,140
Social Benefits 30(v) | 631,569 600,171
& Other Transfers 30(vi) i 300,000 300,000
Other Expenses 30(vii) | 1,288,927 4,727,388
Maintenance Expenses 30(viii) . 1,493,304 977,891
Decrease in Deposit 30(ix) ! 33,088 -
Total Payments 32,265,674 28,522,648
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) : 14,275,894 3,147,79
O RECEIPTS
Development grant - 1,631,513
Qf::gg Peyments E‘gutigfn:‘g‘t‘ms‘m“ of 30(x) (687,992) (2,516,173)
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment 30{xd) ! (5,698,114) (2,447,209)
Total Investing Activities (B) {6,386,106) (4,963,382)
) Cash Flows from Financing Activities i
Financing Income - Dividend ' .
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities-C ; -
|
::tt]tl:l;enisse(lA gJBefé.)ease) in cash and cash | 7,889,788 (184,075)
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of period 8,642,133 8,826,208
O Cash and cash equivalent at end of period 16,531,921 8,642,133
»
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RECEIPTS

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND

Original Budget

subvention from Other Government

Entities

Revenue Grants
Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Other Revenue

Increase in Deposit

Fees, Fines, Penalties and Forfeits
.Total Receipts

PAYMENTS

Wages, Salaries and Employee

Benefits — ———-

Use of Goods and Senrice_

Social Benefits

Other Transfers

Other Expenses

Maintenance Expenses

Decrease in Deposit

Acquisition of Property, Plant and

Equipment

Acquisition of Intangibles

Total Payment

Net Recelpts/Payments

(TZ5'000°)
12,702,186
3,500,000

29,721,030
2,932,382

48,855,598

17,793,076

13;693,927
540,000
300,000

3,302,157
1,799,850

10,734,088

692,500

48,855,598

R O .
THE INSTITUTE OF FINANCE MANAGEMENT
ACTUAL FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023
Budgeted

Re-allocations/ Final Budget (B) Actual Amount
Adjustments on Comparison
Bas!s (A)
(TZ5’000") (TZ25'000%) (TZ5'000)
- 12,702,186 9,254,439
- 3,500,000 2,618,179
- 29,721,030 28,826,910
- 2,932,382 1,814,953
- . 3,664,970
- - 362,117
- 48,855,598 46,541,568
(26,700) 17,766,376 16,583,622
- (409,500) _ 13,284,427 11,935,164
(50,000) 490,000 - - — — 631,569
- 300,000 300,000
90,000 3,392,157 1,288,927
160,500 1,960,350 1,493,304
- - 33,088
465,700 11,199,788 -
(230,000) _ 462,500 -
e 48,855,598 32,265,674
- - 14,275,894

Controllef and Auditor General

AR/PAD/IFM/2022/23

)

Different Final

Budget & Actual

(8-A)
(TZ5'000")

" 3,447,747
881,821
894,120

1,117,429
(3,664,570)

(362,117)
2,314,030

1,182,754 .

1,349,263
. _{141,569)

2,103,230

467,046
(33,088)

11,199,788

462,500
16,589,924

—_— .

{14,275,394)
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The budget and financial statements are prepared on a different basis. The statement of
comparison of the budget and actual amounts above is prepared "on the same basis as the
budget. Explanation details for the differences have been provided under Note 41.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023
|

1.0 GENERAL INFORMATION

The historical backeground of the Institute of Finance Management goes way back to the then
National Bank of Commerce (NBC) Training College established by NBC soon after the
nationalization of private banks in 1967 with the. aim of training recruited new bankers and
conducting short-term training programmes. for practicing bankers. The construction of the
National Institute of Banking and Insurance (now the Ins:titute of Finance Management - IFM)
started in 1970 and due to the increased requirement of trained personnel in the fields of
Banking, Insurance, Financial Management and relatec} subjects, the Institute of Finance

Management was established by Act No. 3 of 1972 as a corporate body and became operational
in July 1972. '

Currently, IFM has five Campuses: The Main Campus whi:ch is located between Samora Avenue
/Shaaban Robert Street and Mirambo Streets/ Sokoine Drive in Dar es Salaam, Mwanza Campus
located in Mwanza City (Rock City Mall); Simiyu Campus located at Bariadi District, Geita
Campus located at Chato District and Dodoma Campus lo;cated at Uhindini Street.

The Head Office address of the Institute during the year, was:

5 Shaaban Robert Street,

P. O. Box 3918,

11101 Dar Es Salaam, T
Email: rector@ifm.ac.tz.

Phone: +255 222 112931-4.

1.1 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Institute of Finance Management was established by Act of Parliament No. 3of1972asa

corporate body with the following general objectives: i
|
i. To provide facilities for the study of, and training in principles, procedures and
techniques of Banking, Insurance, Finance Management and such other related subjects
as the Councit may decide from time to time; ! '
fi. To conduct training programs leading to professional qualifications in Banking,

Insurance, Financial Management and other related subjects;

fii. To conduct examinations and grant diplomas;, certificates, and other awards of the
o |

Institute; and L
To arrange for the publication and general dissemination of materials produced in

iv.
connection with the work and activities of the Institute.
|

: !
1.2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Financial Statements of the Institute have been prepared in accordance with and comply
with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The Financial Statements are

] i 106
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presented in Tanzanian Shilling (TZS) which is the functional currency of the Institute. The
accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented. The financial
statements have been prepared based on historical costs. The cash flow statement is prepared
using the direct method. The financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis.

1.3 KEY JUDGEMENTS, SOURCES OF ESTIMATION AND UNCERTAINTY

|
The preparation of financial statements conforms to the Internationat Public Sector Accounting
Standards - (IPSASs Accrual) that requires management!to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, revenue and expenses. Actual results may diffler from these estimates.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed separately as a note to the
Financial Statements and are reviewed on an ongoing bésis. Revisions to accounting estimates

are recognized prospectively.

a. Judgments !

|
In the process of applying the Institute’s accounting policies, management has made
judgments, which have the most significant effect on i!:he amounts recognized in the financial

statements. !

b. Estimates and assumptions |

The key assumptions concerning the future and othe:r key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.
The Institute based its assumptions and estimates oniparameters available when the financial
statements were prepared, However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the
control of the Institute. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
|

c. Useful life and residual values

The useful life and residual values of assets are a§sessed using the following indicators to
inform potential future use and value from disposal: -

1

The condition of the asset is based on the assessment of experts employed by the

Institute. '
The nature of the asset, its susceptibility a}nd adaptability to changes in technology

and processes. ;
The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed.

Availability of funding to replace the asset.
Changes in the market in relation to the aslset
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d. Provisions

: 1
Provisions were made and the management;determined an estimate based on the information
available. Provisions are measured at the management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the reporting date.

1.4 AUTHORISATION DATE

The financial statements were submitted to the Controller and Auditor General (CAG) on 31

August 2023 and will be authorized for issuance dafter b'eing tabled on and discussed by the
Parliament by 31 March 2024. , |

|
1.5 GOING-CONCERN

The Management of the Institute has assessed the Insf;itute's ability to continue as a going
concern and is satisfied that the Institute has the resources to continue for the foreseeable
future. Furthermore, Management is not aware of any|material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt upon the Institute’s ability to continu:e as a going concern. Therefore, the
financial statements are prepared on a going-concern basis.

2.0 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

The International Public Sector Accounting Staridards Bc!)ard (IPSASB) issued new, amendments
and improvements to IPSASs. The objective of Improvements to IPSASs is to address issues raised

by stakeholders. S
(i) Amendments to IPSAS 41: Financia{l'ln;trugnentlrs

The International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (IPSASB) has issued a new
International Public Sector Accounting Standard 41 (?n financial instruments which replaces
IPSAS 29: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurements.

IPSAS 41 improves financial reporting for finzincial inistruments; by:

o Applying a single classification -and measurement model for financial assets that
considers the characteristics of the ass:;et’s cash flows and the objective for which the
asset is held; :

» Applying a single forward-looking expected c;redit loss model that is applicable to all
financial instruments subject to impairment testing; and

e Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the hedging
arrangements in the scope of the guidance. The model develops a strong link between
an entity’s risk management strategies and the accounting treatment for instruments

held as part of the risk management strategy.

An entity shall apply these amendments for annual financial statements covering periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2023. Earlier application is permitted.
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Management has started to develop all ,r:equirem;ents to support the adoption of the
standards by appointing a team of experts to.design a model for implementing IPSAS 41.

({ii) Amendments to IPSAS 42 - Social Benefits,

The standard provides guidance on accountlng for social benefits expenditure. It defines
social benefits as cash transfers paid to specific individuals and/or households to mitigate
the effect of social risk. Specific examples inctude state retirement benefits, disability
benefits, income support and unemployment beneﬁts

The new standard requires an entity to recognize an expense and a liability for the next
social benefit payment. It seeks to improve the relevance, faithful representativeness and
comparability of the information that a reporting entlty provides in its financial statements
about social benefits. :

|
To accomplish this, IPSAS 42 establishes principles and requirements for;

i -
Recognizing expenses and liabilities for social b!enefit.s;
Measuring expenses and liabilities for social benefits;
Presenting information about social benefits in the financial statements;
Determining what information to discldse to enable users of the fmancxal statements
to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the social benefits provided by the
reporting entity. o -

An entity shall apply these amendments for annual financial statements covenng penods
beginning on or after January 1, 2023. Earlier appllcatlon is permitted,

The standard will have no impact on the f,inancial statements of the Institute,
(iii) Amendment to IPSAS 13/43, Leases

The International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (IPSASB) has issued a new.
International Public Sector Accounting Standard 43 which replaces IPSAS 13 on issues
related to leases.

IPSAS 43 is a final product of phase one dealmg w1th lease accountmg model (s) for both
lessees and lessors on the same definition of a lease as in IFRS 16.

Now, IPSAS 43 requires the lease to recognize: -

» A right-of-use asset because they control the right to use the underlying compared
with IPSAS 13 where the lease recognizes the underlying asset when the lease is
classified as a finance lease but not when it isi classified as an operating lease.

» A lease liability because they have a present obligation to make future lease
payments in accordance with the lease contract (once the underlying asset has been
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made available and the lessee has the right to use it). Under IPSAS 13, a lease liability
is not recognized when the lessee classifies the lease as an operating lease.

An entity shall apply these amendments for annual financial statements covering periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2025. Earlier application is permitted.

The Institute is evaluating the impact of these Standards on its financial statements and
will adopt them in the preparation and presentation of its future financial statements,
where applicable. : :

(iv) Amendment of IPSAS 44, Non-Curr‘ent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

Which is effective on or after 1st January 2025, IPSAS 44 specifies the accounting for assets
held for sale and the presentation and disclosure of discontinued operations. It requires
assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be: -

e Measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and
depreciation on such assets to cease; and

e Presented separately in the statement of financial position and the results of
discontinued operations are to be presented separately in the statement of financial
performance. '

The Institute is evaluating the impact of these Standards on its financial statem‘en'ts and
will adopt them in the preparation and presentation of its future financial statements,
where applicable.

(v) New IPSAS 45: Property, Plant and Equipment

The International Public Sector Accountin Standards Board (IPSASB) has issued a new
International Public Sector Accounting Standard 45 Property, Plant and Equipment.

IPSAS 45 intends to update principles drawn from IPSAS 17, Property, Plant, and Equipment
by adding new guidance for heritage assets, infrastructure assets, and measurement of
property, plant, and equipment. ;

This is after considering responses to the Consultation Paper (CP), Financial Reporting for
Heritage in the Public Sector, and constituents’ feedback on infrastructure assets the
IPSASB concluded that: '

a. IPSAS 17 should fully apply to heritage assets that are property, plant, and
equipment; and 7

b. Additional authoritative and non-authoritative guidance should be included in IPSAS
45 to clarify its application to heritage and infrastructure assets.
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An entity shall apply these amendments for annual flinancial statements covering periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2025. Earlier application is permitted. .

3 0

The Institute is evaluating the impact of these Standards on its financial statements and
will adopt them in the preparation and p@esentation of its future financial statements,

where applicable.
(vi) New IPSAS 46: Measurement

The International Public Sector Accouni:ing St_anda:rds Board (IPSASB) has issued a new

International Public Sector Accounting Standard 46 Measurement.
- i . I
The objective of IPSAS 46 is to improve me’a}Sur‘emen;t guidance across IPSAS by:

a. Providing further detailed guidance .on thei implementation ‘of commonly used
measurement bases, and the circumstances under which they should be used;

b. Clarifying transaction costs guidance to enhancle'consistency across IPSAS; and

c. Amending, where appropriate, guidarice across IPSAS related to measurement at
recognition, subsequent measurement,iand measurement-related disclosures.

An entity shall apply these amendments for annual financial statements covering periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2025. Earlier application is permitted:

The Institute adopted the standard in?the_- preparéﬁon and presentation of the financial
statements for the period ended 30 June 2023,

(vii) New IPSAS 47; Revenue

The International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (IPSASB) has: _issué_d a hew
International Public Sector Accounting Standard 47/ Revenué, - ' T

The objective of IPSAS 47 is to:

Lot .
I v omm - e . [

a. Present revenue guidance in a sihglé stan‘dz;ird by reptacing IPSAS 9, Revenue from
Exchange Transactions, IPSAS 11, C'pnstruqtion Contracts, and IPSAS 23, Revenue
from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers); C ' '

b. Clarify and refine the accounting principles and concepts to account for revenue
transactions in the public sector; and | '

¢. Provide non-authoritative guidance to help preparers use professional judgment in
applying the accounting principles consistently. )

An entity shall apply these amendments for annual financial statements coven"ng' peﬁdds
beginning on or after January 1, 2026. Earlier application is permitted.
i
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The Institute is e{raluating the impact of these Standards on its financial statements and
will adopt them in the preparation and presentation of its future financial statements;
where applicable. ! ‘

|

(viii) IPSAS 48: Transfer Expenses

The International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (IPSASB) has issued a new
International Public Sector Accounting Standard 48 Transfer Expenses.

The objective of IPSAS 48 is to: . L i

a.  Revise the accounting of trarisfer expenses to move away from the Public Sector
Performance Obligation Approach (PSPOA) and to focus on whether the transfer
transaction results in the recognition of an asset;

b.  Focus on the accounting from the, perlspective of the transfer provider (the

entity); and |

B - |
€.  Streamline the requirements for measurement, as well as presentation and
disclosure :

An entity shall apply these amendments for ahﬁ'uail fihancial_. statements covering periods
beginning on or after 01 January 2026. Ea,rljea: appllication fs permitted.

The Institute is evaiuating the impact of 'tﬁese Stelmdards on its financial statements and
will adopt them in the preparation and presentation of its future financial. statements,
where applicable. s | L

3.0 ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES ° :

The accounting policies for the presentation of ‘the lnsltitute of Finance Management financial
statements have been adopted from the International Accounting Standards (IPSASS). The
adopted accounting policies are consistent with those of the Institute and have been applied
throughout the reporting period. There were rio changes in accounting policies or estimates
during the financial year. ; '

3.1 Foreign currency translation
a) Functional and presentation

Items included in the financial statements of the In§titute are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the Institute operates (“the functional
currency”}. The financial statements are presented |m Tanzanian Shillings (TZ5'000), which
is the Institute’s functional and presentation currency.

| :
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b) Transaction and balance

Foreign currency trapsactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the date of the transactions.- Monetary assets and liabilities at the year
end, expressed in foreign currencies are translated into functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the financial year. Translation losses/ (gains) on
loans used to finance capital construction projects are capitalized as part of construction
work in progress. All other exchange rate gains and ldsses are reflected in the Statement of
Financial Performance. et

3.2Revenue
. |

' : |
The Institute classifies its revenue into Exchange and Non-exchange transactions during the
year by adhering to core and other related activities uncliertaken by the Institute.

i. Exchange Transactions v e

These are transactions, in which the Institute receives assets or services, or it has liabjlities
extinguished, and they directly give approximately .equal value (primarily in the form of
cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in exchange. Tuition fee is the
main revenue exchange transaction. ! o '

ii. Non-Exchange Transacticns :
. |

|
In a non-exchange transaction, the Institute either receives value from another entity
without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange. Grants from the
government are the main revenue from non-éxchange transactions.

fii. Revenue Recognition G

Revenue is recognized to the extent thét thle economic benefits will probably flow to the
Institute and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at, the fair value
of the consideration received, excludiﬁg discounts, !rebates, and Value Added Tax or duty.
The Institute ‘assesses its revenue arrang : ments’ against specific criteria in order to
determine if it is acting as principal or agent: The.|nstitute has concluded that it is acting as
a principal in all of its revenue arrangements'l. The following

: |

Specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized: -
[

iv. Government grants !

Subvention and assistance received from the government and other donors are recognized
when received by the Institute. |
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v. Tuition Fees and Other Incomes

Tuition and other fee:s from students and short course participants are recognized in the
accounting period in which the courses are offered/ conducted. Fees paid in advance are
carried forward under the trade payables.-

vi. Interest and Dividend Income

Interest income is mainly from banks, especially on fixed deposits and is recognized on a
time proportion basis net of withholding tax. Dividend income is from the investment in
shares at various listed companies and it is recogmzed when the right to receive payment is
established. !

vii. Rental Income

Rental income is mainly from rented propertres to third parties such as office
accommodation and residential properties. Rental i income is recognized on a time proportlon
basis when earned and accounted in the respective accounting period.

I

viii. Donations

Donation income is recognized when retewed Non- m'onetary donations, i.e. assets donated
are measured at the fair value of the non- monetary Iltem received which is determined by
reference to observable market values or by mdependent appraisal by a member of the
valuation profession. Receivable is recognized when a binding transfer agreement is in place
but cash or other asset has not been received. When a donation is subject to a condition
that, if unfulfilled, requires the return of the transfefred resources, the Institute recognizes
it as a liability until the condition is fulfilled.

3.3 Property, Plant and Equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and
equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construcpon projects if the recognition criteria
are met. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
in intervals, the Institute recognizes such parts as 1nd1v1dual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciation, respectively. Likewise, when a ma]or inspection is performed, its cost is
recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the
Statement of Financial Performance as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for
the decommissioning of the asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if
the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Land and buildings are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and
impairment losses recognized after the date of the revaluatmn Review is performed frequently
to ensure that the fair value of the asset does not difftler materially from its carrying amount.
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An annual transfer from' the asset revaluation reserve tL: retained earnings is made for the
difference between depreciation based on the re-valued carrying amount of the assets and
depreciation based on the asset’s original ‘cost. Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at
the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net
amount is restated to the re-valued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve
relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to retained earnings.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line’ basis over tt:\e estimated useful life of the assets.
The annual depreciation rates which have been consistently applied are shown in Table 22.

Table 22: Depreciation 1 Amortization Rates and Usefu:l Life

ltem D‘-‘P"ie‘:‘ati°“ Rate% | ygefut Life (Yrs.)

IFM Office buildings, houses and flats : - 2 50
Furniture, fixtures and fittings o | 20 . 5
Office Equipment R b ' 20 . . B
Library Books : .10 . . 10
Motor Vehicles .1 20 5
Computers and IT consoles = 25 4
Graduation Gowns . ! 10 - - 10 . °
Intangible Assets N 4. .. - 7.1 .

Earth Roads and surroundings C r 333 3

An item of property, plant and equipment aﬁd_any s!,igniﬁcant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future 'é;conbmic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the cairying a!"nount of the asset) is included in the
Statement of Financial Performance when the asset is derecognized. o

Generally, the assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed
at each financial year end as required by: circular No.2 of 2017/18, and adjusted
retrospectively, if appropriate. In addition, the Institute stops charging depreciation on an asset
when the carrying amount equals its residual value. 5 :

3.4 Intangible Assets ;

| . i _

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial !recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less l’any accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets are not capitalized, and
expenditure is reflected in the Statement of Financial Performance in the year in which the
- expenditure is incurred. At the Institute intangible Iassets consist of computer application

software.
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The useful lives of mtangible assets are assessed to be fimte Intangible assets with finite lives
are amortized over the useful economic Llife and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The annual rate of amortization applied

is 14% per annum. |

The amortization penod and the amortization method for an intangible asset are reviewed at
least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern
of consumption of future economic benefits emboched in the asset are accounted for by
changing the amortization period or method; as appropnate, and treated as changes in
accounting estimates. !
| )

The amortization expense on intangible assets is recolgnized in the Statement of Financial
Performance. Gains or losses arising from the derecognizing of anintangible asset are measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds anq the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognized in the Statement of Financial 'Performance when the asset is derecognized.

3.5 Impairment of non-financial assets - ' |

a) Impairment of 6ash-Generating Assets

At each reporting date, the Institute assesses whethler there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Institute estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is higher than assets or cash-generating umt's fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use and is determined for an individual asset unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

I

In assessing value in'use, the estimated future cash ﬂow is discounted to its present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determlning fair value less costs to sell, recent
market transactions are considered, if available. If noI such transaction can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. : :
P [ '
Impairment losses of continuing operation, including impairment on inventories, are
recognized in the Statement of Financial Performance in those expense categories conSistent

with the nature of the impaired asset. | .

N e
The Institute also assesses at each reporting date as to whether or not there is an indication
that previously recognized impairment losses may no|longer exist or may have decreased. If

such indication exists the recoverable amount is estirlhated.
. |
b) Impairment of Non-Cash -Generating Assets ;

The Institute assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that non-cash
generating assets may be impaired. If any mdicatlon exists, or when annual impairment
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testing for an asset is'required, the Institute ‘estimates the asset’s recoverable services
amount. I o '

An asset recoverable services amount is tHe highest of the non-cash generating assets’ fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Where the carrying ampunt of an asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, the asset is
considered impaired and it’s written down to its recoverable service amount.

In assessing value in use, the Institute has adoﬁted :the depreciation replacement costs
approach. Under this approach, the present value of the remaining service potential of an
asset is determined as the depreciated replacement’ cost of the asset. The depreciated
replacement costs arlé' measured as the reproductiorll or replacement cost of the asset,
whichever is lower, less accumulated depreciation calculated based on such cost, to reflect

the already consumed or expired service potential of tlhe asset.

In determining fair value less costs to sell, the price of the asset in a binding agreement in
an arm’s length transaction, adjusted for incremental ‘!:osts that would be directly attributed
to the disposal off the asset is used. If there is no bindling agreement, but the asset is traded
on an active market, fair value less cost:to sell is the asset’s market, price less cost of
disposal. If there is no binding sale agreement or active market for an asset, the Institute

determines fair value less cost to sell based on the.best available information. .

c) Impairment Losses
!

. . L. :

For each asset, an assessment Is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indications exist, the Institute estimates the impairment loss of the assets.

Recoverable service amount: A previously recognizled jmpairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the assumptions usedi to determine the asset’s recoverable
service amount since the last impairment loss was repognized. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable service amount, nor exceed
the carrying amount that would have beén'dété.rmined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognized for the ass'gt in pr|ior years. Such reversal is recognized in

the Statement of Financial Performance. !
' |

3.6 Investment in Sh:ares
i |

The Institute has invested in shares of one of the comlpanies listed on the stock exchange. The
quoted shares are held both for speculation (shares held for sale purposes) and shares held for
earning dividend purposes. Investment in shares is reported in the financial statements at their
current market values on the date of the financial statements. Any appreciation and or
dirninution in value of shares is recognized in the finl'ancial statements through the Statement

of Financial Performance. |

| ‘
| |
I 1
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- ' 3.7 Financial Instruments ' ' ,

a)

Financial Assets

I
|
i) Initial recognition and measur.e'men,t

Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments; Recognition and
Measurement are classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale financial assets, as
appropriate. The Institute determines the classificlation of its financial assets at initial

recognition. : :
I

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or conven.l:jog' Ill'l the mlarketplace (regular way trades) are
recognized on the trade date, i.e., the dE:lte that the Institute commits to purchase or sell
the asset. , |

The Institute’s financial assets include ,ca:lsh, trade and other receivables; staff loans and
other receivables and quoted financial instruments.

ji) Subsequent measurement o
. TS

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification.

o Financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit

Financial assets at fair value through surplus or éeficit include financial assets held for
trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
surplus and deficit. Derivatives, including séparated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are desig'nated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit are carried in the Statement of
Financial Positior:l at fair value with changes in failr value recognized in surplus or deficit.

» Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market, After initial measurement loans and
receivables are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method less any
allowance for im:pairment. Gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Financial
Performance when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as
through the amortization process. |
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) Held-to-maturi.ty 1

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or deterrhinable payments and fixed maturities
are classified as héld to maturity when the Institute has the positive intention and ability
to hold it to maturity. After initial measurement, held-to-maturity investments are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, with less impairment.
Amortized cost IS calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees.or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
losses arising from impairment are recognized in surptus or deficit.

o Available-for-sale financial assets.

L

The Institute classifies available-for-ﬁél_q ,finar__u-:ial assets as non-derivative financial assets
that are designated as available for sale or are not classified as loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity or financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit. '

After initial measurement, available-for-sale financial investments are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains or losses recognized directly in net assets through the
Statement of Changes in Net Assets until the financial asset is derecognized, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss is recognized in surplus or deficit.

iif) De-recognition

The Institute derecognizes a financial asset _dr, .v}here applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets when: - :

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or they have been waived;
and . :

» The Institute has transferred its rights.to receive cash flows from the asset or it has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to
a third party; and either: (a) the Institute has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset; or (b) the Institute has neither transferred nor retained
substantially the risks and rewards of the asset, but it has transferred control of the
asset. '

iv) Impairment of financial assets

The Institute assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that have occurred after the fnitial
recognition of the asset {an incurred ’loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include the following indicators: -
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e The debtorsora fgroup of debtors are experiencing significant financial difficulty;

e Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

e The probability ﬁhat debtors will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;
and '

« Observable dataindicate a measurable decrease Iin estimated future cash flows (e.g.,
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults).

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Institute first assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Institute determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
jmpairment. Assets with similar credit risk characteristics are collectively assessed for
jmpairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an jmpairment loss has been incurred, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the assets carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (e)_ccludi"ng future expected credit losses that have not
yet been incurred). The present value of ij.hé estimated future cash flows is discounted at

the financial asset’s original effective 'irj'ter"est; réte. If a loan has a variable interest rate,

i

the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and
the amount of the loss is recognized in surplus or deficit. Loans together with the

associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery,
and all collateral has been realized or transferred to the Institute.

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of- the estimated impairment loss increases Qr
decreases because of an event occurh‘né after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance
account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to finance costs

in surplus or deficit.

« Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, the Institute assesses at each reporting date whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired. In
the case of financial assets classified as available for sale, objective evidence would include
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost.
‘Significant’ is-evaluated against the original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against
the pericd in wl':ﬁch the fair value was below its original cost. Where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
|
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and the current fail; value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognized in the surplus or deficit - is removed from the reserve in net assets and

recognized in surplusior deficit.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale, impairment is assessed
based on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. However, the
amount recorded for impairment is the accumulate loss measured as the difference
between the amortized cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognized in surplus deficit.

b) Financial liabilities

)

Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSB 49 are classified as financial liabilities at fair

value through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The Institute

determines the classification of its financial !iabilities at initial recognition.

Initial recognition and measurement .

All financial liabilities are recognized inii:ial;ly at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs. The Institute’s financial liabilities
are trade and other payables.
|
ii) Subsequent measurement i
[P i

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification.
iii) Financial liabilities at fair value through surplus or deficit

Financial liabilities at fair value through suri)lus or deficit include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through

surplus or deficit. , .

Financial liabilities are ;lassified as held fortrading if they are acquired to sell in the near

term.

This category includes derivative financial ihsitfufnents entered into by the Institute that are
not designated as hedging instruments in tiedge relationships as defined by IPSAS 29. Gains
or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in surplus or deficit.

« Loans and borrowing

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in
surplus or deficit when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective
interest method amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by considering any
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discount or premium on acquisition and

interest rate.
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|
iv) De-recognition |

A financial liabiity is derecognized hen;t :é{_,fpll;gl!j:'é;ation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. ‘'When an existing';ﬁilll_é\_ﬁ_ aliliability is reptaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different tern'is, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange%o',ﬁi Inodification is treated as a de-recognition of
the original liability and the recognition: Eif a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognized' ifii_'éurplus or deficit.

) Off-setting of financial instruments

Financial assets and -financial liabilities aré offset and the net amount reported in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there s an intention to settle on a net basis,

or to realize the assets and settle the liabi'litie_as simultaneously.

d) Fair value of financial instruments

_ The fair value of financial instruments that .é_r_e traded in active markets at each reporting
date is determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid

price for long positions and ask price for'sh"prt_positions), without any deduction for the
transaction costs.

3.8 Leases
i. Institute as a lessee

Operating leases are leases that do not transfer sul;s_tantially all the risks and the benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item to the Institute. Operating lease payments are
recognized as an operating expense in thejStatement of Financial Performance on a straight-

line basis over the lease term.
fi. Institute as lessor

Leases in which the Institute does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of an asset are classified as operating Ileases. Initially, direct costs incurred in
negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognized over the lease term.

Rent received from an operating lease is re;ognized as income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are

earned.
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3.9 Inventories !

i

inventories consist of stationery and materials for construction. They are measured at cost upon
initial recognition. To the extent that inventories were received through non-exchange

transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventories are at their fair
value at the date of acquisition. '

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
“The Value is determined on 2 first-in-first-out (FIFO) basis as stipulated in the Financial
Regulations (201 9). However, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed
at no charge or for a nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost
and current replacement cost.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange
or distribution.

Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or consumption in the
ordinary course of operations of the Institute. When there is objective evidence that the value
of inventories is impaired either through damage and or obsolescence, provision for impairment
is made to that effect through the statement of Financial pPerformance.

3.10 Deposits, Prepayments and Receivables -

Deposits, prepayments and receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortized cost net of provision for impairment.

Provision for impairment of receivables is established when there is objective evidence that
the Institute will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the
specific receivables. The loss is recognized through the Statement of Financial Performance.

3.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Institute has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits or service potential will be required to settie the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Institute expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is \jecognized as a separate asset only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating 10 any provision is presented in the
Statement of Financial Performance net of any reimbursement.
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3.12 Contingent liabilities

The Institute does not relcognize a contingent liability but discloses details of any contingencies
in the Notes to the Financial Statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

3.13 Contingent assetls

The Institute does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details of a possible asset
whose existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Institute in the Notes to the Financial
Statements. Contingeni: assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are
appropriately reflected in the financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an
inflow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset’s value can be measured
reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statements of the
period in which the change occurs. )

3.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, deposits on call and highly
liquid investments with an original maturity of three' (3) months or less, which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. For Statement of Cash flows, cash is comprised 6f cash on hand and deposits held at call
with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term deposits with original maturities of three (3)
months or less.

3.15 Related party transactions

The Institute regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control
individually or jointly or to exercise significant influence over the Institute, or vice versa. The
Councilors and key members of Management, including the Rector, Deputies and
Deans/Directors are regarded as related parties as distI:losed under Note 35.

3.16 Trade and other payables

Accounts payable are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are recognized
initialty at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest

method.

[}
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3.17 Taxation

overnment agen'cy, thus is not liable to pay income
d Schedule of Income Tax Act, 2004.

. The Institute of Finance Management isa g
tax. The Institute is exempted under Secon

3.18 Capital Work In progress

which is an asset category of property and equipment, is stated
at cost and not depreciated. Recognition amount of Capital WIP is shown under property t Note
11A. Depreciation of WIP, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. The
balance of unrecognized .f;\mount of the WIP cor_n;':ared to }:he contracted full price is disclosed

as Capital Commitment. '

Capital Work in Progress (WIP),

3.19 Presentation of the budget information

IPSAS 24 requires the management of a public sector entity to show a comparison of budget
amounts arising from the execution of the approved budget to be included in the financial
statements of the entity. The Institute prepares'its financial statements indicating the actual
expenditure in comparison with the approved budgetary provisions and in so doing fully
complies with this standard. The Statement of Comparison of Budgeted and Actual Amounts has
been presented using the accrual basis of accounting.

3.20 Employees benefits
i. Short term benefits

annual leave and other short-term benefits. Liabitities
d in the financial statements.

These include salaries and wages,
related to annual leave at the end of the financial year are accrue

ii. Defined contribution plan -

tate-owned pension scheme, the Public Service
t and the employees contribute 15% and 5%
stitute’s contributions to the funds are
the year to which they relate.

The Institute’s employees are members of the s
Security Fund (PSSSF). The Institute/governmen
respectively, of the employee’s gross salary. The In
charged to the Statement of Financial Performance in

iii. Gratuity
fied terms are paid gratuity equal to 25% of the total emoluments

Employees working on speci
during the contract period.

jv. Workman’s compensation scheme and group personal accident

nstitute complies fully with the

In order to ensure that employee’s welfare is safeguarded, the |
d in the course

Workman’s Compensation Act which requires compensation to employees injure
of their employment.

!

|
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Also, the Institute con;ributes to workers’ compensation Fund and ensures that staff and

management employees injured at work are compensated.
: | .

v. Termination ber:1eﬁts
| .
Termination benefits are payable to employees. who are terminated before their normal
retirement dates or where an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange of these

benefits.

vi. Retirement benefits

The Institute pays retirement benefits to retiring employees in accordance with entitlements

stipulated in the staff regulations as approved by the Géveming Council.
’ |

3.21 Significant Judgments and Sources of Estir_n‘ation Uncertainty

The preparation of the Institute’s financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the di:sclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustmentito the carrying amount of the asset or
liability affected in future periods. .

4.0  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure to currency, interest rate, liquidity and credit risk arises in the normal course of the
Institute’s operations. This note presents information about the Institute’s exposure to each of
the above risks, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Institute’s
management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these
financial statements. '

4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Institute if customers or counter parties to financial
instruments fail to meet their contractual obligations, and it arises principally from the
Institute’s investments, loans to staff, receivables, and cash and cash equivalents. The carrying
amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure
to credit risks as at 30 June 2023 were: :

Details ' 2022/23 2021/22
(Tzs’ £00’) (TZS’ 000°)
Investments in equity-Note 8 185,452 172,470
Trade receivables-Note 7 700,437 4,296,099
Other receivables 339,058 1,447,632
Cash and cash equivalent-Note 5 16,531,921 8,642,133
Total 17,756,838 14,558,334
]
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s Credit quality

Credit quality is the assessed risk of default attached to counter parties to which the Institute
extends credit and also those parties with whom the Institute invests. As such, the credit quality
assessed extends to the students, investments and banks of the Institute. For financial
statement purposes, the investments and batances with banks are limited to the investments,
trade receivable and cash equivalents line items in the Statement of Financial Position. The
Institute determines credit quality of the investments and banks using information obtained
from external ratings. The Institute does not have a financial management risk policy which
describes how the Institute internally rates the entities to invest with. The Institute is required,
by legislation, to extend services and extended payment.terms to all customers irrespective of

their financial standing. To determine the quality of customers, the Institute applies its past
experience with the customers in

determining the risk of default posed by the customers.

¢ Investment in equity

The Institute limits its exposure to credit risk by investing with only reputable financial
institutions and companies listed on stock exchange. ‘Consequently, the institute does not
consider there to be any significant exposure to credit risk.

+ Receivables

Receivables are amounts owed mainly by students, and they are presented net of impairment

losses. The Institute does not have a credit risk poticy in place, and therefore exposure to credit
risk is not monitored on an ongoing basis. The Institute’s maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying value of each financial asset in the Statement of Financial

Performance. '

The Institute establishes an allowance for ,impairrfnent that represents its estimate of
anticipated losses in respect of receivables. The Institute provided fifty per cent for all
receivables outstanding over 365 days but less than 730 days where there was no evidence of
expected recovery. It provides in full for all receivables outstanding over 730 days.

e Cash and cash equivalents '

The Institute limits its exposure to credit risk by invefsting cash and cash equivalents with only
reputable financial institutions that have a sound credit rating and have not received bad
publicity. Consequently, the Institute does not consider there to be any significant exposure to

credit risk.

i
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4.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of :the Institute not being able to meet its obligations as they fall due.
The Institute’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to'ensure that sufficient liquidity is

available to meet its liabilities available when due, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Institute’s reputation.

" The Institute ensures that it maintains sufficient cash-on-demand balances to meet expected

operating expenses through the use of cash flow forecasts.

The Sources of Funds include tuition fees from students, government subsidies, investment
income, and fees on short COUrses, rental income and other miscellaneous income.

4.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest
rates, affecting the Institute’s income or the value of its financial instrument holdings. In other
words, it is the risk of changes in the value.of the:net asset of the Institute asa result of adverse
price investments and financial assets and liapilities held by the Institute. The objective of
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable

parameters while optimizing the return on the risk.
4,4 Currency risk .

The currency riskis the risk arising from changes in the value of foreign currencies, The Institute
-generates foreign currency from tuition fees paid. by the students. The foreign currency
generated is deposited and maintained in the bank account denominated in foreign currency to
hedge against continuous weakening of Tanzania Shilling.

Foreign-denominated inonetary assets (AWl amounts are in thousand shillings)

30 June 2023 ;

! Pound EURO usb
Receivables 47,123.80 51,174.20 158,423.29
Cash and cash equivalents 18,080.88 0 244,223.81

| 65,'2:.04.68 51,174.20 402,647.10
30 June 2022

Pound EURO usb
Receivables 47,123.80 51,174.20 158,423.29
Cash and cash equivalents 18,080.88 0 _1_915_,91;9_1,

65,204.68 51 ,174.26 354,495.30

e

The Institute had no liabilities denominated in foreign currency during the year under review.

|
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) 4.5  Price risk management
~ The Institute is exposed to the equity secunty price nsk because of investments in quoted
. shares classified as avallable for sale. To manage its price risk arising from equity investments,
the Institute diversifies 1ts portfolio. All quoted shares held by the Institute are traded at the
Dar es Salaam Stock Exclpange (DSE).
™ i
NOTE 5: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
! 2022723 2021722
! (TZ5'000") (TZ5'000')
NMB -DSM-Account ‘ 7,368 69,432
CRDB -DSM-Deposit Account 13,222 32,178
NBC Mwanza Account 8,993 375
T CRDB -Payments Account - MUSE 2,695,297 -
CRDB -Payments Account 40,712 40,712
CRDB -HESLB Account 324,176 324,076
CRDB -HESLB Account - MUSE 130,672 -
NBC -NHIF Account . 140,267 140,267
EXIM -Mwanza Account 709 709
BOT -TZS Account 11,755,526 7,447,506
9 NBC -USD Account 522,383 410,632
' BOT- USD Account 41,201 41,157
CRDB GBP Account | - 24,177
BOT-GBP Account .- 26,763
TPB Account - 84,149
Total Bank Balances 15,680,525 8,642,133
- CRDB-HEET Account 851,396
-
TOTAL 16,531,921 8,642,133
The balance of cash and cash equivalents as at 30 June 2023 aggregated to TZS 16,531.9
' million (2022: TZS 8,642.1 million). The net 1ncrease of TZS 7,889.8 million was mainly
-~ attributed to fees collection paid in full by the HESLB in respect of the second semester of
- the academic year 2022/23 and Fund to implement the HEET Project.
NOTE 6: INVENTORIES
2022/23 2021/22
~ (TZ5°000%) (TZS'000°)
Stationery Stocks 172,503 90,421
Materials for Construction _ 821,494 _450,318
TOTAL 994,397 540,739,
i
2 .
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-a) The increase of materials for construction by TZS 371.2 refers to items
available at Geita Campus for finalization of construction works.
b) There were no Inventories held for sale during the year.

NOTE 7:

|
TRADE AND OT!-IER RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

!
i

Trade debtors |

Less: Provision for impairment of debtors.

Net debtors
Prepayments
Staff Loans

Dividend Recejvables (TPCC)

Receivables from Consultancy
Creditors with debit balances

TOTAL

2022723
(TZ5'000°)
1,833,682
{1,126,538)
707,144
113,392

38,851 -

17,177
113,816
49,114

1, 039.494

2021/22
(TZ5'000%)
5,615,009
(1,318,910)
4,296,099
1,016,232
61,541

196,522
173,337

5.743,731

a) Trade and other recéivables from exchange transactions amounted to TZS 1,039.5 million
(2022: TZS 5,743.7 million). The net decrease of TZS'4,704.2 million was mainly attributed to

settlement obligations by some debtors.

b) Creditors with debit balances include IFMSO account w

hich some activities for the new

academic year begin before closure of the financial year. The Institute pre-finances IFMSO
activities and the costs thereof are recovered during' enrolment of the new students upon

payment of IFMSO fees.

¢) The decrease of balance by 88.8% in respect of Prepayment Account from TZS 1,016.2 million
as at 30 June 2022 to TZS 113.4 million as at 30 June 2023 was mainly contributed to acquisition
and delivery of four (4) motor vehicles which were earlier on paid in advance during financial
year 2021/22 and other completed commitments made by the Institute during the year.

2021722
(TZ5'000°)
1,747,117

428,207)
1,318,910

2022/23

Movement in impairments provision (TZS5'000%)

Balance at the beginning of the period 1,318,910

Provision for receivables impairment raised during the period -

Receivables recovered & written off during the period (192,372)

Balance at the end of the period 1,126,538
I

1

!
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! 2022/23 2022

o AGEING OF RECEIVABLES (TZ5'000") (TZs’000")

0-1 722,268 4,108,580

1-2 years ! - 375,039

2-3 years ] - 110,729

3-4 years | 100,729 47,348

4-5 years 37,372 313,795

Above 5 years ! 973,313 659,518
~ : 1,833,682 5,615,009
' NOTE8: FINANCIAL ASSETS 2022/23 2021/22

{TZ5'000") (TZ5'000’)
Current financial assets stated at fair value:
Shares in quoted entities at Dar es Salaam Stock
Exchange |
™ i
Tanzanfa Portland Cement Company Ltd 185,452 172,470
. Government /Treasury Register 262,240 262,240
TOTAL 447.692 434,710
~ L SHARES ANALYSIS 2022/23
- ENTITY | RATE NO. OF Value
(TZS) SHARES (TZS'000°)
4,000 46,363 185,452
Tanzania Portland Cement 3,720 46,363 172,470
Gain on Investment
(2022/23) 12,982

M Disclosure as Per IPSAS 30-Financial Instruments

NB: TZS 4,000 per share is for financial year 2022/23

TZS 3,720 per share is for financial year 2021/22
[

Securities Available for Sale comprise of listed equ:ty investments and funds invested as
~ Government Shares after closure of Twiga Bancorp.. IFM owns 46,363 shares of Tanzania -
i Portland Cement Company Ltd. Fair values are based on the quoted share price of TZS 4,000

per share at DSE at reporting date.

NOTE 9;: 'WORK IN PROGRESS 2022/23 2021722
(TZS '000') ( TZS '000Y)
. Opening balance 5,161,483 2,859,158
a Additions | 3,143,173 2,444,680
HEET Project 250
Transfer to property and equipment (Note 10) - (142,355)
TOTAL - 8,304,906 5,161,483

(‘\
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(a) The balance of TZS 8,3%04.9 million under work in progress relates to the costs incurred in
acquiring/developing capital projects at Msata whicﬁ amounted to TZS 164.0 million.
Further, the amount irf1cludes costs for construction of Geita Campus TZ5 6,195.3 million,
Simiyu Campus TZS 1,000 million, Construction of Mwanza Kiseke TZS 763.2 million, and
Njedengwa Dodoma amounting to TZS 86.0 million.

(b) Development of ERP system and new ICT software TZ5 96.2 million.

(c) The HEET Project costs TZS 0.25 million related to preliminary activities of the Project
such as Services for U]ndertaking Environmental and Social Impact Assessment (ESIA).

1
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10 A: PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
OFFICE FURNITURE, COMPUTER
LAND BUILDINGS | FIXTURES & | LIBRARY &Ir EARTH ROADS OFFICE MOTOR | GRADUATION
PARTIFULARS PROPERTY & FLATS FITTINGS BQOKS CONSOLES &SURROI{NDINGS EQUIPMI;NTS VEHICLES GOWNS TOTAL
m e - TZS '000' TZ5 '000° -TZS TZS ‘000’ TZS 000" TZ5 '000°| - TZS * TZS "000' TZS '000°

Detalls TZS 000’ '000" ‘000

Cost At 1 July ' ‘ i o

2022 41,020,273 | 22,237,026 4,604,574 | 1,580,017 | 2,548,631 142,355 2,507,043 | 1,300,823 280,620 | 76,221,362

Additions: ' ' '

From

Prepayment

Additions: - - 670,076 80,769 - 582,700 - 261,606 739,048 96,040 2,430,239
Cost At 30 ' ' ' '

June 2023 41,020,273 22,237,026 5,274,650 | 1,660,786 3,131,331 142,355 2,768,649 | 2,039,871 376,660 | 78,651,601

Depreciation

At 1 July 2022 - 3,470,856 2,440,062 | 1,461,118 | 1,066,773~ 47,452 879,229 646,258 91,832 10,103,580
Adjustment of | ’ ' '

Useful Life (62,109) - - - (83!887) - - {145,996}

Charge for the ' o )

year - 444,741 976,523 | - 164,059 647,766 47,451 518,849 317,386 34,465 3,151,240
Adjustment on ) '

Accumulated - - - (3,388) - - - - - (3,388)
Impairment

Loss - - - {53,859) - - - - - (53,859)

At 30 June - . )
| 2023 - 3,915,597 3,354,476 | 1,567,930 1,714,539 |- 94,903 1,314,191 563,644 126,297 | 13,051,577
NET BOOK

VALUE:

At 30 JUNE

2023 41,020,273 | 18,321,429 [ 1 ,920,174 92,856 | 1,416,792 47,452 1,454,458 | 1,076,227 250,363 | 65,600,024

At 30 JUNE ' . o

2022 - 41 ;020,273 | 18,766,170 | . 2,1 64,512 | - 118,899 | 1,481,858 94,903 | .1,627,814 ‘654,565 188,788 | 66,117,782
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10B: INTANGIBLE ASSETS
NET
ACC BOOK
Adjustments Charge Amortization | VALUE AS | NET BOOK
SYSTEM Cost At 1 Cost At 30 Amortization (Disposal/Review | for the AS30JUNE | 30JUNE | VALUEAS 30
SOETWARE -July.2022. Additions: _{ June 2022 _ | At 1 July 2022 | useful life) year 2023 2023 JUNE 2022
TZS '000" TZS ‘'000° | TZS ‘000" TZS "000° TZS '000' . TZS 'Q00° | TZS '000' TZS '000°" | TZS ‘000’
252,698 - . 252,698 102,596 - I 25,270 127,866 124,832 | 150,102
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NOTE 11:

NOTE 12:

NOTE 13:

t THE INSTITUTE OF FINANCE MANAGEMENT

CAPITAL FUND
|

T.her capital fund is made up of contributions that were made to the Institute
by the URT Government and other donors in the past towards financing the
establishment of the Institute. No new contributions for capital funds were
made by URT Government and donors during the financial year 2022/23.

2022/23 2021/22
(TZ2S'000°) (TZS000')
Treasury 1,558,504 1,558,504
Tanzania Education Authority - - 36,824 36,824
Government Grant . 711,691 711,691
Mac Donald Grant : 131 131
CIDA Grants - 2,297 2,297
World Bank _ 651,199 651,199
IDA Credit 449,438 449,438
Others . 28,998 28,998
TOTAL ' ' . 3,439,082 3,439,082
PROVISION FOR EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS ]
2022/23 2021/22
. (TZS'0007) (TZ5'000%)
Opening balance 194,130 339,744
Year-end Adjustment ' (194,130) (339,744)
Movement charge to the Statement of . :
Financial Performance n : 283,802 194,130
TOTAL 283,802 194,130

The Institute operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for qualifying
employees. Under the scheime, employees are entitled to retirement benefits
of eighteen months" basic salary upon attaining the compulsory retirement
age. The increase in employnieﬁt benefits relates to four (4) members of staff
who are expected to retire:iq’ the financial year 2023/24.

PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS UNDER:EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

2022/23 . 2021722
: (TZ5'000%) (TZS'000°)
Unapplied Deposit Account : ' 45,410 4,500
Other Payable : 275,924 275,924
Tuition fee 312,857 23,589
NACTE Fees Payable ™ 138,125 144,620
Accrued Leave Due Y PO 7,927 240,686
Deposit General (Debtors mth a credit 1,628,264
balance) 258,046
Withholding Tax Payable 3,268 -
Caution Money Payable , 1,390,280 1,190,494
Suppliers of Goods and Services 1,369,258 1,140,755
TOTAL 5,171,313 3,278,614
136
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(a) Debtors with credit balances (Deposit General) increased by TZS 1,370.2 million was
mainly contributed by HESLB were by large portion of students were granted full
sponsorship, which resulted in-a claim of tuition fees refund in the financial year
2022/23. :

(b) Caution money payable increased by TZS 199.8 million as an increase in number of first-
year students ll'egistered in the academic year 2022/23 to the Institute’s campuses.

(¢) The balance of suppliers of goods and services increased by TZS 228.5 million on account

of academic s{arvices offered at the Institute when compared with the previous year.

NOTE 14: DEFERRED INCOME UNDER EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

2022/23 2021722

; (TZ5'000") (TZ5'000")

Welfare Funds 3,045 1,455
Tuition received from students not yet

registered 135,404 135,404

TOTAL ) 138,449 136,859

The balance of deferred income under exchange transactions increased to TZ5
138.4 million (2022: TZS 136.9 million) mainly due to some students paying
fees and failing to register to meet the criteria of registration, on account of
welfare funds paid to eligible staff in line with the procedures in place.-

NOTE 15: DEFERRED INCOME UNDER NON-EXCHANGE

. 2022/23 2021/22
! (TZ5'000") (TZS'000°%)
Opening balance 17,649 17,649
HEET Project 851,396 -
TOTAL 869,045 17,649

The amount deferred is in respect of grants received from the Tanzania
Education Authority (TEA) during the financial year 2016/17, and HEET
Project in the financial year 2022/23 to improve academic transformation.

REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS -

NOTE 16: 2022/23 2021722
(T25'000") (TZS'000%)
Receipt from Tuition Fees 23,504,986 22,244,781
TOTAL 23,504,986 22,244,781

Revénue from exchange transactions increased by TZS 1,260.2 million which
was | mainly contributed by an increase of postgraduate students in the
academic year 2022/23.
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NOTE 17: REVENUE I:*ROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS - GOVERNMENT SUBVENTION
This figure comprises the amount received from the treasury for paying salaries
and development projects during the period.
2022/23 2021/22
g (TZ5'000°) (TZS'000")
Subvention for Personnel emolument 9,254,439 8,454,963
Government Grant Development Local 2,618,179 1,631,513
HEET Prdject 705,234
TOTAL 12,577,861 10,086,476
NOTE 18: FAIR VALUE ADJUSTMENTS AND EXCHANGE GAINS
2022/23 2021/22.
(TZS' 000°) (TZS' 000")
{Loss)/gain on investment in shares 12,982 5,563
Foreign exchange gain {15,124} {107,505}
TOTAL (2,142) {101,942}
NOTE19:  OTHER INCOME
2022/23 2021/22
(TZS ‘000") (TZS “000°)
Registration fees 362,117 308,150
Field supervision 740,895 1,187,597
Miscellaneous income 1,806,187 1,660,527
Conference facilities 3,150 -
Consultancies .t 70,500 466,622
Research fees : 30,152 .
Dividend 17,477 -
TOTAL 3,030,178 3!622!896
Total other income aggregated to TZ5 3,030.2 million (2021/22: TZS 3,622.8
million). The noted decrease of TZS 593.7 million was mainly attributed to a
decrease in consultancy and short courses; and field supervision fees.
NOTE20:  MAINTENANCE EXPENSES ,
2022/23 2021/22
(TZS ‘000°)  (TZS ‘000°)
Air conditioners 33,435 83,493
Cement, Bricks and Building Materials 528,674 396,938
Computers, printers, scanners, and other 264,378 123,736
computer-related equipment
Direct Labour (contracted or casual hire) 192,070 197,949
Electrical and Other Cabling Materials 20,061 53,761
Fire Protection Equipment 20,003 12,462
Mechanical, electrical, and electronic spare 1,481 12,695
arts
I(:':)ur.s.c:urce maintenance contract services 68,056 75,613
Painl't and Weather Protection Coatings 19,804 7,716
Photocopiers 67,330 40,559
Plur{'lbing Supplies and Fixtures 155,925 29,304
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NOTE 21:

: .
Small Car Mechanics Tools . ) 57,060 48,581

Small ch:ols and Implements . - 172
Tyres ar?d Batteries 29,441 14,544
Water Pumps 9,869 -
Wood and Timber Suppties - 25,717 19,106
TOTAL ( 1,493,304 1,116,629

Maintehance expenses increased by TZS 376.7 million which was contributed
by procurement of maintenance materials to enhance the efficiency and
effectiveness of the Institute’s Non-Current Assets (NCA) such as computer
accessories (TZS 264.4 million); Plumbing Supplies (TZS 155.9 miltion) and
Photocopiers (TZS 67.3 million).

WAGES; SALARIES AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

2022/23 2021/22
; . (TZ5'000") (TZ5'000")
Acting Allowance ' 48,147 44,318
Civil Servants . 9,254,439 B,463,434
Civil Servants Contracts 3,598 -
Councilors Allowance 160,916 92,045
Court Attire Allowance 4,000 4,000
Electricity Allowance 6,680 -
Extra-Duty 907,434 854,134
Heavy Teaching Load Allowance 1,567,374 1,217,694
Honoraria 622,500 762,100
Housing allowance L 157,983 159,218
invigilators Allowances ' 848,567 898,220
Leave Travel ' 46,956 113,387
Medical and Dental Refunds : 57,503 19,347
Moving Expenses 63,703 23,602
Outfit Allowance 2,100 .
Professional Allowances 433,976 492,168
Responsibility Allowance 259,825 195,098
Sitting Allowance 197,300 235,040
Special Allowance 856,664 953,118
Subsistence Allowance 64,360 -
Telephone Allowance 35,800 -
Transport Allowance 983,397 724,500
TOTAL 16,583,222 15,251,423

Civil Servant’s salaries and wages aggregated to TZS 9,254.4 million (2021/ 22:
TZS 8,463.4 million) representing an increase equivalent to 9.3%. The noted
increase was mainly attributed by the recruitment of new staff for the
financial year 2022/23.

. Heavy Teaching Load- allowance increased by TZS 349.7 miliion-to TZS 1,567.4

million due to an increase in enrollment, programmes and inadequate
infrastructures.
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NOTE 22: USE OF GOODS AND SERVICES

2022/23 2021/22
(TZ5'000") (TZS°000’)
Advertlising and publication ' 448,710 404,778
Air Travel Tickets 411,782 227,530
Catering Services 439,895 320,159
Computer Supplies and Accessories 113,741 194,733
Conference Facilities 178,062 95,212
Diesel 255,500 192,865
Electricity 469,291 528,351
Entertainment 243,234 267,650
Examination Expenses 1,516,972 1,630,530
Exhibition, Festivals and Celebrations 180,374 88,707
Food and Refreshments 195,629 61,158
Fumigation 29,215 21,124
Gifts and Prizes 16,650 19,555
Ground Transport (Bus, Train, Water) 322,861 211,351
Internet and Email connections 237,106 258,344
Lunch Allowance 2,642 8,650
Newspapers and Magazines 17,122 15,804
Office Consumables (papers, pencils, pens and 1,218,089 906,523
stationaries)
Outsourcing Costs (includes cleaning and securit 588,723 662,853
services)
Per Diem - Domestic 1,071,949 695,081
Per Diem - Foreign 214,672 44,573
Petrol 117,371 100,953
Posts and Telegraphs 24,205 35,738
Printing accessories 47,509
31,841

Printing and Photocopying Costs 497,756 375,993
Printing Material 240,327 219,562
Production and Printing of Training Materialt - 700
Remuneration of Instructors 79,261 19,108
Rent - Office Accommodation 744,324 615,001
Research and Dissertation 78,207 72,000
Sewage Charges 8,217 6,455
Software License Fees ) 215,469 230,499
Special Uniforms and Clothing 11,849 -
Sporting Supplies 111,247 148,607
Subscription Fees ’ 48,438 33,563
Telephone Charges (Land Lines} 46,750 111,043
Training Allowances 187,512 181,420
Training Materials 10,942 -
Tuition fees 264,775 227,360
Upkeep Allowances 140,000 - 155,029
Visa Application Fees 9,910 818
Water Charges 164,290 168,193
HEET:Project Expenditure 704,933
TOTAL 11,909,893 9,605,082

Use of Goods and services increased by TZS 2,304.8 million to TZS 11,909.9
million. The noted increase of 24% was on account of operating expenses
aiming at ensuring smooth conduct of core activities of the Institute for the
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NOTE 23:

NOTE 24:

NOTE 25:

financial year 2022/23. Furthermore, the increase was contributed by HEET
Project/Expenditure for financial year 2022/23 as one ameng the beneficiaries
to implement education transformation in Tanzania.

OTHER EXPENSES

i 2022/23 2021/22

! ' (TZ5'000") (TZ5'000")
Agency fees - 36,456
Audit fees 147,420 100,000
Audit su'penrision expenses 36,750 72,901
Bank Ch;arges and Commissions 679 110,397
Burial Expenses - 21,680 13,000
Consultancy fees 86,944 90,860
Insurance Expenses - 60,482
Sundry Expenses 504,018 112,124
Taxes Levied by another Level of Government 491,436 -
TOTAL I' 1,288,927 596,220

Other expenses aggregated to TZS 1,288.9 million (2022: TZS 596.2 million).
The noted increase of TZS 692.7 million, was mainly caused by penalties on
assessment made by the Tanzania Revenue Authority (TRA) (TZS 491.4
million); and other minor costs to ensure efficiency and effectiveness of
Institute to achieve its core functions.

SOCIAL BENEFITS
2022/23 2021/22
. (TZ5'000") (TZ5'000°)
Assistant to Persons with Disability 17,957 26,540
Retiremént benefits 897,414 794,301

TOTAL 915,371 820,841

The increase in expenses on retirement benefits is related to four (4) members
of staff who are expected-to retire in the financial year 2023/24.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

EXPENSES
2022/23 2021722
(T25'000") (TZS'000’)
Depreciation and amortization expenses 3,176,510 1,972,840
TOTAL 3,176,510 1,972,840

The increase in depreciation and amortization expenses TZS 1,203.7 million
was attributed to a significant acquisition of non-current assets during the
financial year ended

30 June 2023.
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LOSS ON DISPOSAL
' 2022/23 2021722
; (TZ5'000") (TZS'000%)
Loss on Disposal - 174,874
TOTAL ' - 174,874
: 2022/23 2021/22
IMPAIRMENT LOSS (TZ5'000') (TZ5°000")
Impairment loss 53,859 67,115
TOTAL ' 53,859 67,115

The figure covers Impairment loss of Library books after the carrying value of
NCA-Library books exceeded market value (Recoverable amount) during the
financial year ended 30 June 2023.

OTHER TRANSFERS 2022/23 2021/22

' (TZS5'000%) (TZ5'000')
Co_ntribution to Consolidated Fund 300,000 300,000
TOTAL 300,000 300,000

The amount was contributed to the Consolidated Fund to comply with the
Office of the Treasury Registrar (OTR) rules and regulations.

202/23 2021/22
PROCEEDS FROM SALE OF ASSETS (TZS'000") (TZ5'000%)
Receipt from Disposal 27,832 -

TOTAL' 27,832 z

The figure represents total receipts on the Disposat off Non-Current Assets
located at Dar-es-Salaam and Mwanza campuses as per the approval granted
by the Paymaster General via letter with Ref No. KA.32/159/01/PART A/14

dated 10 August 2022.
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NOTE 30 CASH FLO\IN ITEMS 2023 2022
| TZ5°000" TZ5'000"
(i) Revenue from exchange transactions
Tuition feé received in the year 28,826,910 19,030,160
Tuition fee; received from previous year 3,664,970 856,423
; 32,491,880 19,886,583
(ii) Other Revenue
Registration and ldentity 362,117 308,150
Field Supefvision 740,895 1,187,597
Miscellaneous Income 641,441 1,528,527
Consultancy 70,500 304,622
1,814,953 3,328,896
(iii) Wages, Salaries and Employees Benefits 16,583,622 14,347,058
(iv) Cash paid for use of Goods and Services 11,909,893 7,570,140
(v) Cash paid for Social Benefits 631,569 600,171
(vi) Cash paid for Other Transfers 300,000 300,000
(vii) Cash paid for Other Expenses 1,288,927 4,727,388
(viii) Cash paid for Maintenance Expenses 1,493,304 977,891
(ix) Decrease in Deposits ; 33,088 -
32,240,404 28,522,648
(x) Property and Equipment
Paid During the year to PPE 2,430,239 2,516,173
Paid During the year to WIP 3,267,875 2,447,209
5,698,114 4,963,382
_ FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
NOTE 31: i
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair
value of the Institute’s financial instruments.
Carrying
30-June-2022 amounts  Fair value
Financial assets (TZS "000") (TZS '000")
Receivlldbles from exchange transactions
{Note 7) ' 5,743,731 5,743,731
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Financial assets available for sale
(Investments in quoted shares) (Note 8)

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5):

Financial liabilities at amortized cost (Note
13) ;

30-June-2023
Financial assets

Receivables from exchange transactions
(Note 7)

Financial assets available for sale
(Investments in quoted shares) (Note 8)

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5)
Financial liabilities o
Financial liabilities at amortized cost (Note

13)

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

172,470 172,470
8,642,133 8,642,133
14,558,334 14,558,334
3,278,614 3,278,614
Carrying
amounts Fair value
(TZS "000%) (TZS "000")
1,039,494 1,039,494
185,452 185,452
16,531,921 16,531,921
17,756,867 17,756,867
5,171,313 5,171,313

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included in the amount
at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other thanina forced sale or liquidation. The following methods
and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: .

a) Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables and other
current liabilities of these instruments.

b) Fair value of investments in quoted shares based on share price
quotations at the reporting date.

NOTE 32: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CATEGORIES
Loans and Available for Available for
receivables sale sale
(TZS'000%) (TZ5'000°) (TZ5'000")
30-June-2022
Financial assets
Receivables from exchange
transactions (Note 7) 5,743,731 - 5,743,731
Financial asset available for
sale (Investment in quoted
shares) (Note 8) - 172,470 172,470
i 5,743,731 172,470 5,916,201
[
l
H Financial
: o
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Liabilities at
amortized cost

Financial liabilities (TZS'000")
Payables and accruals (Note 13) 3,278,614
30-June-2023
Financial assets
Receivablf!-:s from exchange
transactions {Note 7) 1,039,494 - 1,039,494
Financial asset available for
sale (Investment in quoted
shares) (bllote 8) = 185,452 185,452
1,039,494 185,452 1,224,946
Financial
Liabilities at
; amortized cost
Financial liabilities (TZ5'000”)
Payables'and accruals (Note 13) 5,171,313
NOTE 33: FAIR YALUE HIERARCHY AND MEASUREMENT 30 June 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Total
Financial assets (TZ5'0007) (TZ5000°) (TZ5'000%)
Receivables fram exchange
transactions (Note 7) 4,296,099 4,296,099
Financial asset available for - -
sale (Investment in quoted
shares) (Note 8) 172,470 - 172,470
Cash and cash equivalents
(Note 5) 8,642,133 8,642,133
172,470 12,938,232 13,110,702
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at
amortized
cost (Note 13) - 3,278,614 3,278,614
FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY AND MEASUREMENT
30-Jun-23
Level 1 Level 2 Total
Financial assets (TZ5'000%) (TZ5'000") (TZ5°000%)
Receivlables from exchange
transactions (Note 7) 707,144 707,144
Financial asset available for sale
(Investment in quoted shares)
(Note 8) 185,452 - 185,452
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Cash and cash equivalents (Note
5 ; 16,531,921 16,531,921

! 185,452 17,239,065 17,424,517
Financial liabilities .

Financial tiabilities at amortized

cost (Note 13) - 5,171,313 5,171,313

i.  Available for sale - these instruments are at quoted list prices in active
markets, they are classified as level 1.

ii.  Accounts receivables, cash and bank balances, trade payables and

transactions.
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NOTE34: RECONCILIATION OF CASH FLOW

STATEMENT NOTES
1 2022/23 2021/22
, TZ5'000" TZ5'000'
Surplus/(Deficit) for the period 3,417,229 6,014,301
Add/(Less): Non - Cash ltems
Depreciation of PPE 3,151,240 1,952,990
Fair value gains on Assets and Liabilities (12,982} (5,564)
Amortization of Intangible Assets 25,270 19,850
Loss on di§posal of Assets - 174,874
Impairment Loss 53,859 -
Adjusted Surplus 6,634,616 8,156,451
Add/(Less} Change in Working Capital
Increase in Deposit 1,411,128 456,676
Increase in Inventories 2 (82,482) (90,421)
Increase in Payables and Accruals 605,794 . 465,339
Decrease in Prepayments ' 902,840 (225,242)
Decrease in Trade and other Receivables 3,951,012 (5,615,009}
Increase in Deferred under exchange ‘ 1,590 -
Transactions
Increase in Deferred under non-exchange 851,396 -
Transactions
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 14,275,894 3,147,794
147
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NOTE 35:

NOTE 36:

NOTE 37:

RELATED PARTY TRANSACT IONS AND BALANCES

Related party transactions represernt transactions with Council members and
senior management of the Institute. Transactions with the related parties
included in the Statement of Financial Performance are as follows:

|
Key management personnel
The key management personnel, as defined by IPSAS 20 - Related Party
Disclosures are members of the Governing Council and management of the
Institute. The total remunerations to members of the council and senior
management staff during 2022/23 and their numbers were as shown below:

Governing Council Members

2022123 2021722
TZ5'000 TZS'000
Councilor's fees 45,371 64,000
Sitting and other allowances 46,674 36,842
92,045 100,842

Number of Council Members 10 10

Transactions: Senior Management

The senior management members include Rector, Deputy Rectors, Deans,
Directors and Registrar. The aggregate remuneration of members of senior
management and the number of managements determined on a full-time
equivalent basis are shown below:

2022/23 2021/22
TZS000 TZS'000
Basic salary 900,279 917,736
Allowances 262,590 . 250,920

1,162,869 1,168,656

Number of Senior Management Personnel 17 17

During the period loans amounting to TZS 41.0 million were granted to Senior
Management Personnel (2022: 61.9 million).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
There are no material non-adjusting events favorable or unfavorable that

occurred between the reporting date and the date when the Financial
Statements were authorized for issue.

PRIOR YEARS' ADJUSTMENTS

There were no prior year adjustments for the financial year ended 30 June
2023,
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NOTE 38:

GROU;P[NG OF FINANCIAL YEAR 2021/22 BALANCES

Some Ibalances relating to the 2021/22 Financial Statements have been re-
grouped to allow comparability with their respective 2022/23 balances
following migration to MUSE from SAGE Evolution System as it is the main
accounting package, This development has necessitated to change the
nomenclature of some line ftems in the Financial Statements and some of the
figures for the financial year 2021/22 were not comparable to the current
year under review. In 2021/22 expenses were classified under three groups,
namely: Operating Expenses; Administrative Expenses; and Wages, Salaries
and Efnployees Benefits, Following migration to MUSE in 2022/23, expenses
were regrouped into five categories which are: Maintenance Expenses;
Wages, Salaries and Employees Benefits; Use of Goods and Services; Other’

Expenses; and Social Benefits. Table 23 provides a summary of the regrouped
Expenses of 2021/22,
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TABLE 23: REGROUPING OF COMPARATIVE EXPENSES FOR 2021/22

)

-
.

' . REPORTED IN 2021/2022
EXPENSES AS REPORTED IN 202272023 UNDER 2021/22
NOTE 20: MAINTENENCE EXPENSES TZS000
Alr conditioners Operating expenses 83,493
Cement, I:Bricks and Building Materials Operating expenses 395,938
Computers, printers, scanners, and other
cornputer.-r'elated equipment Operating expenses 123,736
Direct Labour (contracted or casual hire) Operating expenses 197,949
Electrical and Other Cabling Materials Operating expenses 53,761
Fire Protection Equipment Operating expenses 12,462
gti:rl:;ntcal, electrical, and electronic Operating nses 12,695 i
Outsource maintenance contract setvices Operating expenses 75,613
Paint and Weather Protection Coatings Operating expenses 7,716
Photocoplers Operating expenses 40,559
Plumbing Supplies and Fixtures Operating expenses 29,304
Small Car Mechanics Tools '. Operating expenses 48,581
Small Tools and Implements Operating expenses 172
Tyres and Batteries Operating expenses 14,544
Water Pumps Operating expenses .
Wood and Timber Supplies Operating expenses 19,10
1,116,629
NOTE 21: WAGES, SALARIES AND
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Wages salaries and employee
Acting Allowance | benefits 44,318
\ Wages salaries and employee ]
Civil Servants benefits 8,463,434
. Wages salaries and employee
Civil Servants Contracts benefits .
Councilors Allowance \é&;arf,:fsi tssalamzs and employee 92,045
Court Attire Allowance \é\:ear?:fs;éalanes and employee 4,000
Electricity Allowance : \I:?r%:fsi t.r;alanes and employee ]
Extra-'Duty tV}I':ngeesﬁ tssalanes and employee 854,134
Heavy Teaching Load Allowance Operating expenses 1,217,694
Honoraria \g?r?:fsi tssa.lanes and employee 762,100
Housing allowance Operating expenses 159,218
invigilators Allowances ‘Q’:ﬁ:;éalanes and employee 898,220
Leave Travel \ggang:é ts_:ialarles and employee 113,387
Medical and Dental Refunds \Ql:r?;s;tssalanes and employee 19,347
.’
|
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i Wages salaries and employee
Moving Expenses benefits 23,602
Wages salaries and employee
Outfit Allowance benefits }
.l Wages salaries and employee
Profe5519nal Allowances . benefits 492,168
"t Wages salaries and employee
Responsiibi lity Allowance benefits 195,098
‘ Wages salaries and employee
Sitting Allowance benefits 235,040
Wages salaries and employae
Special Allowance benefits 953,118
Wages salaries and employee
Subsistepce Allowance benefits )
Wages salaries and employee
Telephone Allowance benefits i}
Wages salarfes and employee
Transpo}rt Allowance benefits 724,500
[
NOTE 22: USE OF GOODS AND SERVICES
Advertising and publication Administrative expenses 404,778
Air Travel Tickets Administrative expenses 227,530
Catering Services Adminjstrative expenses 320,159
Computer Supplies and Accessories Administrative expenses 194,733
Conference Facilities Administrative expenses 95,212
Diesel Administrative expenses 192,865
Electricity Operating expenses 528,351
Entertainment Administrative expenses 267,650
Examination Expenses Operating expenses 1,630,530
Exhibition, Festivals and Celebrations Administrative expenses 88,707
Food and Refreshments Administrative expenses 61,158
Fumigation Administrative expenses 21,124
Gifts and Prizes Administrative expenses 19,555
Ground Transport {Bus, Train, Water) .Administrative expenses 211,351
Internet and Email connections Administrative expenses 258,344
Lunch Allowance Administrative expenses 8,650
Newspapers and Magazines Administrative expenses 15,5804
Office Consumables (papers, pencils, pens [’
and stationaries) * Operating expenses 906,523
Outsourcing Costs (includes cleaning and '
security services) Operating expenses 662,853
Per Diem - Domestic - Adminfstrative expenses 695,081
Per Diem - Foreign + Administrative expenses 44,573
Petrol ' Administrative expenses 100,953
Posts and Telegraphs Administrative expenses 35,738
Printing accessories Administrative expenses 47,509
Prinl:ir::g and Photocopying Costs Administrative expenses 375,993
Printing Material Administrative expenses 219,562
|
|
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A:;? grl;aclt-sion and Printing of Training Administrative expenses 700
Rémunej'ration of Instructors Administrative expenses 19,108
Rent - Office Accommodation Administrative expenses 615,001
Researc:h and Dissertation ‘ Administrative expenses 72,000
Sewage Charges Operating expenses 6,455
Software License Fees Administrative expenses 230,499
Special Uniforms and Clothing’ Administrative expenses .
Sporting Supplies Administrative expenses 148,607
Subscription Fees Administrative expenses 33,563
Telephone Charges (Land Lines) Administrative expenses 111,043
Training Allowances Administrative expenses 181,420
Training Materials Administrative expenses -
Tuition fees Administrative expenses 227,360
Upkeap Allowances ‘Administrative expenses 155,029
Visa Application Fees '‘Administrative expenses 818
Water Charges 'Operating expenses 168,193
NOTE 23: OTHER EXPENSES
Agency fees Operating expenses 36,456
Audit fees Administration expenses 100,000
Audit supervision expenses Administration expenses 72,901
Bank Charges and Commissions “Administration expenses 110,397
Burial Expenses } ‘Ils‘iang:f?;‘.s salaries and employee 13,000
Congsultancy expenses Administration expenses 90,860
Instrance Expenses Administration expenses 60,482
Sundry' Expenses Administration expenses 112,124
NOTE 24: SOCIAL BENEFITS
Assistant to Persons with Disability Administration expenses 26,540
Retirement benefits E:fs;.,tssalaries and employee 794,301
NOTE 25: DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTIZATION EXPENSES
Depreciation expenses Administration expenses 3,151,240
Amortization expenses Administration expenses 25,270
|
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NOTE 39: HEET PlEiOJECT FUNDS

"The Government of Tanzania is implementing the Higher Education for
Economic Transformation (HEET) project under the Ministry of Education
Science and Technology (MoEST). HEET project is a five-year project being
impleﬂnented from 2021/22-2025/26. The Institute is amongst the
beneficiaries of HEET project funds with an allocation of TZS 25,015.5

i million. The overall Project Development Objective (PDO) is to “strengthen

: learning environment and labour market orientation of priority programs
in beneficiary higher education institutions and strengthen the
management of the higher education system"”.

In order to realise the above objective, the Institute prepared a Strategic
Implementation Plan (SIP) which is operationalized through an annual
project action plan and budget. The annual project budget for the financial
year 2022/23 was TZS 1,556.6 million which was aimed at facilitating
implementation of thirteen annual targets. The disbursement of funds and
project implementation started in the last quarter of year 2022/23 later
than anticipated resulting in delays in the achievement of the planned
project targets, activities and processes. As a result, some activities had to
be carried forward to the next financial year.

Accordingly, by 30 June 2023, the total cost incurred aggregated to TZS
705.0 million and the project accourit had a balance of TZS 851.4 million.
The balance of the funds received and cost incurred have been separately
disclosed in Note 5 (Cash and Cash Equivalent) and the Statement of
Financial Performance respectively. Detailed HEET Projects Financial
Statements have been prepared separately for onward submission to the
appropriate authorities.

NOTE 40: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Capital Commitments

TZS 506,918,017 was committed out of 6,202,678,929 but not contracted for
the development, of the Mwanza and Geita campuses as at 30 June 2023. The
Institute is confident that it will proceéd with the development of the capital
project next financial year.

Operating lease commitment

Institute as a lessor
Future minimum lease income under non-cancellable operating leases for the
following periods are:
2022/23 2021/22
(TZ5'000") (TZ5'000")
Due within one year 32,568 32,568
32,568 32,568
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The Institute lets properties under operating leases. These are leased
residential’ properties to its staff. The total revenue from the leasing
activities during the year was TZS 51.4 million (2022: TZS 51.4 million). The
properties jare maintained by the Institute at no cost to the tenants. No
investment properties have been disposed of since 30 June 2022.

Institute as a lease
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for

the following period are:

2021/22
TZS5'000
464,327

1,260,550
1,724,877

2022723

TZ5000
464,327
525,398

989,725

Due within one year
Due within two to five years

Minimum lease payments recognized as an expense during the period amount
to TZS 744.3 million (2022: TZS 710.2 million). Leased premises are
contracted for the remaining periods of between one and four years, with
renewal options available in certain instances. Other Leased premises is the
BOT building leased at no cost for the period of three years ended in May
2022.

Contingent liabilities

As at 30 June 2023, the Institute had four (4) pending legal cases. Most of
these involve disputes that are not recognized because the chances of losing
are remote. However, there are 4 (2022) cases in which the potential cost to
the Institute is estimated at TZS 168.0 million (2022: TZS 298.0 millicn) should
the Institute lose the cases. )
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NOTE 41: STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACT UAL AMOUNTS 30 JUNE 2023

| S/No

Description

Final Budget for
2022/23

Adjusted Actual
Amounts (Cash
__Basls)

Variance

Reasons/Remarks

(TZ5'000°)

(125'000°)

(TZ5'000")

(A

(8)

C= (A-B)

Revenue

1.0

Tuition fees, consultancy and
other students’ fees.

29,721,030

28,826,910,

894,120 |

2.0

Recurrent grant

12,702,186

12,577,861

[ The unfavorable variance was attributed to
a few consultancies undertaken and fees
from students who postponed studies in the
second semester and had not paid their
_respective tuition fees,

505,675

Budget for salaries was fixed following
receipt of ceiling from the Government.
Furthermore, there were delays in
promoting staff and filling new vacancies
which were budgeted during the year.
Also, the delay on receipt of HEET Project
Funds affected completion of related
activities as planned.

3.0

Other Revenue

1,378,320

1,814,953

(436,633)

.The favaorable variance Was On account of
‘fées recelvéd from conducting short
“colirses, ID. processing fees and Transcript
application fees.

Expenses

1.0

Wages, Salaries and Employee
Benefits

17,766,376

16,583,622

1,182,754

The under expenditure was mainly on
account of delays in promoting staff and
filling new vacancies budgeted during the
year.

2.0

Use of Goods and Service

13,284,427

11,935,164

1,349,263

The positive variance was mainly on
account of tow level of expenses in respect
of travelling for academic staff, utilities
and other administrative measures taken
to reduce operating costs. Also, there was
prolonged procurement process and delay
in HEET Project Activities as planned by the
Institute,

3.0

Social Benefits

450,000

531,569

(141,569)

The negative variance was due to under
budgeting of retirement benefits payable.
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) O - / = - |
4.0 | Other Transfers 300,000 300,000 . N/A
5.0 | Other Expenses 3,392,157 1,288,927 2,103,230 | The positive variance was mainly due to
carry-over funds for financial year 2021/22
which were included as sundry expenses in
the budget for year 2022/23; to accomplish
) _ _ planned activities of the Institute.
6.0 | Maintenance Expenses 2,422,637 1,493,304 929,333 | The positive varlance was mainly due to
. _prolonged procurement process.
|~ 7.0 Capital Project Expenditure 11,200,000 7,678,788 3,521,212 | The positive variance was mainly due to
- = T - - . prolonged procurement process in relation
to Gelta and Mwanza Campuses T
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